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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ERHRE

1)

Mr. Wei Qiang  chajrman
s e e EE

AN

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited
(the “"Company”) together with its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”), | hereby present the annual report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the
“Reporting Period”) to all shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”).
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

In 2019, the global economic environment is gloomy, with China’s rapid
economic growth fading away and economic downward pressure continued
to mount.

In respect of the solar power industry in 2019, China adopted the
management mode of giving priority to affordable projects that do not need
national subsidy while determining the market size by competitive allocation
for projects that need national subsidy. The project construction has been
delayed due to the continuous impact of the 2018 solar power policy and the
late promulgation of the solar power generation project construction policy in
2019, coupled with the significant reduction in subsidy, all of which led to
lower profit margin for the industry, resulting in enterprises being less willing
to invest in solar power plants, which led to a significant decline in the newly
installed capacity of domestic solar power generation market in 2019.
According to the information disclosed by the National Energy Administration,
in 2019, the newly installed capacity of solar power plants in China reached
30.1 GW, decreased by 32.0% compared to the same period of the previous
year, while centralized power station was 17.9 GW, dropped 23% on a year-
on-year basis; the distributed power station was 12.2 GW, dropped 41.8%
on a year-on-year basis. Meanwhile, the whole 2019 has experienced waves
of disposal of solar power plants by large solar power generators and
accelerating adjustment and replacement in the entire industry due to
tightening capital chain as a result of the reduced subsidy for solar power
plants.

Under the circumstances that the overall economy is losing momentum,
liquidity of enterprises is generally poor, and relevant national policies have a
great impact on the Group’s home photovoltaic system business, the Group
has adopted prudent operation strategies during the Reporting Period. It
focused on risk control, including reducing the development scale of the
home photovoltaic system business, and slowing down the progress of
investment in other clean energy businesses, and made larger scale of
provisions for historical receivables and financial assets, which had a
significant impact on the Group’s income and profit for the Reporting Period.
During the Reporting Period, the Group achieved revenue of
RMB147,460,000, decreased by 79.2% as compared to RMB708,493,000
for the same period of 2018. While the loss attributable to owners of the
Company was RMB264,522,000, as compared to profit attributable to
owners of the Company of RMB107,720,000 recorded for the same period of
2018.

FIR 2019
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DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY IN 2020

Year 2020 is a year of succession. The coronavirus pandemic (the “Pandemic”)
occurred at the beginning of the new year has disrupted the pace of both
global and Chinese economic development. However, addressing climate
changes and implementing green and low-carbon practice have become a
broad consensus among the international communities. Huge development
opportunities are still to be unlocked by the energy structure transformation
and energy supply side reform in China. According to the relevant data
released by the National Bureau of Statistics and the National Energy
Administration, the energy consumption of the national gross domestic
product (in $0’000) decreased by 2.6% in 2019 as compared with that of the
previous year. It totally decreased by 13.9% during the “13th Five-Year”
period (from 2016 to 2020, same as below). The proportion of non-fossil
energy to total energy consumption in 2019 increased by 1% as compared
with that of the previous year, with a total increase of 15.3% during the “13th
Five-Year” period. China has lived up to its commitment to develop on the
basis of on energy conservation and emission reduction. Meanwhile,
according to the commitment of the Chinese government, China’s carbon
dioxide emission volume is expected to reach its peak by 2030, and the
proportion of non-fossil energy to one-off energy consumption will increase to
20%. China is expected to rely more and more on clean, low-carbon and
high-efficient energy supply. It leaves large room for development in the
future.

In 2020, we will try to achieve profitability as soon as possible by continuing
taking risk control as a priority and developing steadily as a principle to
reasonably plan and gradually implement our strategies:

First of all, the Group’s existing 11 solar power plants are under stable
operations, and the public construction business of Baoding Donghu Project (the
“Baoding Donghu Project”) has a development volume of more than
RMB2 billion, which is expected to lay a solid foundation for the Group’s
development;

Secondly, we will further optimize our organizational structure and manpower
deployment, and actively implement cost control measures on the premise of
ensuring business development;

Thirdly, we will adjust and optimize our business structure surrounding the
Company’s main businesses, pullback our home photovoltaic system
business which has a lower gross profit, concentrate our resources on our
heat supply business (including the distributed clean heat supply and urban
centralized heat supply), and explore the way on investment in and
development of other clean energy businesses when industry opportunities
arise;
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Fourthly, the smart energy cloud platform has always been a strong support
for our offline business development. We will fully exercise the big data
analysis and processing capability of our cloud platform and enhance our
project operation and asset management capability, to secure a higher
project return rate, as well as to provide a reliable data basis and decision-
making means for the development of our offline business.

Lastly, | hereby extend my sincere gratitude to all Shareholders, investors,
customers, suppliers and business partners on behalf of the Board for their
continual support and to all employees for their tireless efforts and
contribution in 2019.

Wei Qiang
Chairman

30 March 2020
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OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in smart energy business and public
infrastructure construction business, with gradual expansion and
diversification to other clean energy business. Specifically, our smart energy
business primarily represents the investments in electricity, heat and gas, as
well as the smart operation and management of such energy resources. Our
public infrastructure construction business represents such construction for
the Baoding Donghu Project and its related pre-investment and post-
construction operation management business. Operating under the
philosophy of “Compassion, Integrity and Creditworthiness”, the Group aims
to become a leading comprehensive service provider of smart energy in
China.

The world economic growth continued to slow down during 2019. Facing the
complex and changing external environment, the economic of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) strived for restructuring with stability and
therefore, has been under increasing downward pressure. Having gone
through the shuffle in the solar power generation industry since 2018, the
entire sector developed cautiously and conservatively in 2019. Amongst all,
the small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) in the PRC have always
shared the liquidity problem as it is difficult and expensive for their financing.
So as to the Group’s business partners, distributors and customers. Living
with such difficulties and changing economic and industrial situation, the
Group adjusted its strategy by slowing down business expansion, prioritizing
risk control and taking steady development, during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue amounted to
RMB147,460,000 (for the same period of 2018: RMB708,493,000), while the
loss attributable to owners of the Company was RMB264,522,000 (for the
same period of 2018: profit attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB107,720,000), representing a decrease of approximately 79.2% and
345.6%, respectively as compared to the same period of last year. The
decrease in revenue and profit was primarily due to the following aspects:

(i) As for home photovoltaic systems business, the Group, exposed to the
sustained impact of national policy on the solar power industry,
recorded limited development during the Reporting Period, with the
resultant significant decline in revenue and profit as compared to the
same period of last year. The management made a provision of
approximately RMB156,887,000 for the trade receivables from home
photovoltaic system business during the Reporting Period, which
resulted in a direct increase of the same amount in the Group’s loss
before income tax in the Reporting Period.

REBNEZEEBRAREECREBRAER
REK UBELHEMEEEMBERERE
%°H¢“?%ﬁﬁﬁixﬁﬂ CNE = N
REREEEBILES E1R - BREBIE
RERPEBEBEMNAHLE %ﬂML % N 8 8 A
R EMEEREEETRER - $%MUA

BEMA - ABRME AELHINEER
AEBENBERERATERLENE B6
BIRHGE -

_4

T-NF O UEREEERFETE AHE
%E%*:*E’WI\%BE&% crE AR FAME ([HE])
RERPRE  TTENFEERN - HHER
tﬁ*fﬁﬁxm REB-_ZT—NFmT

BE —T-NFEATENERIELEE
BEMRTF - MEZZTE—NAFHREHF NRE
MEH BEENRERKE PIEELER
FERDUERERE BAKENAERH
RBEEPFEHLRA -BHRRB RARS
HE AEBERBEBREE  WEEBERERER
B ARBREZESNSTE URRERA/RA
NEHEBETLERTELEN N EHEZ(C -

RAEAREHB XEEBZREZAARE
147,460,000 C( — T — NEFE B H: ARE
708,493,0007T) * AN A E B AEMLEBEAA
R 264,522,000 (=2 — \NFERH : AR a
A ARG S A R #107,720,0007T) © Bk
FRHAMEL DRI T T £79.2% 1% 345.6% ° I
=M TEHRAEXER

() HTEFRAXRESEBTE XBEREX
RITEBENBFEZE AEBERE
ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%miﬁﬁﬁgﬁ

BYARERHMPAXRKRERER
mWﬁ&@ﬂﬁiimﬁmmk%T
R EREHAREHAEPABXARRLS
XBHNESERERGRTHOARYE
156,887,0007T < & & « M H BN A
SERABREHERESBORAEH
AIES 18 o



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIO
EEEH WD

(i)  As for the public infrastructure construction business, the Group
suffered slower progress in the early-stage development compared
with the original plan, due to the land acquisition and planning progress
of the Baoding Government. Meanwhile, in relation to public
infrastructure construction projects, the Group has almost completed
its development and construction for government-tendered projects,
without any new untendered projects. This caused a drastic decline in
investment under the Group’s Baoding Donghu Project during the
Reporting Period, and much less revenue and profit generated to the
Group. Meanwhile, due to the tariff adjustment and subsequent
settlement for the Baoding Donghu Project by the Baoding
Government, the Group had to make provisions for contract assets in
the financial statements of the Reporting Period for its income tax,
certain expenses and related profits recorded in the previous years,
which directly increased the Group’s loss before income tax of
approximately RMB47,815,000 during the Reporting Period.

(i) As for the Group’s financial assets arising from the investment activities
in the recent years, due to repayment delays and other uncertainties,
the management made a provision of approximately RMB94,889,000
for financial assets at amortized cost, thereby resulting in a direct
increase of the same amount in the Group’s loss before income tax
during the Reporting Period.

The Board is of the view that although such considerable amounts of the
above provisions exerted a significant impact on the Group’s performance
during the Reporting Period, the Group maintained stable development of its
core solar power plants and online cloud platform businesses. Currently, the
public infrastructure construction business accounted for merely 34.7% of its
total development, with an untapped scale of approximately 65.3% and an
aggregate investment amount of approximately RMB2,070,000,000 left for
the future. In the long run, the Group is expected to embrace healthier
financial position.

nE  F3 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED T

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s smart energy business, positioned as comprehensive energy
services for the user side, mainly serves to meet the demands from
customers including industrial, commercial and residential sectors as well as
public institutions. The Group provides its customers with a full range of smart
energy comprehensive utilization services based on various energy resources
including electricity, heat and gas by leveraging on its smart energy cloud
platform (the “Cloud Platform”) with proprietary intellectual property rights, to
help customers improve their energy utilization efficiency and reduce energy
consumption cost, whereby building a diversified, clean and low-carbon
energy supply system.

The Group works to realize the above business objectives by integrating its
energy systems with internet technology. On one hand, the Group acquires
premium energy assets and projects by expanding its offline business in
comprehensive energy supply such as electricity, heat and gas, and
generates stable operation and investment returns from operating and
managing such assets. On the other hand, the Group uploads the real-time
data of electricity, heat and gas consumption of its industrial and commercial
enterprises and residential users to the Cloud Platform, integrates and
analyzes such big data, and taps into the energy consumption potential of
customers, so as to provide them with other full industrial chain services,
including multi-energy complementation of electricity, heat and gas, smart
operation and maintenance, energy trade, energy efficiency analysis, and
consultancy management to energy finance and energy big data.

Given the uncertainties in industry development during the Reporting Period,
the Group’s offline energy business mainly focused on stabilizing and
improving the operation of its existing solar power plants, in tandem with
prioritizing risk control as well as sorting out and optimizing the original
investment structure.
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In respect of the solar power business, the Group held the same 11 solar
power plants with the same aggregate installed capacity of approximately 64
MW during the Reporting Period as in the corresponding period of last year.
Out of the 11 plants, 10 were industrial and commercial distributed solar
power plants and one was a ground power plant. In spite of their natural
attenuation, the Group’s solar power plants delivered a historic new high in
power generation during the Reporting Period, by improving technology and
enhancing operation and maintenance management. For the Reporting
Period, power generation totaled approximately 80,724 MWh (for the same
period of 2018: 75,044 MWh). With respect to the home photovoltaic system
business, the national policy in 2018 has a continuous impact on the solar
power industry. Although the country promulgated the subsidies policy on
solar power business in 2019, it was announced late and officially
implemented from 1 July 2019, with a substantial reduction in subsidies (from
RMBO0.37 per kWh to RMBO0.18 per kWh, decreased by RMB0.19 per kWh)
with an imposition of quota control (from the previous unlimited scale to a cap
of around 3.5 GW). The quota for subsidies in the home photovoltaic industry
in 2019 had been all utilised as of October 2019. In view of such a slash in
subsidies and a squeezed profit margin, the Group mainly worked on
digesting the inventories of its home photovoltaic system business from 2018,
with limited expansion for new business during the Reporting Period.

In respect of the heating business, the Group mainly focused on the
operations of the distributed gas heating projects which had already been
established during the Reporting Period. Meanwhile, the Group reassessed
the investment returns and risks for some of its heating projects, withdrew
from the investment projects that failed to meet the performance target, and
invested more in projects with better growth to ensure investment returns and
control investment risks. During the Reporting Period, the Group withdrew its
40% equity interests investment in Shandong Hailifeng Clean Energy Joint
Stock Co., Ltd." (ILFEFLERERRHARLDA) (“Hailifeng”) and
invested in the 40% equity interests in Gao Bei Dian City Long Chuang
Central Heating Company Limited* (=& )& & 8l&E P E 2GR A R)
(“Longchuang Heating”), a subsidiary of a connected person. In the future,
subject to the actual operation and financial conditions of Longchuang
Heating, the fulfilment of profit guarantee and other factors, the Group is
entitled to, at any time, further increase its equity interests in Longchuang
Heating to at least 51% and therefore Longchuang Heating may become a
subsidiary of the Company. Longchuang Heating currently operates a
centralized heat supply project in Gaobeidian City, Hebei Province, covering
an aggregate area of over 6 million sq.m. It also plans to boost its heat supply
capacity by another 14,700,000 sg.m. by 2031. In addition, the Group
invested in and operated part of the campus hot water business during the
Reporting Period, with a coverage of approximately 12,000 students.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED T

In respect of incremental power distribution grids, the Group optimized and
reconstructed its original assets and operation during the Reporting Period,
with an effort to maximize the effectiveness of its assets. In July 2019, the
Group established a power distribution network joint venture with two local
state-owned enterprises via its subsidiary in Xinjiang, to make full use of the
existing transformer station assets of the Group at Xinjang HMAC Hefeng
Industrial Park. Such a move has also provided an opportunity for the Group
to engage in capacity expansion of the Industrial Park in the future.

We work to improve the efficiency of our energy utilisation through big data
processing and intelligent management at the Cloud Platform, to ensure the
reliability and stability of energy supply and attain optimized operation, less
energy consumption and better user experience. All the solar power plants of
the Group are connected to the Cloud Platform, which is capable of
monitoring the power generation and operation of each power plant in real
time, as well as analyzing and comparing with the operation of the power
plants, eliminating breakdowns in a timely manner, and increasing the power
generation of the power plants when necessary. The Group’s distributed gas
heating business enables gas module furnaces to maintain optimal
combustion efficiency in various environments through intelligent management
and control. Project data such as the temperature of the supply and return
water collected by sensors at the equipment terminal are transmitted to the
Cloud Platform through 4G modules. Operation and maintenance personnel
can design equipment operation strategies based on such data and give
instructions via the Cloud Platform. At the same time, with remote intelligent
management and control, we can timely respond to changes in weather and
working conditions, adjust operating parameters and improve energy
efficiency. In terms of the campus hot water business, the Group leverages
on the eco-campus Internet of Things and Big Data Platform, which can
automatically collect energy consumption data and generate charts and
energy consumption audit reports in various forms, to achieve dynamic
monitoring on energy consumption, prepare the optimum operational plan for
higher energy efficiency and more reliable hot water supply, and provide the
best solution to energy-saving operation.
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In the future, the Group will continue to strengthen its technological research
and development and investment on the Cloud Platform, so as to effectively
support and serve data access to and business development of the Group in
respect of the segments of electricity, heat, and gas.

During the Reporting Period, the smart energy business contributed
approximately RMB116,806,000 in revenue to the Group (for the same period
of 2018: RMB529,258,000), representing a decrease of approximately 77.9%
as compared to the same period of last year; and the loss attributable to
owners of the Company was approximately RMB193,267,000 (for the same
period of 2018: profit attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB130,063,000), representing a decrease of approximately 248.6% as
compared to the same period of last year. The decrease in revenue and profit
was mainly attributable to substantially lower revenue and profit generated by
the Group from its home photovoltaic system business during the Reporting
Period under the impact of the national policies on solar power industry, and
a considerable amount of provision made by the management for the trade
receivables of the home photovoltaic system business.

Public Infrastructure Construction Business

The public infrastructure construction business represents such construction
business under the Baoding Donghu Project in Baoding City, Hebei Province,
and the related pre-investment and post-construction operation management
business. During the Reporting Period, the public infrastructure construction
business generated revenue of approximately RMB30,654,000 for the Group (for
the same period of 2018: RMB179,235,000), with loss attributable to owners
of the Company amounting to approximately RMB48,915,000 (for the same
period of 2018: profit attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB15,107,000). The decrease in revenue and profit was mainly attributable
to the fact that the Group’s revenue and profit fell significantly due to a major
decline in investment under the Baoding Donghu Project during the Reporting
Period, and that due to the settlement and tariff adjustment for the project by
the Baoding Government, the Group made a provision of approximately
RMB47,815,000 during the Reporting Period (for the same period of 2018:
nil) for its income tax, certain expenses and related profits recorded in the
previous years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED T

The above provision was made on a one-off basis. A wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group signed a new supplementary agreement with the Baoding
Government in respect of the Baoding Donghu Project in December 2019, to
agree on tariff settlement and revenue recognition etc. of the project. Hence,
the provision will not affect the Group’s future development, investment and
revenue recognition of the project. For details, please refer to the
announcement issued by the Company on 16 December 2019.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK FOR 2020

2020 is destined to be an unusual year. The Pandemic that spread across the
world, together with other unsettling factors, has added to the woes of the
already sluggish global economy. The Chinese economy has also suffered
such material adverse impacts as a result, with all industries exposed to
varying degrees of shock and impact.

Facing the difficulty and complexity of external economic situation, we will
continue to uphold our strategy of stable operation, with enhanced meticulous
management and operation management in 2020. In respect of the Group’s
11 solar power plants and distributed heating business, the Group’s
customers mainly comprised enterprises and schools who suspended their
operations due to the Pandemic. This is expected to leave a considerable
impact upon the Group’s revenue from power generation and heat supply in
the first quarter. However, each first quarter usually sees a low electricity
consumption by enterprises due to the Chinese New Year, and the distributed
heating business accounted for a relatively small proportion of the Group’s
total revenue and profit. With the Pandemic getting under control in China,
enterprises have made great efforts to resume work, which allows us to
expect no material adverse impact from the Pandemic on the Group’s
financial performance in 2020. Meanwhile, the Group’s public infrastructure
construction business in Baoding Donghu has an untapped development
capacity of more than RMB2 billion, with subsequent investment and
development to take place successively according to the government’s
development plan and progress.
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In the meantime, we will continue to optimize our business structure.
Considering that the solar power industry in the PRC is in the transition period
from subsidy withdrawal to grid parity, the industry is confronted by quite
limited profit margin and huge pressure on cash flow pressure. In 2020, we
will mainly focus on the operation of the existing solar power plants, and
actively control the business scale of the home photovoltaic system business
with low profit margins. In respect of the heating business, the nationwide
implementation of energy conservation and emissions reduction policies and
the increasing urbanization rate in China have created a continuous stream of
huge demand for the urban centralized heating and distributed clean heating
markets. Moreover, the heating business, especially the urban centralized
heating business, is characteristic of less exposure to external economic
conditions, strong industry stability and good cash flow. In 2020, we will
further develop the heating business, particularly the urban centralized heating
business, based on our experience of investment and operation management
in the heating industry (including distributed heating and urban centralized
heating). At the same time, we will make full use of the big data analysis and
processing capabilities of the Cloud Platform, reduce the energy consumption
of heating projects, and improve energy efficiency, meticulous management
and asset management capabilities, in order to attain higher project returns.
We will also explore investment and development in other clean energy
businesses when opportunities arise.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and Gross Profit

The Group’s revenue and gross profit for the Reporting Period amounted to
RMB147,460,000 (for the same period of 2018: RMB708,493,000) and
RMB78,674,000 (for the same period of 2018: RMB243,831,000),
respectively. The gross profit margin was 53.4% (for the same period of 2018:
34.4%).

The significant decrease in revenue from the same period of last year was
primarily attributable to the major decline in the Group’s revenue and profit
from the home photovoltaic system and public infrastructure construction
businesses during the Reporting Period. The increase in gross profit margin
from the same period of last year was primarily attributable to the changes in
revenue structure, solar power plants which have higher gross profit margin
and increase in the percentage of smart energy services to revenue.
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The Group incurred selling and distribution expenses of RMB1,740,000 for
the Reporting Period (for the same period of 2018: RMB22,146,000),
representing a decrease of 92.1% as compared to last year, which was
primarily attributable to the less development of the smart energy business,
especially the home photovoltaic system business.

The Group incurred administrative expenses of RMB72,212,000 for the
Reporting Period (for the same period of 2018: RMB89,234,000),
representing a decrease of 19.1% as compared to last year, primarily
because of the decrease in business volume during the Reporting Period
which resulted in less relevant operation expenses.

During the Reporting Period, the Group made impairment provisions of
RMB156,887,000 for the trade receivables of home photovoltaic system
business (for the same period of 2018: RMB14,861,000). In this regard, the
management has assessed the expected credit loss to determine the
recoverable amount of trade receivables. For this purpose, the management
has considered the following factors, including but not limited to (1) the
negative impact of the national control policy on the solar power industry and
the Group’s home photovoltaic system business agents and distributors in
the past two years; (2) the future development trends of the Chinese solar
power industry, particularly the home photovoltaic system business; (3) the
site visits and analysis on current operations, assets and liabilities and actual
repayment ability of major distributors; and (4) the capabilities of the future
business development of major distributors and the possible subsequent
cooperation with the Group. In response to the situation of different
distributors, the Company’s management has continued to increase trade
receivables collection through legal means, bank account supervision, and
active communication with the management of the other party. Further details
regarding the bad debt provisions for trade receivables are set out in note 26
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Impairment Provisions for Financial Assets at
Amortised Cost

During the Reporting Period, the Group made impairment provisions of
RMB94,889,000 for financial assets at amortised cost arising from the
previous investment process (for the same period of 2018: RMB900,000). For
this purpose, the management mainly considered the delayed repayment and
other uncertainties in relation to relevant financial assets at amortised cost as
well as the extreme challenges from the Chinese market, and made such bad
debt provisions. In response to different situations, the management of the
Company resorted to legal actions, account seizure, property preservation,
and active communications with the management of the other party, to
recover relevant amounts and safeguard the legitimate rights and interests of
the Group. Further details regarding the impairment provisions of financial
assets at amortised cost are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Finance Expenses — Net

Net finance expenses amounted to RMB22,528,000 for the Reporting Period (for
the same period of 2018: RMB9,308,000), representing an increase of
142.0% as compared to last year, primarily because the borrowing interests
of RMB19,927,000 for public infrastructure construction projects was
expensed.

Income Tax Credit/(Expense)

Income tax credit amounted to RMB64,454,000 for the Reporting Period (for
the same period of 2018: income tax expense of RMB10,386,000),
representing a decrease of 720.6% in income tax expense as compared to
last year, primarily because bad debts provision was made for trade
receivables and financial assets measured at amortised cost, which resulted
in income tax expense offset by the deferred income tax assets recognised.
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The Group held three financial assets for investment purpose as at the end of
the Reporting Period, which were stated at fair value:

(1)

The Group held shares in an unlisted investment fund company, Giga
Opportunities Fund Ltd., an independent third party, at the total
investment cost of HK$90,000,000 (equivalent to RMB78,859,000).
The Group had the intention of holding it as short to medium term
investment redeemable upon application to the fund manager, which
allowed better investment flexibility, and expected to gain profit dividend
and capital appreciation from the fund. The fund was stated at fair
value and amounted to HK$80,333,000 (equivalent to RMB71,960,000)
as at 31 December 2019 (as at 31 December 2018: HK$78,586,000,
equivalent to RMB68,858,000), with a fair value gain of approximately
HK$1,747,000 (equivalent to RMB1,537,000) recognised for the
Reporting Period (for the same period of 2018: loss of approximately
HK$11,414,000, equivalent to approximately RMB10,001,000). The
carrying amount of the fund represented approximately 3.9% (as
at 31 December 2018: 3.2%) of the total assets of the Group and
approximately 45.9% (as at 31 December 2018: 41.9%) of the portfolio
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as at 31 December
2019.

The Group held shares in an unlisted investment fund, Yue Xiu Stable
Income Segregated Portfolio, an independent third-party investment
fund, at the investment cost of HK$88,800,000 (equivalent to
RMB77,806,000). The Group had the intention of holding it as short to
medium term investment redeemable upon application to the fund
manager, which allowed better investment flexibility, and expected to
gain capital appreciation from the fund. The fund, stated at fair value,
amounted to HK$89,452,000 (equivalent to RMB80,130,000) as at
31 December 2019 (as at 31 December 2018: HK$90,642,000, which
was equivalent to RMB79,420,000), with a fair value loss of
approximately HK$1,190,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,047,000) recognized for the Reporting Period (for the same
period of 2018: gain of approximately HK$1,842,000, equivalent to
approximately RMB1,614,000). The carrying amount of the fund
represented approximately 4.3% (as at 31 December 2018: 3.7%) of
the total assets of the Group, and approximately 51.0% (as at
31 December 2018: 48.3%) of the portfolio of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss as at 31 December 2019.
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The Group held the unlisted exchangeable corporate bonds due on
31 December 2020 in the principal amount of HK$10,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB8,762,000) at a coupon rate of 13.5% per annum, issued by
Supreme Trillion Development Limited, an independent third party on
11 September 2018. The Group may exercise the exchangeable rights
to convert the whole or part of the exchangeable corporate bonds into
the ordinary shares of Asia Interactive Content Holdings Limited, a
subsidiary of Supreme Trillion Development Limited, representing
approximately 8.5% or 10% (as the case may be) of its issued share
capital.

During the Reporting Period, the Group requested to redeem the
exchangeable corporate bonds. The remaining principal amount of the
exchangeable corporate bonds was HK$5,455,000 as at 31 December 2019
(equivalent to RMB4,887,000), with a fair value of HK$5,485,000
(equivalent to RMB4,913,000) (as at 31 December 2018:
HK$10,000,000, equivalent to RMB8,762,000). During the Reporting
Period, the exchangeable corporate bonds generated a fair value gain
of approximately HK$30,000 (equivalent to RMB26,000) (for the same
period of 2018: nil). As at 31 December 2019, the book value of the
exchangeable bonds accounted for approximately 0.3% of the total
assets of the Group (as at 31 December 2018: 0.4%) and
approximately 3.1% of the portfolio of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (as at 31 December 2018: 5.3%).

The Group’s investments primarily consist of long-term projects in the area of
smart energy and public infrastructure construction, which generally take an
extended period of time to generate positive cash flows. In the event of any
unexpected event that has a negative impact on the business and prospects
of the smart energy industry, the Group’s overall business performance may
be affected. In light of the above, as part of the Group’s development plan
and risk control, in the financial year 2018, the Board considered that the
inclusion of investment in financial assets would help diversify its asset and
investment portfolio and reduce the impact of any market risk on the overall
business of the Group.
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The strategy of the Group with respect to the investment in financial assets is
not to invest in speculative securities but mainly in investments with lower
risks, with the initial investments focusing on investment funds managed by
qualified and licensed investment managers. Such funds invest in low-risk
underlying assets with relative low price volatility, high liquidity, short to
medium term and/or stable income stream.

Cash position

As at 31 December 2019, bank balances and cash amounted to
approximately RMB98,616,000 (as at 31 December 2018: RMB164,136,000),
of which approximately RMB66,388,000 (as at 31 December 2018:
RMB1,219,000) was restricted bank balances (mainly used for the expenses
incurred by the Baoding Donghu Project). Such decrease in bank balances
and cash was mainly due to the capital expenditures and financing expenses
incurred by the smart energy business.

Total current assets and liquidity ratio

As at 31 December 2019, total current assets and liquidity ratio (total current
assets/total current liabilities) were approximately RMB925,343,000 (as at 31
December 2018: RMB1,370,646,000) and 2.53 (as at 31 December 2018:
9.75). The decrease in total current assets came from fewer trade and other
receivables, while the increase in liquidity ratio was due to a net increase of
RMB265,800,000 in the balance of current bank borrowings in 2019.

External borrowings and pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had external borrowings of
RMB534,400,000 (as at 31 December 2018: RMB567,600,000), of which
RMB259,400,000 was secured by the machinery of solar power plants with a
carrying amount of RMB302,146,000 and the future receivable collection right
of certain subsidiaries (as at 31 December 2018: RMB282,600,000 was
secured by the machinery of solar power plants with a carrying amount of
RMB303,731,000 and the future receivable collection right of certain
subsidiaries); and RMB275,000,000 was secured by the undertakings made
by the related parties of the Group (as at 31 December 2018:
RMB285,000,000).
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Gearing ratio
The following table sets out the calculation of the gearing ratios of the Group
as at the dates indicated:

BEk=E
TRBIIALENFR BB R
HE

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E-N\F

+=—H=+—-H +=ZA=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ET ARBEF T

Bank loans RITEX 534,400 567,600
Lease liabilities HEBE 15,144 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents WIRERIREEEY (82,228) (162,917)
Restricted cash 2R 53R & (66,388) (1,219)

Net debt B F58 450,928 403,464
Total equity AR 1,225,093 1,479,949
Total capital (Net debt plus total equity) BER (B FREMEREEE) 1,676,020 1,883,413
Gearing ratio (Net debt/total capital) BELR(EEFEEEKR) 26.9% 21.4%

As at 31 December 2019, the gearing ratio of the Group was 26.9%,
representing an increase of 5.5 percentage points as compared to 21.4% as
at 31 December 2018. The increase was primarily due to the decrease in
cash and cash equivalents held and the decrease in total equity.

Long-term and short-term debts accounted for 44.0% and 56.0%,
respectively (as at 31 December 2018: 94.2% and 5.8%), of which the
borrowings of RMB259,400,000 of solar power plants were gradually settled
by the proceeds from electricity sales, and the borrowings of
RMB275,000,000 for the Baoding Donghu Project will be settled by the
existing monetary funds and the project capital paid by Baoding Government
in 2020. Therefore, the Group was not exposed to any significant insolvency
risk.
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T NF+ZA=+—H: 942%K58%)H
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Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from external borrowings. During
the Reporting Period, the interest rates of external borrowings ranged from
5.39% to 7.00% per annum (for the same period of 2018: 5.39% to 7.00%
per annum). In particular, the interests on the borrowings incurred by the
Baoding Donghu Project were borne by the government, with no exposure to
any interest rate risk thereon. The interest rate applicable to the borrowings
for solar power plants was 10% to 15% over the same period base lending
rate of the People’s Bank of China. The source of risk lies in the fluctuations
in China’s interest rate policies. Nevertheless, the Group expects that the
interest rate risk will have no material impact on the Group’s consolidated
profit or loss.

As the Group’s principal activities are carried out in the PRC, the Group’s
transactions are mainly denominated in Renminbi, which is not freely
convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign exchange transactions involving
Renminbi must take place through the People’s Bank of China or other
institutions authorized to buy and sell foreign exchange. The exchange rates
adopted for foreign exchange transactions are the rates of exchange quoted
by the People’s Bank of China that are determined largely by supply and
demand.

The Group currently does not have a policy on foreign currency risk as it had
minimal transactions denominated in foreign currencies during the Reporting
Period, and the impact of foreign currency risk on the Group’s operation is
minimal.

As at 31 December 2019, investment commitments amounted to
RMB101,600,000 (as at 31 December 2018: 101,600,000), which were
mainly the Group’s obligations of capital contribution to its associate Longyao
(Beijing) Clean Energy Technology Company Limited (120 5)E 2 8L IRRHY
AR /A 7)) (“Longyao Beijing”) that shall be fulfilled before 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities (as at 31 December 2018: Nil).
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, INVESTMENT
AND DISPOSAL

Material Acquisitions and Investment

1.

Investment in Longchuang Heating

On 21 May 2019, Beijing Longguang Energy Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Beijing Longguang”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a capital increase agreement (the “Capital
Increase Agreement”) with Hebei Julin Chuanghe Cultural
Communication Limited (“Hebei Julin”) and Longchuang Heating.
Pursuant to the Capital Increase Agreement, Beijing Longguang
conditionally agreed to acquire 40% equity interests in Longchuang
Heating by contributing RMB245,000,000 to the capital of Longchuang
Heating. Longchuang Heating mainly focuses on providing heating
service in Gaobeidian City, Hebei Province, the PRC, with the first
phase of its heat supply service able to provide heating service to an
aggregated area of over 6,000,000 sg.m. Longchuang Heating also
plans to complete the second phase of its heat supply project by the
year 2031, to increase its heat supply capacity by another 14,700,000 sg.m.

Through this transaction, the Group is expected to increase its market
share in the centralized heating industry in Hebei Province. The
transaction was approved at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company on 26 June 2019, with the industry and commerce
registration of the capital injection completed on 26 June 2019. Upon
completion, Longchuang Heating became an associate of the
Company. Equity accounting has been applied to recognise the share
of profit or loss of Longchuang Heating.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
21 May 2019 and 26 June 2019, and the circular of the Company
dated 11 June 2019.
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Establishment of Joint Venture for Incremental
Power Distribution Grids

On 2 July 2019, HMAC Sifang Dianjin Energy Co., Ltd.* (Fifh = BR 5
hESENFESERERAT) (“Sifang Dianjin”), an indirect 95%
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a joint venture
agreement (the “Joint Venture Agreement”) with HMAC Urban
Development and Investment Co., Ltd.* (FIfh e BB & 88 %M mE
IR AR A T) (the “First Investor’) and HMAC Industrial Park
Development and Investment Co., Ltd.* (R 5= BB 5 i &4 % E &
I E R AR AT) (the “Second Investor”). Pursuant to the Joint
Venture Agreement, the parties agreed to establish a joint venture (the
“Joint Venture”) to principally engage in the investment, construction,
operation and management of the incremental power distribution grids
at Hefeng Industrial Park. The registered capital of the Joint Venture is
RMB100,000,000, and is contributed as to 79%, 20% and 1% by
Sifang Dianjin, the First Investor and the Second Investor, respectively.
The Joint Venture was established on 12 July 2019. After its
establishment, the Joint Venture became a subsidiary of the Group and
its financial results have been consolidated into the financial statements
of the Group.

The establishment of the Joint Venture is expected to leverage on the
strength and resources of the parties, enable the Group to utilize the
capacity of its existing transformer station at HMAC Hefeng Industrial
Park, and provide the Group with the opportunity to participate in the
capacity expansion at the industrial park in the future. This, in turn, is
expected to ensure a stable income stream for the Group as well as
provide it with necessary experience in the operation and management
of incremental power distribution grids.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
2 July 2019.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other material acquisition
and investment during the Reporting Period.
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Material Disposal

As Hailifeng failed to meet the performance target for the year ended
31 December 2018, Beijing Longguang elected to exercise a put option (the
“Put Option”). Beijing Longguang, Shengli Oilfield Lifeng Industrial Group Co.,
Ltd.* (“Shengli Oilfield Lifeng”) and Hailifeng entered into a repurchase
agreement (the “Repurchase Agreement”) on 29 March 2019. Pursuant to
the Repurchase Agreement, Shengli Qilfield Lifeng agreed to purchase 40%
equity interests in Hailifeng held by Beijing Longguang for a consideration of
RMB60,000,001. In addition, Beijing Longguang is entitled to an aggregate
amount of distributable profit and Put Option of Hailifeng of RMB16,000,000
for the year 2018. During the Reporting Period, Hailifeng paid to Beijing
Longguang the above-mentioned RMB16,000,000 in accordance to the
Repurchase Agreement, with the remaining consideration of RMB60,000,001
(the “Consideration”) and investment gain of RMB2,767,000 for the first half
of 2019 yet to be paid by Shengli Qilfield Lifeng and Haifeng. Although the
Group has been actively taking various measures to negotiate with Shengli
Qilfield Lifeng and Hailifeng, no repayment arrangement has been reached so
far. In order to protect the interests of the Group, Beijing Longguang initiated
legal proceedings at Beijing Second Intermediate People’s Court in
November 2019, accusing that, among others, (i) Shengli Oilfield Lifeng shall
pay the Consideration plus the related default payment and legal fees; and (i)
Hailifeng shall bear the incidental liability for the above-mentioned payment
obligation of Shengli Qilfield Lifeng. Meanwhile, Beijing Longguang has
applied for, and the court has completed, the preservation measures for the
relevant properties of Shengli Oilfield Lifeng and Hailifeng.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 26 July 2018, 29 March 2019, and 13 December 2019.

Given the uncertainty over the recovery of the Consideration, after taking into
account the operating conditions and cash flows of Hailifeng, the
management made a provision of approximately RMB15,162,000 for the
Consideration and receivable investment gain during the Reporting Period.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other material disposal during
the Reporting Period.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

On 25 January 2018, the Company conducted a rights issue on the basis of
one rights share for every two shares held on the record date, by issuing
459,474,000 rights shares at the subscription price of HK$1.20 per rights
share. The par value of rights shares was HK$0.01 each. The theoretical
ex-rights price calculated based on the closing price of HK$2.05 per share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on the last trading day, being 25 January 2018, was
approximately HK$1.77 per share. The issuance of rights shares financed the
requirements of the Group’s development, offered all the qualified
Shareholders an equal opportunity to subscribe for their pro-rata provisional
allotment of the rights shares without diluting their respective shareholding,
and provided them with an opportunity to participate in the future
development of the Group.

The Company completed the rights issue on the basis of one rights share for
every two shares by placing and issuing an aggregate of 459,474,000 shares
on 22 March 2018. The gross proceeds from the rights issue were
approximately HK$551 million, with the net proceeds of approximately
HK$549 million and the net price per rights share of approximately HK$1.19.

The planned uses of the net proceeds from the rights issue were as follows: (a)
approximately HK$384 million, being 70% of the net proceeds, for the
development of smart energy and solar power business; and (b)
approximately HK$165 million, being 30% of the net proceeds, as general
working capital of the Group.
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The analysis of the planned and actual uses of the net proceeds from the
rights issue as at 31 December 2019 is set out below:

A" F3R 2019

R-ZZTZ—-NAEFE+-A=+—8B #HEREXK
HFENASARARERFERSBNO>TE
R

Amount

Balance actually Balance

as at utilized during as at

Intended use 31 December the Reporting 31 December

of proceeds 2018 Period 2019

R=ZZE-NF R-B—h&E

fi8REZ t=ZHA=+—- RBEHRE +=A=+-H

REAR Bty BERAEE BT HRIE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FHET FHT THET
70% used for developing smart T0%ANEREE

energy and solar power business 828 } A [5 BE 2 7% 384,000 37,000 (37,000) —
30% used as general working 30%AE— &8

capital =k 165,000 — — —

549,000 37,000 (37,000) —

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group had 85 employees as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018:
170 employees). The decrease in the number of employees was primarily due
to the contraction of the Group’s smart energy business, especially the home
photovoltaic system business. Employees were remunerated according to the
nature of their positions, individual qualification, performance, work experience
and market trends, and subject to periodic reviews based on their
performance. Meanwhile, to attract and retain high-caliber employees to
ensure smooth operation and cater for the Group’s constant expansion, the
Group offers competitive remuneration and benefit packages to employees at
different levels, including discretionary bonuses, various training programmes,
sponsorship for further study and share option schemes for the benefit of the
directors and eligible employees of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITIES

With smart energy and public infrastructure construction business as its
principal business, the Group is committed to protecting the environment and
mitigating the impact of its operations on the environment. During the
Reporting Period, the Group complied with the requirements of the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group’s operations.
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In the course of developing its smart energy and public infrastructure
construction businesses, the Group should mainly comply with the
requirements and restrictions under the following environmental laws and
regulations, namely, the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China ({7 #E A E #£ F1 B I8 35 (R & X)), the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution ({1 2 A

HFNE K55 2B 48 0%)), the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Preventlon and Control of Atmospheric Pollution ({1 #& A R £ A E X 755
Fh387%)), the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste ({FF Z A R X 0
BEEE Y 5 R IRIFPH RE)), the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Appraising of Environment Impacts ((F 2 A R £ A B IR R £ E X))
and the Regulations on the Administration of Environmental Protection of
Construction Projects ((GZ:%18 BIRIBREEIEIEH)). The Group has
paid consistent attention to complying with the laws and regulations on
environmental protection. During the Reporting Period, the Group complied
with the relevant laws and regulations on environmental protection that have
a material impact on the Group.

We also recognize the importance of maintaining mutually beneficial
relationships with stakeholders,
suppliers and local communities. Their support is vital to the Group’s
sustainable development. We pay close attention to the needs of all our
stakeholders, offer solutions to addressing their needs and continuously
interact with them in ways that are conducive to the sustainable growth of the
Company, the industry and the community. For details of the Group’s
environmental, social and governance report for 2019, please refer to the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of the Company which is
expected be issued before the end of May 2020.

including our employees, customers,

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group operates its businesses mainly in Mainland China. The
development and operation of the Group’s smart energy and public
infrastructure construction businesses in the PRC are mainly regulated by the
local laws and regulations on renewable energy, electricity supply and
construction projects, as well as various policies and industry guidelines
issued by such local governments. There was no incident of non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that had or would have a significant
impact on the Company during the Reporting Period.

* For identification purpose only
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are smart energy business, public
infrastructure construction and the related preliminary investment and post-
construction operation management business, with gradual expansion and
diversification to other clean energy business. The principal activities and
other particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note
19 to the audited consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in the
“Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss” on pages 103 to 104 of this
annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and assets, liabilities and equity of the
Group for the last five financial years and the financial key performance
indicators of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out on page 216 of
this annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The business review for the Reporting Period and an indication of likely future
development in the business of the Company are set out in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
of this annual report. Our risk management system and a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that the Company may be facing are provided
in the “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).
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DIVIDENDS POLICY

The Company adopted a dividend policy (the “Policy”) which can be
downloaded from the Company’s website www.longitech.hk.

1.

Purpose

The Policy is made under the premises that the Company fully
considers and guards the interests of all Shareholders, and starts from
actual business operation, and on the basis of the Company’s various
expenditures, maintaining financial stability and autonomy, and realizing
the Company’s sustained, stable and healthy development.

Policy

2.1

2.2

2.3

Under the Policy, the Board will consider factors such as the
Company’s annual performance, cash flow performance, future
financing needs, major capital expenditures, business operating
model, industrial development trends, the Company’s
development stage and strategic planning etc,. in order to
decided on cash dividend or stock dividend.

Subject to applicable laws and regulations and the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of
Association”), the Company may pay out cash dividends when
the Company’s distributable profit is positive and the Company’s
cash flow can cover the Company’s daily operation and
sustainable development requirement. When the Company pays
out cash dividend, the proportion of cash dividend should be or
not less than 20%-50% of the given year’s distributable profit
attributable to the Shareholder. This should serve as a general
but not mandatory standard for the Board when considering
paying out dividend.

In complying with the requirements of the applicable laws, rules
and regulations and the Articles of Association and in order to
ensure the Company in maintaining a reasonable share capital
and shareholding structure, in the case the Company’s
attributable profit is positive, the Company may issue scrip
dividend, so as to reward the Shareholders for investment, to
share the profit of the Company and to maintain the valuation of
the Company’s stock within a reasonable range.
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3. Review

The Board will review the Policy on a regular basis to ensure that the
Policy is in line with market practice and supports the Company’s
continuous development strategy.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to ascertain the entittements to attend and vote at the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on Monday, 22 June 2020 (the “Meeting”),
the transfer books and register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 17 June 2020 to Monday, 22 June 2020, both days
inclusive, during which period no share transfers can be registered. In order
to qualify for attending the Meeting, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Hong Kong branch share registrar
and transfer office of the Company, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30
p.m. on Tuesday, 16 June 2020.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 14 to the audited consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

Details of interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2019
are set out in note 30 to the audited consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into by the Group, or existed during the Reporting Period.

EERMESHRERERAT  Fi% 2019

o
[

3. B

EEeREHRAZBER  AERZK
REAMBEN LEIFARANE

BEREE -

BIEROBFERT

ﬁfiﬁjr— N\ _FF A=+ E](:E_Hﬂ
—BRTHEERRBEFAG (X&) RRK
ELERENER ARAAER_ZT_ZTFRX
A+tR(EH=)E-TE_TEFA=-+=
H(EH )R (2FEERMBE)EERHIER
NBFPELFE RFEERERERE A
BpEFXHERBEREAN _T_TF
NATARBERD) TFOHE=1T52H R
BIRRARNEBROBFPFELY) REEEF
BRARARGEIEREE L/ RERI183%E
B L5418) o

MR- BERRE

REEBRAREHREANYE BERRBE
HABHNAEREEZGES M B WKW T
140

E 0N 1% E

AEER -_ZE-AF+T-_A=+—BHFER
EEFBERAFEFREERREEMBERRM
730 °

B R4 89 165 R

BRRAFHRMAPEEIN  RAREHME - AR
B AT kD2 B AR R B A ek o

31



32

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited  Annual Report 2019

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEgWRE

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 29(a) to the audited consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

ISSUE OF SHARES

A review and discussion of the issue of Shares for the Reporting Period are
provided in the “Management Discussion and Analysis”.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS AND ENVIRONMENTAL
POLICIES

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the operations of the Group.

In the course of developing the smart energy and solar energy businesses,
the Group shall comply with the requirements and restrictions under the
environmental laws and regulations, in particular of: the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China (F2 2 A R BRI (R &%),
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Water Pollution (Fr3E A R MBS ZM87%), the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution (#
#= A RHEFBE AR 5L 4)%), the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste (FH 2 A
R LN B E B2 R Y5 2 IBE R 54 %), the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Appraising of Environment Impacts ({F 2 A R XA BEIR B 22 £ 5B E)
and the Regulations on the Administration of Environmental Protection of
Construction Projects (Z:%18 B IRIZRiE B2 EMH). The Group affirms the
importance of complying with the laws and regulations on environmental
protection. During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with the
laws and regulations on environmental protection that are of importance to
the Group.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the Reporting Period are set out in
note 38 to the audited consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands where the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro
rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Reporting
Period are set out in note 29(b) to the audited consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively in this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity Shareholders was RMB1,177,593,000 (31 December
2018: RMB1,149,044,000).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable donations during the Reporting Period
(2018: Nil).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Connected Transaction

The Group carried out the following connected transaction (other than
connected transactions that were fully exempted under Chapter 14A of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) during the Reporting Period:

Investment in Longchuang Heating

On 21 May 2019, Beijing Longguang, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into the Capital Increase Agreement with Hebei Julin
and Longchuang Heating. Pursuant to the Capital Increase Agreement,
Beijing Longguang conditionally agreed to acquire 40% equity interests of
Longchuang Heating by contributing RMB245,000,000 to the capital of
Longchuang Heating. Longchuang Heating mainly focuses on the provision of
heating service in Gao Bei Dian City, Hebei Province, the PRC with the first
phase of its heat supply service able to provide heating service to an
aggregated area of over 6 million sg.m. Longchuang Heating also plans to
complete the second phase heat supply project by the year 2031 to increase
its heat supply capacity by a further 14.7 million sg.m. Through this
transaction, the Group is expected to benefit from increasing its market share
in the central heating industry in Hebei Province.

Implications under the Listing Rules

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the Capital
Increase Agreement exceeds 5% but all are less than 25%, and as Hebei
Julin is a company held as to approximately 99% by Mr. Wei Shaojun, a non-
executive Director and the controlling Shareholder of the Company. Therefore,
Hebei Julin is a connected person of the Company. As a result, the entering
into the Capital Increase Agreement and the transaction contemplated
thereunder constituted a connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which was subject to the approval by the
independent Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”)
by way of poall.

The transaction was approved at the EGM of the Company held on 26 June
2019 and the registration of the capital injection with the relevant
administration for industry and commerce was completed on 26 June 2019.
Upon completion, Longchuang Heating became an associate of the
Company and equity accounting has applied to recognise the share of profits
or losses of Longchuang Heating.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 21 May
2019, 26 June 2019 and the circular of the Company dated 11 June 2019.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

The Group carried out the following continuing connected transactions (other
than continuing connected transactions that are fully exempted under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) during the Reporting Period:

1)

First Master Agreement and Second Master
Agreement in relation to the supply of electricity
First Master Agreement

On 10 July 2017, Gao Bei Dian City Guangshuo New Energy Group
Co. Ltd. (M[ETHEFEREBMERAT) (“Guangshuo”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
master agreement (“First Master Agreement”) with Longjitaihe
Property Co., Ltd. (“‘Longjitaihe Property”, [ M E X EPR A ) in
respect of the continuing connected transactions between members of
the Group and Longjitaihe Property and its subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the terms of the First Master Agreement, members of the
Group will lease roof top and related storage and operation spaces
from Longjitaihe Property and its subsidiaries for the installation of the
solar power plant facilities of the Group, and upon the solar power
plants get connected to the grid, supply electricity to Longjitaihe
Property and its subsidiaries.

No rent is payable by Guangshuo in respect of the leasing of roof tops
and other operational spaces from Longjitaihe Property. This
arrangement is in-line with common market practice and in-line with the
agreement commonly adopted by Guangshuo with independent third
party customers under similar circumstances.

In respect of the supply of electricity by Guangshuo to Longjitaihe
Property, the fees will be based on the unit price per kWh as published
by the Provincial Price Bureau of which the power station projects are
located at (which is subject to adjustment from time to time), with a
discount of no more than 20% being offered in comprehensive
consideration of the free rental of roof top and the electricity usage of
the landlord, etc. The transactions under such electricity purchase
agreement are conducted in the usual and ordinary course of business
of the Group on normal commercial terms, and under equivalent
conditions, the terms and consideration are similar to those offered to
independent third party customers.
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The First Master Agreement has a term of 20 years for the leases and a
term of 25 years for the supply of electricity. The annual caps under the
First Master Agreement in respect of the supply of electricity to
Longjitaihe Property during the term of the agreement will not exceed
RMB10,000,000.

Longjitaihe Property is a company controlled and owned by Mr. Wei
Shaojun, a non-executive Director and the controlling Shareholder of
the Company. The transactions contemplated under the First Master
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Second Master Agreement

On 10 July 2017, Guangshuo entered into another master agreement (the
“Second Master Agreement”) with Longjitaihe Industry Co., Ltd
(“Longjitaihe Industry”, EEFFMEFEAFRAF) (on 15 April 2020,
Longjitaine Industry was renamed “Longjitaihe Group Limited”, [
HFMEBAR A F) and Lightway Green Energy Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Lightway Green Energy”), in respect of the continuing connected
transactions between members of the Group and Longjitaihe Industry,
Lightway Green Energy and their subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the terms of the Second Master Agreement, members of
the Group will lease roof top and related storage and operation spaces
from Longjitaihe Industry and Lightway Green Energy and their
subsidiaries for the installation of the solar power plant facilities of the
Group, and upon the solar power plants get connected to the grid,
supply electricity to Longjitaihe Industry and Lightway Green Energy
and their subsidiaries.

No rent is payable by Guangshuo in respect of the leasing of roof tops
and other operational spaces from Longjitaihe Industry and Lightway
Green Energy under the Second Master Agreement. This arrangement
is in-line with common market practice and in-line with the agreement
commonly adopted by Guangshuo with independent third party
customers under similar circumstances.
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In respect of the supply of electricity by Guangshuo, the fees will be
based on the unit price per kWh as published by the Provincial Price
Bureau of which the power station projects are located at (which is
subject to adjustment from time to time), with a discount of no more
than 20% being offered in comprehensive consideration of the free
rental of roof top and the electricity usage of the landlord, etc. The
transactions under such electricity purchase agreement are conducted
in the usual and ordinary course of business of the Group on normal
commercial terms, and under equivalent conditions, the terms and
consideration are similar to those offered to independent third party
customers.

The Second Master Agreement has a term of 20 years for the leases
and a term of 25 years for the supply of electricity. The annual caps
under the Second Master Agreement in respect of the supply of
electricity to Longjitaine Industry and Lightway Green Energy during the
term of the agreement will not exceed RMB8,000,000.

Longjitaihe Industry and Lightway Green Energy are companies
respectively controlled and owned by Mr. Wei Shaojun and Mr. Wei
Qiang, both are the Directors of the Company. The transactions
contemplated under the Second Master Agreement constituted
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
27 April 2017, 9 June 2017, 10 July 2017 and the circular dated 22
May 2017.

The transaction amounts under the First Master Agreement and the
Second Master Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2019 were
approximately RMB1,113,000 and RMB7,722,000 respectively.
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In October 2018, Guangshuo completed the acquisition from Baoding
Lightway Green Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (“Baoding Lightway”, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Lightway Green Energy) a 10.2 MW
distributed solar power plant located at the Lightway Industrial Park,
Hebei Province, the PRC. Upon completion, Guangshuo supplied
electricity to Baoding Lightway, and Baoding Lightway has undertaken
that its annual minimum electricity consumption is not less than 10
million degrees per year (except the normal physical decline of 0.7%
per year), otherwise Baoding Lightway should pay the difference to
Guang Shuo. During the Reporting Period, Baoding Lightway has
fulfilled the above-mentioned minimum electricity consumption
compensation commitment. The transaction amount of electricity sold
by Guangshuo to Baoding Lightway is included in the Second Master
Agreement.

Implications under the Listing Rules

As the annual caps in respect of the continuing connected transactions
under the First Master Agreement and the Second Master Agreement
on an aggregate bases are expected to be more than 0.1% but less
than 5%, the First Master Agreement and the Second Master
Agreement are subject to the reporting, announcement and annual
review requirements and exempted from the independent Shareholders’
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Rule 14A.52 of the Listing Rules provides that the duration of continuing
connected transaction agreements must be fixed and reflect normal
commercial terms and, except in special circumstances, must not
exceed three years. As both the First Master Agreement and the
Second Master Agreement have a term of 20 years for the leases and
25 years for the supply of electricity, the Company has engaged
Southwest Securities (HK) Capital Limited, an independent financial
adviser, to review and analyse the terms of the First Master Agreement
and the Second Master Agreement and the independent financial
adviser has confirmed and formed the view that it was usual and
normal business practice for agreements in the nature of the First
Master Agreement and the Second Master Agreement to be of such
durations.
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(2) Loan Renewal Agreement

On 18 June 2018, the Company entered into a revolving loan
agreement (the “Revolving Loan Agreement”) with Longjitaihe
Industry, pursuant to which the Company has agreed to provide
through the Company or any of its subsidiaries to Longjitaihe Industry
or any one of its subsidiaries, and/or third parties designed by
Longjitaihe Industry, collectively or individually, a revolving loan in a
maximum principal amount of up to RMB110,000,000 for the availability
period commenced from 13 June 2018 and ended on 12 June 2019.
As the Revolving Loan Agreement has expired on 12 June 2019, the
Company entered into the Loan Renewal Agreement (the “Loan
Renewal Agreement”) with Longitaihe Industry on 13 June 2019 to
renew the Revolving Loan Agreement for another one year from 13
June 2019 to 12 June 2020, with the maximum principal amount of the
revolving loan adjusted from RMB110,000,000 to RMB45,000,000.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
13 June 2018 and 13 June 2019 and the supplemental announcement
of the Company dated 14 June 2019.

The maximum transaction amount under the Revolving Loan
Agreement for the period from 1 January 2019 to 12 June 2019 was
approximately RMB108,900,000.

The maximum transaction amount under the Loan Renewal Agreement
for the period from 13 June 2019 to 31 December 2019 was
approximately RMB44,932,000.

Implications under the Listing Rules

As at the date of the Loan Renewal Agreement , Longjitaihe Industry
was held as to 99% by Mr. Wei Shaojun, a non-executive Director and
the controlling Shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, the Loan
Renewal Agreement and the transaction contemplated thereunder
constituted continuing connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the transaction under
the Loan Renewal Agreement exceeded 0.1% but were less than 5%,
the transaction was only subject to reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements but were exempt from the circular and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.
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(3) Provision of management service to Longchuang
Heating
On 8 October 2018, Guangshuo, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a services agreement (the “Services
Agreement”) with Longchuang Heating, pursuant to which Guangshuo
has agreed to provide management service to Longchuang Heating for
the periods (i) between 1 November 2018 to 31 December 2018 (the
“Service Year 2018”) and (i) between 1 January 2019 to 30 March
2019 (the “Service Year 2019”).

The annual caps for the management services under the Services
Agreement are (i) RMB13,100,000 for the Service Year 2018; and (ii)
RMB21,900,000 for the Service Year 2019.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 8
October 2018.

The transaction amount for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
approximately RMB15,169,000.

Implications under the Listing Rules

Since Longchuang Heating is owned as to 99% by Mr. Wei Shaojun, a
non-executive Director and the controlling Shareholder of the Company,
Longchuang Heating is therefore a connected person and the
transactions contemplated under the Services Agreement constituted
continuing connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the provision of such
services on an aggregated basis were more than 0.1% but less than 5%,
the transactions contemplated under the Services Agreement were
subject to the reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements but were exempt from the circular and independent
Shareholder’s approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions set out above and have confirmed that the continuing
connected transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group; (i) on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii)
according to the agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued their
unqualified letter containing the auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions above-mentioned in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
submitted by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save for the connected transaction and the continuing connected
transactions disclosed above, the Board is of the view that those material
related party transactions disclosed in note 35 to the audited consolidated
financial statements as contained in this annual report do not constitute
“connected transactions” or “continuing connected transactions”, as the case
may be, that are subject to the reporting, announcement or independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the above connected transactions.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 68%
(2018: 86%) of the total sales for the Reporting Period and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to 21% (2018: 51%) of the total sales
for the Reporting Period. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 47% (2018: 72%) of the total purchase for the
Reporting Period and purchase from the Group’s largest supplier included
therein amounted to 19% (2018: 32%) of the total purchase for the Reporting
Period.

Of the five largest customers, Longchuang Heating is a company controlled
by Mr. Wei Shaojun, a non-executive Director and the controlling Shareholder
of the Company, and is thus a connected person of the Company. The
Group’s sales to Longchuang Heating amounted to 10% (2018: 3%) of the
total sales for the Reporting Period. For details, please refer to the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” (3) “Provision of management
service to Longchuang Heating” in the “ Report of Directors”.

Save as disclosed above, during the Reporting Period, none of the Directors
or any of their close associates or any Shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the number of issued
shares) had any interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, HEES BEFRERMUHEBHER
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands that employees are valuable assets. The Group AEEHBFEHEERSESEEE ' ALREHEAES
provides competitive remuneration package to attract and motivate the FH HEFHEFBURS|I R AEREE - K&
employees. The Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of @ FHIGIERENTMEB TR EZER
employees and makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market {EHFHEIUFEHTIHEIKE o

standard.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good relationship AEBNEHEEEINERP A R IFAE
with its suppliers and customers to fulfil its immediate and long-term goals. ¥ iEK HBE LR EREZEENEE M - K&
To maintain its brand competitiveness and dominant status, the Group ams AR FHE RN R I D R T E AL - 8 = [
at delivering constantly high standards of quality in the products and service & FI2MA& M — W EEE AR BE - R4
to its customers. During the Reporting Period, there was no material and ¥4 HifS - AN &= FE Bt fE g o B P I i 2%

significant dispute between the Group and its suppliers and/or customers. EEREEMERNFER
DIRECTORS =

The Directors during the Reporting Period and currently are as follows: RAFREAB R BAINESWT :
Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Wei Qiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) BoR e (EREFTBAEH)

Mr. Yuen Chi Ping (Vice-chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer) REFLRE (B EEFREETHAE)
Dr. Liu Zhengang 24 Wl 15 4

Non-executive Director FHITES

Mr. Wei Shaojun BOEXAE

Independent non-executive Directors BIYFHTES

Dr. Han Qinchun BREELT

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John mRASLE

Mr. Han Xiaoping BETEA

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association, at the IRIEZRFE108@)IE FEEAS L L F
forthcoming Meeting to be held, Mr. Wei Shaojun, Dr. Han Qinchun and Mr. %4 @B =HEE t+t haB L4 S B ¥ ET
Wong Yik Chung, John will retire from office as Directors, and being eligible, E=E— W 48R NEEER ST AE
have offered themselves for re-election as Directors. At the forthcoming ZH-REREAE F BIRE2T @ AZEEEH
Meeting, ordinary resolutions will be proposed to re-elect Mr. Wei Shaojun, D E 44 BEER LT EREE B L4 -

Dr. Han Qinchun and Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND OTHER
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and other senior management are
disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received a written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers that all
independent non-executive Directors are being considered to be independent
by reference to the factors stated in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the service contracts of the Directors, the Company has not
entered into any contract with any individual, firm or body corporate to
manage or administer the whole or any substantial part of any business of the
Company during the Reporting Period.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 37 to the
audited consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY ¥ B B R

The remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) of the AAFFMEE S ((FMEES|)NELE
Company is set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument policy and structure IR IBE AR E B L& L 248 B AREKE KA {E
for all remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the Group, BB mEEY el AEENFBKRE R
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and ARNEBFRFEEELR SR EIEERN T B 22E -
comparable market practices. The remunerations of the Directors are & &= F H) 5 Bl J3 2 £ & AR - 15 (S 14 A
determined with reference to the economic situation, the market condition, R&EZEEMAENBREME T L E@EA KR
the responsibilities and duties assumed by each Director as well as their MEE °

individual performance.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, and five highest paid individuals ZZ R A &= 3 A TR AR S AR 2
during the Reporting Period are set out in notes 7 and 37 to the audited EEIEH R ANE FL R % AT HRRMTET R
consolidated financial statements in this annual report. 37 °

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS ERREERAGE
SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the Company are AR AFI::EAKKEEE R IO FBEEHNAE
set out in note 7 to the audited consolidated financial statements in this FHIEEZGEE M BHREM 7 -
annual report.

CHANGE TO INFORMATION IN RESPECTOF EEpR3EeF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change to information in R # F MR BIZE13.51B(1){§ KA AR ZEEE &
respect of a Director after the interim report for the six-month ending 30 June RARAFTHE -_Z—HLE A =T H 1L/
2019 is set out below: RzH s BHB s E83HIMT :

1. since June 2019, Mr. Han Xiaoping was appointed as an independent 1. BE-_ZE—NFAAE BETLELEES

non-executive director of GCL Energy Technology Co., Limited (listed FABEEBRREERMAER AR CEY
on the Main Board of Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 2015 ). THHERET  BRHRSE : 2015) 2 B
VIEBMITES -

2.  Since September 2019, Dr. Han Qinchun was appointed as an 2. BE-_ZE—NFhLhAE BEHFHLTEZ

independent non-executive director of Century Ginwa Retail Holdings AL STEREZTRAER QA (R
Limited (listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange, stock code: ZTHER LT BRHORKIE: 0162) 9 IF L
0162). FHMITES -

Save as disclosed above, for the Reporting Period, there was no change to [ F X EE E 4N - IRARIREERE - WA
information which is required to be disclosed and has been disclosed by &R & 8) A% FRE MR A E13.512) 15 ()
Directors pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Z (B K(QBEATKE FHESE

Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 35 to the audited consolidated financial statements
and in the section headed “Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions” in this annual report, neither Director nor entity
connected with the Directors had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the
business of the Group subsisting at any time during the Reporting Period or
at the end of the year to which the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiaries was a party.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the
Reporting Period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their spouses or children under
the age of 18 were granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt
securities of the Company or any other body corporate or had exercised any
such right.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors or
any of their respective associates had engaged in or had any interest in any
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

Pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the following current Directors
held share interests and/or directorships in companies engaged in businesses
which compete or likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group:
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Mr. Wei Shaojun holds share interests and directorships in Longjitaihe
Industry (together with its subsidiary, the “Longjitaihe Group”), and Mr. Wei
Qiang works as a senior management in Longjitaihe Group, Longjitaihe Group
engages in businesses of public infrastructure construction business. As
smart energy business constitutes the Group’s principal business activities,
the Group currently has no plan to further expand public infrastructure
construction business after the Baoding Donghu Project is complete. On this
basis, it does not exist any material competition between the businesses of
the Group and those of the Longjitaihe Group.

Mr. Wei Qiang holds share interests and directorship in Lightway Green
Energy, which engages in clean energy business, mainly the production and
sales of photovoltaic components.

In the future, the Group will be the main entity carrying out the business of
smart energy and other clean energy, the Longjitaihe Group and Lightway
Green Energy (including its subsidiary) will not participate in the smart energy
and other clean energy business that will be competed with the Group.

Each of the Directors is aware of his fiduciary duties as a Director of the
Company which require, among other things, that he acts for the benefit and
in the best interests of the Company and avoids any conflicts between his
duties as a Director and his personal interest.

As the Board is independent of the boards of the aforesaid companies and
maintains three independent non-executive Directors, the Group operates its
businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of the
aforesaid companies.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
on 22 November 2011.

1.

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain the
eligible persons, to provide additional incentive to them and to promote
the success of the business of the Group.

Participants

The Board is authorised, at their absolute discretion and subject to the
terms of the Share Option Scheme, to grant options to subscribe the
Shares to, inter alia, any employees (full-time and part-time), directors,
consultants, advisors, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners or service providers of the Group.
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Total number of Shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed
10% of the number of the issued Shares of the Company as at the
Listing Date. On 12 June 2018, the Company had refreshed the
scheme mandate limit of the Share Option Scheme to 10% of the
aggregate number of the Shares of the Company in issue as at that
date, i.e. a total of 137,842,200 Shares, representing 9.28% of the
number of the Shares of the Company in issue as at the date of this
report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted to any grantee (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Share Option Scheme, in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in
issue.

Period within which the Shares must be taken
up under an option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may
determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant
subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

Minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

The Board may in its absolute discretion set a minimum period for
which an option must be held and performance targets that must be
achieved before an option can be exercised.

Time of acceptance and the amount payable
on acceptance of the option

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount
payable by the grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance of
the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00.
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8. Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall not be
lower than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the
option; (i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option; and (i) the
nominal value of a Share on the date of grant of the option.

9. Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme became unconditional on the Listing Date
and shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing
on 22 November 2011, subject to the early termination provisions
contained in the Share Option Scheme. As at 31 December 2019, the
remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is approximately 1 year and
11 months.

The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme does not exceed 10% of the shares
in issue as at 12 June 2018, the date on which the Company had refreshed
the scheme mandate limit of the Share Option Scheme. The Company may
at any time refresh such limit, subject to the Shareholders’ approval and issue
of a circular in compliance with the Listing Rules, provided that the total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under all the share option schemes
of the Company does not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue at the time.
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As at 31 December 2019, details of the movement of the share optionsunder R -Z—hE+-_B=+—H BERE2

the Share Option Scheme are as follows: BENEMBEREESNEBD T :
Number of Share Options
BREHA
Closing
price Adjusted
preceding exercise
date of  Exercise price
grant price  (HKS per Asat  Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed As at
Name and category of (HK$ per (HKSper  Share)  1January duringthe duringthe duringthe  duringthe 31 December
participants Date of grant Exercise period share)  Share)  (Note 1) 2019  Period  Period  Period Period 2019
RHAS EEL
Il k@ i
nE fRE  (BR i ZE-hE
(BR  (BR  #n) —B-hfF tZh
SHRERZRER BHAH fTEHE Br)  Br) (WE1) -B-B HBARE BATE BAEH  BR%R =t-8
Directors
FZ
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping (Note 2) 26 January 2018 26 January 2019 to 25 January 2028 (Note 3) ~ 1.711 2182 17796 11,008,998 - - - — 11,008,998
RETREME2) “E-\5-A-t~A ZE-AE-A-trHZ
—Z-N\E-A-THA(KF3)
Dr. Liu Zhengang 19 January 2017 19 January 2018 to 21 November 2021 1.603 22 18364 1,198,000 - - - (399,333) 798,667
(Note 3)
AmRIEL “2—+%-RtAB ZE-\§-ATABZE
ZZ--F+-AZ+—H (M)
11 May 2018 1 February 2019 to 10 May 2028 242 24 N/A 780,000 - - - (780,000) -
—Z-\¥1AR+-H —Z-h%5-F-HZ TP
ZZZN\FRATR
14 September 2018 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2026 (Note 3) 2 2 N/A 4,020,000 - - - (820,000 3,200,000
“Z-\fhATHEA “I-NEMR-BE-Z=/ % TP
=A=+-H(H=F3)
Dr. Han Qinchun 26 January 2018 26 January 2018 to 25 January 2028 1.711 2132 1.779% 359,400 - - - - 359,400
REEAT “Z-N5-B=+AXB ZE-NE-B=tAHEZE
2o \f-A-thH
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John 26 January 2018 26 January 2018 to 25 January 2028 1.711 2132 1.779% 359,400 - - - - 359,400
BEARE ZZ-\§-A=t~A ZE-\§-A=t/HZ
2o \f-A-thH
Mr. Han Xiaoping 26 January 2018 26 January 2018 to 25 January 2028 1.711 2132 1.779%6 359,400 - - - - 359,400
BETEE ZE-\f-A=+R"H ZE-N\E-R=fAHE
2o )\¥-A=thH
Subtotal 18,085,198 (1,099,333 16,085,865
g
Other eligible persons 19 January 2017 19 January 2017 to 21 November 2021 1.603 22 18364 11,141,400 - - - — 11,141,400
(Note 3)
AhaBRAL “Z-+E-AFNB “Z-+F5-ATNBE
B —E+—A-+—H(M3)
26 January 2018 26 January 2019 to 25 January 2028 (Note 3) ~ 1.711 2132 17796 22,017,993 - - - (6605398 15,412,595
—F-\f-A=t~A ZE-NF-R=fAHZE
ZEZN\E-A=1+RAKEES)
26 January 2018 26 July 2018 to 25 January 2028 1.711 2132 17796 2,336,100 - - - - 2,336,100
ZE-\F-A=t~AA ZE-N\FLA=fAHZE
B )\§-A-t+1H
11 May 2018 1 February 2019 to 10 May 2028 242 24 N/A 8,580,000 - - - (7,800,000) 780,000
“Z-\fRA+-RH “Z-N-F-HZ TP
ZZZ)\5RATH
14 September 2018 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2026 (Note 3) 2 2 N/A 62,625,000 - - — (30,380,000) 32,245,000
“Z-\FhATEA ZZ-N4¥MA-HE TER
—Z-AE=A=1T—-H(KE3)
Subtotal 106,700,493 - - — (44785398 61,915,095
it
Total 124,785,691 - - —  (46,784,731) 78,000,960

&3t
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Notes:

Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, adjustments are required for the
exercise price and the number of Shares available for subscription under the
outstanding share options as a result of the Company’s rights issue, with effect from
22 March 2018. The exercise prices of the share options granted on 19 January 2017
and 26 January 2018 were adjusted to HK$1.8364 per Share and HK$1.7796 per
Share, respectively. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 21 March 2018.

Among these 11,008,998 share options, 5,504,499 share options are beneficially
owned by Mr. Yuen Chi Ping, and the remaining 5,504,499 share options are held by
Dragon Legend Global Limited, which is beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Yuen Chi
Ping.

These share options granted will be subject to vesting in three tranches within three
years. The vesting of share options is based on the fulfilment of certain performance
targets of the Group, including but not limited to the financial performance of the
Group as well as the grantee’s individual performance.

During the Reporting Period, the expense arising from share options granted

to the Directors and other eligible persons recognised as administrative

expense was HK$3,487,000 (equivalent to RMB3,068,000) (the year of 2018:
HK$12,308,000, equivalent to RMB10,407,000).

GEX

BIEERE A GR AREARRETHAR -
TEERABEERTEBERERE 2RO
BAFLAZ AT \F=A=-+-HE4L
BeDRR=ZF—tF—A+tILAR=ZZT—/\F
— AT AFBLENEREZTEEREAE
BER1.8364B T R ER1.7796B T - BHAFISE
A2EAARBHAE-_S—NEF=A=-+—HH

At

% % 11,008,998 1% & % # & -+ 5,504,499 % & AR 1
HREFEEERES M HINEY5,504,499 % i
[i% # £ Dragon Legend Global Limited#% & + 2% 2 &)
HREGFAEES2EHE -

ZERE2ERESKNIFHESI=HEE - B
BRENGBHDAEKABAKRENETRRAR/E
R EERETRRAKENMBERRARARA
MEARER -

RAFZEHRHE RTFTESREMEERAL
Y BB A% 7 A8 A B S B AR /8 1T BR R X2 3,487,000
Bao(EE RN AR ®30680005L )( = =F
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the Directors or
chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including any interests which they are taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO) or were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

() Interest in the Shares and underlying Shares of
Company

EERMESHRERERAT  Fi% 2019

O o
EERIEARABREKL
=1 R AR B A G IR 42 - 4R B
K53 A Rt
R

RZE-—NAFE+ZR=+—HB EFBFHAERQ
Bl EETBA B R AR R K E F/ 8B E
(EERBRBENEFENER S R BAE KD
((BERMEREG ) FEXVER) & - 8RR
M REFTEEREESF KRBT GO EXVEH
FTR8NEMAMEARRA] LB RS K
KR (BRREZES R GROHERBKRXRE
ERIEHEMEMER)  RIEFEF R
B 1P 55352 (5 5 E R B RDIN R 6 A B =T
MR MO R - SRR L AR B MY 8%+ AT #K
METETAEETETESF X SNRES A
(BREFADREAMNE ADQA RN
Bm AR

() REAFROGREBRGHN
FE 23

Number of Shares/

Approximate

underlying Percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares held shareholding
FrismD
EEMSE By RmiE MERERBEE REMABE D
Mr. Wei Shaojun Founder of a discretionary trust” 422,872,512(L) 28.48%
BOELRE — I EEEHKIZAD
Interest of controlled corporations® 478,266,756(L) 32.21%
Ffr 428 ) 5 B 4 2w @
Total 901,139,268(L) 60.69%
@t
Mr. Wei Qiang Beneficiary of a discretionary trust® 422,872,512(L) 28.48%
ot 4 —HEHBEEENEm A
Dr. Liu Zhengang Beneficial owner® 3,998,667(L) 0.27%

2R 18 £
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Number of Shares/ Approximate
underlying Percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares held shareholding
FrERG,
EEpE By REmtE HERGHE RESNE L
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping Beneficial owner® 71,597,830(L) 4.82%
REFERE ERnERAC
Interest of controlled corporation® 5,504,499(L) 0.37%
PRz dil A B RO
Total 77,102,329(L) 5.19%
#Et
Mr. Han Xiaoping Beneficial owner® 359,400(L) 0.02%
BRRETRLE ERERANC
Dr. Han Qinchun Beneficial owner?” 359,400(L) 0.02%
BERARML EnfEE A
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John Beneficial owner® 359,400(L) 0.02%
mEREASE EmERAAC
Notes: B 5
1. King River Developments Limited is deemed to be interested in 422,872,512 1. King River Developments Limited # 1% £ 17 #8 &
Shares through its control over Longevity Investment Holding Limited and BNP 74 Longevity Investment Holding Limited & 5 i)
Paribas Singapore Trust Corporation Limited is deemed to be interested in W 422,872,512% B 17 7 A #E o+ BNP
422,872,512 Shares through its control over King River Developments Limited, Paribas Singapore Trust Corporation Limited 4 1%
and Mr. Wei Shaojun is deemed to be interested in 422,872,512 Shares as a 535 8 E 7 King River Developments Limited
founder of the discretionary trust. The details of which are set out as follows: 22 | #E R 422,872,512 % AR 10 TR R B AE 2
MBALELEE(ERBBETKRILIAN)EKE
422872512 RN R EEHEm - B
FBEAT
Direct Number of
Name of controlled corporation Name of controlling shareholder % control interest Shares
TEHEEER ERRREB ERBESL HEES ROHE
King River Developments Limited BNP Paribas Singapore Trust Corporation Limited 100.00 N 422,872,512(L)
B
Longevity Investment Holding Limited King River Developments Limited 100.00 Y 422,872,512(L)
=
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Such 478,266,756 Shares, of which 465,066,756 Shares are beneficially
owned by Lightway Power Holdings Limited, which was incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands. Lightway Power Holdings Limited was wholly-owned by
Global Capital Alliance Limited, which was incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and is directly and wholly-owned by Mr. Wei Shaojun. In addition,
13,200,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Harvest Oak Holdings Limited,
which was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and directly and wholly-
owned by Mr. Wei Shaojun. Mr. Wei Shaojun is deemed to be interested in
478,266,756 Shares through his controlled corporations.

Mr. Wei Qiang is deemed to be interested in 422,872,512 Shares as a
beneficiary of a trust.

Dr. Liu Zhengang is interested in 3,998,667 share options of the Company.

Mr. Yuen Chi Ping is interested in 66,093,331 Shares and 11,008,998 share
options. Among these 11,008,998 share options, 5,504,499 share options are
beneficially owned by Mr. Yuen Chi Ping and the remaining 5,504,499 share
options are beneficially held by Dragon Legend Global Limited, which is

beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Yuen Chi Ping. Therefore, Mr. Yuen Chi Ping
is deemed to be interested in such share options.

Mr. Han Xiaoping is interested in 359,400 share options of the Company.

Dr. Han Qinchun is interested in 359,400 share options of the Company.

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John is interested in 359,400 share options of the
Company.

The letter “L” denotes the long position in Shares.
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%% 478,266,756 ix I% 7 - H 1 465,066,756
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HEMKCSTEBRIEEEEEZEESR
Z Global Capital Alliance Limited 2 & # & °
1b 41 + 13,200,000 A% A% 15 £R 12 25 & 5 % B¥
SEMK AR ELEEEEERS
Z Harvest Oak Holdings Limited & 25 # & °
ROBLEEWBAEBEMESEER
478,266,756 i iR 10 FEH & ©

B E(EFAREZZA) KRR
422,872,512 R IR 15 F B 2 ©

214 M 18 £ 70 3,998,667 AR A 1 7] BB AL #E
BHERD -

R & F % 4 166,093,331 8% B 5 &
11,008,008k FE R iE R A - Z F
11,008,998 % f& A # = - 5,504,499 8% #&
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(ii) Interest
Corporations

Name of Director

EspE

Annual Report 2019

in the Shares of Associated

Name of associated corporation

A EE AR

Capacity/Nature

of interest

Bt EmtE

(i) REBEZEROVER

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Shares held shareholding
FiER G BB REBOED L

Mr. Wei Shaojun

ROBRE
Mr. Wei Shaojun
WOELRE
Mr. Wei Shaojun
WMOELRE

Longevity Investment Holding Limited

Harvest Oak Holdings Limited

Lightway Power Holdings Limited

Beneficial owner
EmBEA A
Beneficial owner
BEnEEA
Beneficial owner

EmfEA A

1) 100%
1) 100%
1L 100%

Note: The letter “L” denotes the long position in Shares.

Save as disclosed above and save for the share options as set out under the
section headed “Share Option Scheme”, as at 31 December 2019, none of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
position in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
would be required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or otherwise notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

et - FRILRTRERDNER -
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, so far as is known to the Directors, the following
persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company as disclosed
above) had interests or short positions in Shares or underlying Shares which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, which were recorded
in the register to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

i)

Long Position in the Shares and underlying

EERMESHRERERAT  Fi% 2019
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RZZTE-NAE+=ZR=+—B HREEHM-
THALTCGEEXHABEENARREEFRER
TRAB) RO ABERD T HEERIEES
K BB R B EXVEB %2 ] 39 3P &) 16 ST /B [A) AR
RARBXABENEEIRE  RIREE
R E R DI E B IRCHEN AR R AFEN
Bt S SOAR

i) AREROEEERGNERE

Shares
Number of
Shares/ Approximate
underlying percentage of
Name of Substantial Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held shareholding
FrERG,
FTERRER B RERtE HERGHE RESNE L
Longevity Investment Holding Beneficial owner!” 422,872,512(L) 28.48%
Limited
EmiERAD
BNP Paribas Singapore Trust Trustee!” 422,872,512(L) 28.48%
Corporation Limited
FEAD
King River Developments Limited Interest of controlled corporation 422,872,512(L) 28.48%
REGEEERY
Lightway Power Holdings Limited Beneficial owner® 465,066,756(L) 31.32%
BEmEA AP
Global Capital Alliance Limited Interest of controlled corporation® 465,066,756(L) 31.32%
REGEEERO
Notes: Bt -
1. King River Developments Limited is deemed to be interested in 422,872,512 1. King River Developments Limited # 18 £ i i@ £

Shares through its control over Longevity Investment Holding Limited and BNP
Paribas Singapore Trust Corporation Limited is deemed to be interested in
422,872,512 Shares through its control over King River Developments Limited,
and Mr. Wei Shaojun is deemed to be interested in 422,872,512 Shares as a

founder of the discretionary trust.

7 Longevity Investment Holding Limited # 22
R 422,872,612 A1 Hh 5 #E % - BNP
Paribas Singapore Trust Corporation Limited 4 17
A% 1B H 7 King River Developments Limited &)
18 ) 4 78 422,872,512 AR 19 A 5 A

MBLELEEWERBMIBEEKRILA) R
R 422,872,512 8 IR fh R HE B #E %5 o
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2. Such 465,066,756 Shares are beneficially owned by Lightway Power Holdings
Limited, which was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands. Lightway Power
Holdings Limited was wholly-owned by Global Capital Alliance Limited, which
was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is directly and wholly-owned
by Mr. Wei Shaojun.

3. The letter “L” denotes the long position in Shares.

Save as disclosed above, and as at 31 December 2019, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief executive of
the Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which would be required,
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On 29 March 2019, Beijing Longguang, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, exercise the Put Option. As Shengli QOilfield Lifeng has not
paid the Consideration of RMB60,000,001 under the Put Option, in order to
protect the interest of the Group, Beijing Longguang initiated legal
proceedings at the Beijing’s Second Intermediate People’s Court in
November 2019 against, among others,: (i) Shengli QOilfield Lifeng to pay the
Consideration plus the related penalty and legal fees etc.; and (i) Hailifeng to
bear the joint liability for the above-mentioned payment obligations of Shengli
Qilfield Lifeng. Beijing Longguang has applied for and the court has
completed the preservation measures for the relevant properties of Shengli
QOilfield Lifeng and Hailifeng.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 13
December 2019.

The Group provided loans to third parties in the course of its business under
payment arrangements for potential acquisition transactions. Due to credit
deterioration of loans to third parties during the second half of the year ended
31 December 2019, the Group filed lawsuits against the relevant third parties,
as appropriate, one of which involved the principal amount of about
RMB25,000,000.

Save as disclosed above, during the Reporting Period, the Company was not
involved in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and no litigation
or claim of material importance is known to the Directors to be pending or
threatened against the Company.

2. % % 465,066,756 % % 17 M 7E ) 2 Bf & &t i
% 37 2 Lightway Power Holdings Limited & #=
# A - Lightway Power Holdings Limited £ 7£
RERAESEMA I HRPFTREE
#% % & # 1 2 Global Capital Alliance Limited
2EHE -
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s Articles of Association provide that each Director or other
officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her office or otherwise in
relation thereto. In addition, the Company has arranged appropriate directors’
and officers’ liability insurance in respect of relevant legal actions against the
Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”), comprising
the three independent non-executive Directors, has reviewed the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
together with the management and the external auditor of the Company. The
Audit Committee is of the opinion that such statements have complied with
the applicable accounting standards, and the disclosures required by the
Stock Exchange and other relevant legal requirements, and that adequate
disclosures have been made.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of
this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge
of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital,
being the prescribed minimum percentage of public float approved by the
Stock Exchange and permitted under the Listing Rules, are held by the public
at all times during the Reporting Period and as of the date of this annual
report.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Reporting Period prepared in
accordance with IFRS were audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall
retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming
Meeting of the Company.

By order of the Board

Wei Qiang
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hebei Province, the PRC, 30 March 2020
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Qiang, aged 37, joined the Company as an executive Director, the
chief executive officer of the Company and a member of the Remuneration
Committee on 11 November 2015. On 29 June 2017, Mr. Wei Qiang was
appointed as the chairman of the Board and chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Board. Mr. Wei Qiang has around 12 years of work and
management experiences in the clean energy industry. Mr. Wei Qiang is the
founder and controlling shareholder of Lightway Green Energy, which mainly
engage in businesses of production and sales of photovoltaic components.
Mr. Wei Qiang has also been serving as a director of a rural bank initiated by
Chengdu Rural Commercial Bank since 2013. From August 2018 to October
2019, Mr. Wei Qiang was the president of Longjitaihe Holding Group and
head of the real estate business division of Longjitaihe Property. From 2003
to 2006, Mr. Wei Qiang studied at the University of Auckland in New Zealand
majoring in Finance and from 2007 to 2009, studied business administration
and information strategies at Tsinghua University. Mr. Wei Qiang is the son of
Mr. Wei Shaojun, the ultimate controlling Shareholder of the Company and
the non-executive Director.
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Mr. Yuen Chi Ping, aged 41, joined the Company as an executive Director,
the vice-chairman of the Board and the co-chief executive officer of the
Company on 27 April 2018. Mr. Yuen is primarily responsible for the Group’s
strategic development; and overseeing and supervising the capital market
activities, overseas investment and financing, investor relations and risk
management of the Group. Mr. Yuen is a qualified lawyer in both Hong Kong
and England and Wales. Mr. Yuen has over 12 years of experience practicing
as a lawyer in the PRC and Hong Kong, and has extensive experience in
corporate law, China-related public and private mergers and acquisitions, and
capital market transactions. Mr. Yuen obtained a bachelor’s degree in laws in
2001 and completed the PCLL programme in 2002 in the University of Hong
Kong, then undertook his traineeship and worked as a lawyer in various
leading international law firms. He worked as a special counsel in the
Shanghai office of Baker & McKenzie from 2007 to 2014, responsible for the
firm’s securities practice in Shanghai. Mr. Yuen has been a non-executive
director of Hin Sang Group (International) Holding Co. Ltd. (stock code: 6893)
since July 2016; the chief executive officer and an executive director of
Applied Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 519) since September
2016; a non-executive director of the China High Speed Transmission
Equipment Group Co., Ltd. (stock code: 658) since December 2016, each a
company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Yuen has also been a director of
Pok Oi Hospital (a charity organisation) since April 2017. Mr. Yuen was the
chief operating officer of Fullshare Holdings Limited (stock code: 607) from
October 2014 to March 2018, and an independent non-executive director of
Sun Cheong Creative Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 1781) from
August 2018 to August 2019, each a company listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Dr. Liu Zhengang, aged 45, on 29 June 2017, Dr. Liu was appointed as an
executive Director. Dr. Liu joined the Company as the operations vice
president in November 2015. He is primarily responsible for business plans,
market research, technology development and resource-pooling of the
Company’s smart energy business. Dr. Liu has about 16 years of technical
research and management experience in the photovoltaic and clean energy
industry. Dr. Liu joined Lightway Green Energy in June 2012 and was
appointed as vice president of operations. From 2008 to 2012, Dr. Liu
worked at the Institute of Electrical Engineering Chinese Academy of Science
(P RIBTE T F) as a deputy research associate in solar cell technology. From
2005 to 2008, he worked as a senior engineer at Haier Group Central
Research Institute (& #8 5% &+ L 55FT) in Qingdao, China. From 1998 to
2000, Dr. Liu studied a master course in Organic Chemistry at the Shandong
University, and began his doctorate in advance in 2000. Dr. Liu obtained his
doctorate in Inorganic Chemistry in 2003. From 2003 to 2005, Dr. Liu began
researching at the School of Physics of Peking University (3t 5 A 224718 E2657)
as a postgraduate doctor.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wei Shaojun, aged 56 joined the Company as the chairman, an
executive Director, chief executive officer and the chairman of the Nomination
Committee in January 2015. Mr. Wei resigned as chief executive officer on 11
November 2015. On 29 June 2017, Mr. Wei resigned as the chairman of the
Board and chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Board and was re-
designated as a non-executive Director. Mr. Wei is the founder, the controlling
shareholder and the chairman of Longjitaine Industry (together with its
subsidiaries collectively, the “Longjitaihe Group”) which is engaged in
integrated diversified industries including real estate development, commercial
operations and new energy and Mr. Wei has more than 23 years of
experiences in real property development business operation, business
management, etc. Mr. Wei is a National Model Worker, and Peking University
Post EMBA. Mr. Wei is currently serving as a director and the chairman of the
board of Jiangsu Tongda Technology Co., Ltd. (Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
stock code: 002576). Mr. Wei is the father of Mr. Wei Qiang, the executive
Director and chief executive officer of the Company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Han Qinchun, aged 61, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee in February 2015. Dr. Han had resigned as the
member of the Nomination Committee, and was appointed as the chairman
of the remuneration committee on 28 June 2016. Dr. Han is currently the
president of Hong Kong Internation Financial Assets Market Limited. Dr. Han
obtained a Doctorate degree in philosophy in urban economics and
management from The University of Hong Kong in 1998. He also obtained a
bachelor’s degree from Xi’an University of Architecture and Technology in
1982. He has rich experience in the PRC property sector, financial
investment, equity capital market and listed companies’ management. He
had worked in securities and investment in Bank of China International
Holdings Limited, Agricultural Bank of China Securities Limited (now known
as Agricultural Bank of China International Holdings Limited) and Everbright
Securities Company (Hong Kong) Limited. He served as the vice-chairman
and co-president and executive director of Hong Long Holdings Limited (now
known as Suncity Group Holdings Limited), a listed company on the main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1383) for three years. Dr. Han has
also been an independent non-executive director of Lingbao Gold Company
Ltd., a listed company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
3330) since March 2012, and an independent non-executive director of the
Stock Exchange listed company Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (stock
code: 0162) since September 2019.

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John, aged 53, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee, a
member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee on
16 October 2015. Mr. John Wong Yik Chung is a qualified accountant and
has over 30 years of experience in auditing and corporate finance work, with
extensive exposure to the business enterprises in the PRC. He is the founder
of Vantage Group and TMF China, which provide professional outsourcing
solutions to companies investing in the PRC and targeting at international
customers. Mr. Wong graduated from the University of Melbourne. He is a
fellow member of each of the Australian Society of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
also obtained a PRC Certificate of Independent Directorship in 2002. Over the
past three years, he served as independent non-executive directors for the
following companies listed on the Stock Exchange, namely KEE Holdings
Company Limited (now known as China Apex Group Limited) (stock code:
2011) and Ascent International Holdings Limited (now known as China
International Development Corporation Limited) (stock code: 264). He is
currently serving as independent non-executive directors for the following
companies which are listed on the Stock Exchange, namely EcoGreen
International Group Limited (stock code: 2341), Perfect Optronics Limited (stock
code: 8311), Beijing Capital Land Ltd. (stock code: 2868) and an independent
non-executive director of Xinjiang Xinxin Mining Industry Co., Ltd. (stock
code: 3833).
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Mr. Han Xiaoping, aged 62, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee on 28 June 2016. He worked as journalist in CAAC JOURNAL of
the Civil Aviation Administration of China (CAAC) from 1986 to 1988. He
established China Energy Net in 2000 and served as managing director since
then, and he also serves as the chief writer of Energy Review, Chief
Researcher of China Energy Net Research Center. He currently serves as
deputy director of China Energy Research Society Distributed Energy
Professional Committee, expert of China Southern Power Grid Expert
Committee and expert of China Gas Strategic Development Committee. Mr.
Han has been an independent non-executive director of Beijing Jingneng
Clean Energy Co., Limited, a listed company on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 579) since October 2014; an independent non-
executive director of Tianjin Tianbao Energy Co., Ltd., a listed company on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1671) since April 2018;
and an independent non-executive director GCL Energy Technology Co., Ltd,
a listed company on the Main Board of Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code:2015) since June 2019.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

At the date of this report, the senior management of the Group comprises the
executive Directors above, namely, Mr. Wei Qiang, Mr. Yuen Chi Ping, Dr. Liu
Zhengang and Mr. Wang Yong. The biography of Mr. Wang Yong is set out
below.

Mr. Wang Yong, aged 42, joined the Company as the development vice
president in November 2015. He is primarily responsible for the development
and management of the distributed integrated energy business of the Group.
Mr. Wang has over 12 years of management experience in clean energy
industry. Mr. Wang joined Lightway Green Energy in January 2013 as the
general manager for China. From 2010 to 2012, Mr. Wang served as the
deputy general manager of product marketing at Xie Xin Solar System
Company Limited in Nanjing (#3223t Ik 2%t A R A 7). From 2007 to 2010, he
served as the project director of a new energy company at ET Solar Energy
Corporation (2%t EEE) in Nanjing. From 2005 to 2007, he served as
deputy general manager of Jiangsu Hui Xin Credit Consulting Co., Ltd. (T #&k
EEEAENARAT) in Nanjng. Mr. Wang graduated from Southeast
University in 2000 in Computer and Applications; on July 2019, Mr. Wang
obtained a Master of Business Administration in School of Economics and
Management, Tsinghua University.

Details of the interests of the Directors in the Company are disclosed in the
section headed “INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS”
under the “Report of the Directors”.
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in this
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2019.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company has complied with the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules during the Reporting Period, except for code provision A.2.1 relating to
the role of chairman and chief executive officer. Details of such deviation and
explanation are set out on the section headed “Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer” below.

The Company will continue to review and enhance its corporate governance
practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code. Set out below is detailed
discussion of the corporate governance practices adopted and observed by
the Company for the Reporting Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board of Directors

The Board currently consists of seven Directors with a combination of three
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors. During the Reporting Period and currently, the
composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Qiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Yuen Chi Ping (Vice-chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer)
Dr. Liu Zhengang

Non-executive Director
Mr. Wei Shaojun

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Han Qinchun

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John

Mr. Han Xiaoping
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The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management” of this annual report. Save as disclosed herein, the
Directors do not have any other relationships with any Directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling Shareholders of the Company.

All Directors have carried out duties in good faith and in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and have acted in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify the
Group’s Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Functions of the Board

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board,
which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company
and the Directors are collectively responsible for promoting the long term
success of the Group by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs and
overseeing the achievement of strategic plans to enhance Shareholders’
value. The Directors are aware of their duties to act in good faith and
expected to make decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The principal functions of the Board are to:

convene general meetings and report the Board’s work at general
meetings;

implement the resolutions passed by the Shareholders in general
meetings;

consider and approve strategies, financial objectives, annual budget,
investment proposals of the Group;

approve and authorise material transactions, including acquisition,
investment, disposal of assets (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests);

formulate the proposals for profit distributions;
assume the responsibilities of corporate governance of the Group;

establish and review the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems through the Audit Committee; and

exercise other powers, functions and duties conferred by the
Shareholders in general meetings.
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The senior management is delegated with the authority and responsibilities by
the Board for the day-to-day management and operations of the Group.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the management. The Board meets regularly to
review the financial and operating performance of the Company, and
considers and approves the overall strategies and policies of the Company.

All Directors have separate access to the management and are provided with
full and timely information about the conduct of the business and operation of
the Group. A monthly report containing significant events and latest
development of the Group was provided to all Directors. Upon request by the
Board, independent professional advice will be available to the Directors to
facilitate the decision-making process.

During the Reporting Period, the Board has regularly reviewed the
contributions from the Directors and confirmed that they have spent sufficient
time performing their responsibilities.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Mr. Wei Qiang, an executive Director, is both the co-chief executive officer
and the chairman of the Board. Mr. Yuen Chi Ping, an executive Director, is
both the vice-chairman of the Board and co-chief executive officer. According
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The Board is of the opinion that, with the Company now
being at a stage of rapid development, the current structure could improve
the Company’s effectiveness and efficiency in reaching its business goals.
The Board also believes that this arrangement will not be detrimental to the
balance of power and authority between the chairman and the chief executive
officer, while a higher ratio of non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) will enable the Board to make unbiased judgments
more effectively.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS EEETRERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the 7K A &) B 5% 44 L 77 18 Bl Mt 4% + B &) & 1= & =F
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities BI{fEAH RN BEBEESETB LR HNIRST
transactions. After making specific enquiry, all of the Directors who held their ~ SF Bl o & H B8 E 1% - NAR S HIRE - &
office during the Reporting Period have confirmed that they had complied (FH 2 fEE EHER K S D N EE AR S H
with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the & <FIEX<FRIAE EXER] o

Reporting Period.

The Company has also adopted its own code of conduct regardng ZAATNEREEETELALZEMNE 51
employees’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the 2 <F# 8- B B G R T Z2E ST B Fr & 89 12
standard set out in the Model Code for the compliance by its relevant 2 EE - LA A eEBE AR N EEEN B
employees who are likely to be in possession of inside information of the RFIEENRE ST AN A B H5EESF o

Company in respect of their dealings in the Company’s securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS TEERB L

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions EZZXZ©€@ 8 EFEETLESABeE WH T i
such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on s A A AWM X E AR ELER  UKLEE
corporate governance and code of conduct applicable to employees and REZEAMNITASE BT REBEER
Directors, reviewing and monitoring training and continuous professional SR EEENEINEESEEZXEE - A Q7
development of Directors and senior management and the Company’'s HBREESTEZERESHENEELEH MU
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, s AR AR BETFAEESTAERLES
as well as reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and JAREHRTEER BB ©

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Reporting Period, the Board considered the following corporate R A EERE  EFe 2L T X B8

governance matters: =5

—  review of the compliance with the CG Code; and = Rl e A BT ESHRSTE &

—  review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control — FEEZZEeRiIAEENEKEEE
7

systems of the Group through the Audit Committee. Ko A 2B 5 150 2K A5 HY B e
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive Directors. The
Board considers that all independent non-executive Directors have
appropriate and sufficient industry, professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise to carry out their duties so as to
protect the interests of Shareholders. Under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
listed issuers are required to appoint independent non-executive directors
representing at least one-third of the Board. The Company has three
independent non-executive Directors currently representing more than one-
third of the Board and therefore, the Company has complied with Rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules.

Prior to their respective appointment, each of the independent non-executive
Directors has submitted a written statement to the Stock Exchange
confirming their independence and has undertaken to inform the Stock
Exchange as soon as practicable if there is any subsequent change of
circumstances which may affect their independence. The Company has also
received a written confirmation from each of the independent non-executive
Directors in respect of their independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Board considers that all independent non-executive
Directors are being considered to be independent by reference to the factors
stated in the Listing Rules.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Wei Qiang, the chairman of the Board, held
a meeting with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence
of other Directors on 29 March 2019.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have brought a
wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company.

As regards the CG code provision requiring directors to disclose the number
and nature of the offices held in public companies and organisations and
other significant commitments as well as their identity and the time involved to
the issuer, Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments to the
Company in a timely manner.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF THE ESZERER
DIRECTORS

Each of the Directors has been appointed for a specific term of three years, K& E¥HU=-FHIETTHEZ T KBS
subject to the provisions on Directors’ retirement as set out in the Articles of EZ 2 T &l 9 E F R T (E X FTIR R o B & (£ {a]
Association and none of the Directors has a service contract which is not ZEEL2: UM EHRAEEBR —FRNKIEMmE
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation B (BB CEEREEBRINBRBEES X - A
(other than statutory compensation). All Directors appointed by the Board EEEZe@EZITWNESNTHEZEEZ T
shall hold office only until the next general meeting of the Company (inthe AXAFT FTEEREAS (MNEBEMBERZHH) A
case of filing a casual vacancy) or until the next annual general meeting ofthe |t KA AT FTERERAEAS (NEEST S
Company (in the case of an addition to the Board), and every Director, Z#KE) A&l W H K ES (BIENUNETTH
including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirementby EZFHNEZS) BRI S =FHEEFT— X -
rotation at least once every three years.

Pursuant to the article 108(a) of the Articles of Association, at each annual R Z 2 £108@) & T B ERRBF A g
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their F BEEFN=92 — &% (kA5 H AL
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearestto butnot  FF=sk =W EH - Bl AZEL BTN =9
less than one-third, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once 27 —HAB)BEL B =FHFERT—X-
every three years.

Mr. Wei Shaojun, Dr. Han Qinchun and Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John will retire £V E 4k 4+ BEHEH T L= Z 2L 4 BER
from office as Directors at the forthcoming Meeting, and being eligible, have FEE A€ FRETEE B THFSERLE
offered themselves for re-election. BEERES-

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of Z{f  E2 N EBREETNEFLEBEHA
Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. =g

Nomination Policy RBABK

The Nomination Committee (the “Nomination Committee”) is responsible for IEZRZE @ ([ERKREEC )BT TEE 2
reviewing the Board composition and making recommendations to the Board ~ HJ4Ep W E Ak SR E E R E ENET
on the appointment or re-election of Directors and succession planning for st ZlMESE R HEZ  c AN FIHA TIESR
Directors. The Company adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination [ ([IBEBBFE|) @ ZHFE 0] NA D 7 548k
Policy”) which can be downloaded from the Company’s website. A summary T & - {22 B EBMEEHH| 0 -

of the Nomination Policy is set out below:

1. Purpose 1. BEH®W
To ensure that Board members have the skills, experiences and diverse HRESTeKEEBIUYANABEEA
perspectives needed by the Company’s business. TR &8N Z L E R -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EERERRE

2. Selection Principle
The factors listed below would be used as reference by the Nomination
Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate:

(1) The Company’s development strategy needs;
(2)  Reputation for integrity;

(8)  Achievements and experiences in the Company’s major
business;

(4)  Time devotion and the representation of relevant beneficial
parties;

(5)  Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender, age
(has to be aged 18 or older), cultural and educational
background, professional experiences, skills, knowledge and
management experiences;

(6)  Directorship in other public companies and corporate governance
structures of those companies, etc; and

(7)  Independence (for independent non-executive Director).

These factors are for references only and excluded to be exhaustive
and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the discretion to
nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.

3. Nomination Procedure
3.1 The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a meeting
of the Nomination Committee and invite nominations of
candidates from Board members if any, for consideration by the
Nomination Committee prior to its meeting. The Nomination
Committee may also put forward candidates who are not
nominated by Board members.

3.2 For filing a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall
propose candidates for the Board’s consideration and approval.
For proposing candidates to stand for election at a general
meeting of the Company, the Nomination Committee shall make
nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation.
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3.3

3.4

3.5

The nominated candidate(s) shall not assume that he/she has
been proposed by the Board to stand for election at the general
meeting of the Company until a circular to the Shareholders is
issued.

In order to provide information of the candidate(s) nominated by
the Board stand for election at general meeting of the Company,
the Company will issue a circular to the Shareholders stating the
candidate’s name, resume (including qualifications and relevant
experiences), proposed remuneration, and other information
required in accordance with applicable law, rules and regulation.

For independent non-executive Director, in addition to the
information listed in clause 3.4 above, the followings should also
be specified in the Shareholders’ circular:

(1)  Process used to identify the individual, reason why the
Board considers that individual should be elected, and
reason why the Board considers that individual is
independent;

(2)  If the nominated independent non-executive Director will
serve as a Director for the seventh (or more) public listed
companies, the reason why the Board believes this
individual can still devote enough time to fulfil his/her
director’s responsibilities;

(8) Views and perspectives, skills and experiences that
individual can bring to the Board;

(4)  How will this individual promote diversity of the Board; and

(5) Other contents that applicable laws, regulations, listing
rules and regulatory bodies required.

4. Responsibility
The ultimate responsibility for selecting and appointing Directors is
shared by all Directors of the Company.

3.3

3.4

3.5
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Monitoring and Reviewing

5.1 The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing
composition of the Board and succession plan of the Board, and
conduct a review annually.

5.2 The Nomination Committee should regularly monitor and review
formal procedures for the Nomination Policy to ensure that the
Nomination Policy is tailored to the needs of the Company and
reflects current regulatory requirement and good governance
practices.

THE BOARD COMMITTEES

(1) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 22 November 2011. The
Audit Committee currently comprises three members, namely Mr.
Wong Yik Chung, John (Chairman), Dr. Han Qinchun and Mr. Han
Xiaoping, all of the members are independent non-executive Directors.
The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year with the
Company’s external auditors regarding the review of the Company’s
financial report and accounts.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and removal of
auditor, review the financial statements, reports and accounts, and
review and monitor the financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control systems. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the Reporting Period.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee adopted by the
Board are in line with the provisions of the CG Code and are available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee has held three
meetings and mainly fulfilled the following responsibilities:

—  reviewed the unaudited interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2019 and the audited annual results for the year ended
31 December 2018, discussed the interim results and annual
results with external auditors (in the absence of the management
of the Company), and formed the opinion that the relevant
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards and regulation, and that
adequate disclosures have been made;
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(2)

— reviewed and assessed the independence of external auditors,
reviewed and approved the remuneration and the terms of
engagement of the Company’s auditor; and reviewed and made
recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of the
Company’s auditor; and

— reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and the internal
control systems of the Group.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the Reporting Period, the remuneration paid or payable to the
Company’s independent auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, in respect
of its audit and non-audit services were as follows:

—  RE R EIMNS R e
2 B9 3 4t /B AN 1 B R BUAD 2 B
REBGT  ARBHEEBARQF
TEE YRR EEGRHER
&R

- BHAEERBREERAMEE
Em2BHME -

A S B B 2 A

RARE DA - @A DB LB E
S0 K R S ED 3 5 AT 3 L AR B R 3E R
BRBENREAOFHOT :

The year of 2019 The year of 2018

—E-hEF —E)\F

Type of Services RMB’000 RMB’000
R ER AR®T T AR T T
Audit services Z SR 75 2,200 2,500
Non-audit services FE 1% BAR 15 — -
Total 48t 2,200 2,500

The statement of the Company’s independent auditor regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the Reporting Period is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 22 November 2011.
The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely Dr.
Han Qinchun (Chairman), Mr. Wei Qiang and Mr. Wong Yik Chung,
John, the majority of which are independent non-executive Directors
and one of the members is an executive Director.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the Directors
and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once every year to
discuss remuneration related matters. No Director is allowed to be
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.
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(3)

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee adopted
by the Board are in line with the provisions of the CG Code and are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee has held
one meetings, passed two written resolutions and mainly fulfiled the
following responsibilities:

— reviewed the remuneration policies of the Group for 2019 and
reviewed the remuneration package for executive Directors and
the senior management personnel;

— assessed the vesting of the share options granted by the
Company in previous years; and

— discussed and made recommendations to the Board on the
Chief Executive and Co-Chief Executive’s salary adjustments.

For the Reporting Period, remuneration of the senior management of
the Company (whose biographies are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report), other than
Directors as disclosed in note 37 to the audited consolidated financial
statements in this annual report, is within the following band for each
person:
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 22 November 2011.
The Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Wei
Qiang (Chairman), Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John and Mr. Han Xiaoping,
the majority of which are independent non-executive Directors and one
of the members is an executive Director.

The primary duty of the Nomination Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies
on the Board and senior management and to ensure that the
candidates to be nominated as Directors are experienced, high calibre
individuals.
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The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once every year for
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board, assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors and
other related matters. In reviewing and recommending the appointment
of new Directors, the Nomination Committee would seek to identify the
competencies required to enable the Board to fulfill its responsibilities.
The resume or documents of the nominee or candidate will be given to
the Nomination Committee for consideration.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee adopted
by the Board are in line with the provisions of the CG Code and are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee has held one
meeting, and mainly fulfilled the following responsibilities:

— reviewed the structure, composition of the Board and the Board
diversity policy;

— made recommendations regarding the re-election of retiring
Directors at the 2019 annual general meeting; and

—  assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. With a view to achieving a
sustainable and balanced development, the Company sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against appropriate criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The Board diversity policy (the “Diversity Policy”)
adopted aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. A
summary of the Diversity Policy is set out below:

1. Selection Criteria
Selection will be based on a range of diversity, including but not limited
to gender, age (has to be aged 18 or older), cultural and educational
background, professional experiences, skills, knowledge and
management experiences. When appointing Board members, the
principle is to comply with Company’s development, and the benefit of
diversity of Board members should also fully taken into account.
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Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experiences, skills, knowledge
and management experiences. The ultimate decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will report composition of the Board on
diversification prospect (including gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experiences, skills, knowledge and
management experiences) in the “Corporate Governance Report” and
monitor implementation of the Diversity Policy.

Review of the Diversity Policy

The Nomination Committee will review the Diversity Policy in a timely
manner to ensure that the Diversity Policy is effective. The Nomination
Committee will discuss any amendments that need to be made and
then propose amendments to the Board for approval.

Disclosure of the Diversity Policy
The Diversity Policy is posted on the website of the Company for public
review.

The summary of the Diversity Policy and measurable objectives and
compliance schedules established to implement the Diversity Policy will
be disclosed annually in the Corporate Governance Report.

For the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy, the following
measurable objectives have been adopted:

(@) in terms of age, the average age of Directors is 50.7, including
one Director aged 30-40, two Directors aged 41-50, and four
Directors aged above 50;

(o) in terms of professional background, the occupational
backgrounds and professional skills of three executive Directors
cover finance, law and clean energy and have more than ten
years of experience in their industry. The non-executive Director
has more than 20 years of experience in corporate management.
The occupational backgrounds and professional skills of the
independent non-executive Directors cover professional
accountants, investment and financing and clean energy and

have more than 20 years of experience in their industry;

2.
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(c) in terms of a regional perspective, the background of the
Directors covers Hong Kong and Mainland China with different
cultural backgrounds; and

(d) at least 1/3 of the Board members are independent non-
executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee believes that the current composition of the
Board is balanced and diversified with the high-calibre members from
different cultural backgrounds and possessing professional expertise of
various industries, which indicates that the Diversity Policy has been
well implemented.

BOARD MEETING AND ATTENDANCE
RECORD

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings regularly, at
least four times a year, and more frequently as the needs of the business
demand. The Directors can attend meetings in person or by means of such
telephone, electronic or other communication facilities so as to permit all
persons participating in the meeting to communicate with each other
simultaneously and instantaneously, and participation in such meeting shall
constitute presence in person at such meetings in accordance with Article
133 of the Articles of Association.

The Board and Committees’ meeting schedule and the agenda of each
meeting are made available to Directors in advance. Notices of regular Board
meetings were served to all Directors at least 14 days before the meetings.
For all other Board and Committees’ meetings, reasonable notices were
given. Papers for Board meetings or Committees’ meetings together with all
relevant information are sent to all Directors or Committee members at least
three days before each meeting to enable them to make informed decisions
with adequate data.

All Directors will also be provided with sufficient resources to perform their
duties, and upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense. All minutes of Board meetings will be recorded in
sufficient detail, including matters considered and decisions reached by the
Board.
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Meetings held and Attendance EETHNEBERLE

The Board held eight Board meetings during the Reporting Period. The 77N 3R & AR -
composition of the Board and the Committees, the attendance records of the - ZF @ &K%

EEgRT T \RESEES
B A RAREHHEE

Directors at the Board meetings, committees meetings and general meetings He@% ZE e LKRFEASHNES H
during the Reporting Period are set out below: BRI T :
Meetings attended/held
HE/BITHNEE
Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual Extraordinary
Board Committee Committee Committee general general
Name of Directors meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
EEg EREET YFHEES REZEEE® RREF
EEnA 25 = 25 = X8 BRREBIKRE
Executive Directors # {TE=
Mr. Wei Qiang MAREE(EEF

(Chairman and T A8 %)

Chief Executive

Officer) 5/8 N/ATEA 11 1/1 11 1M
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping mRELEAE

(Vice-Chairman and (Bl 3 J& # B /&

Co-Chief Executive — 7TIB{ 44 %)

Officer) 8/8 N/A T N/ADREEA  NARES 1/1 1/1
Dr. Liu Zhengang 2134 M 18 4 8/8 N/ATEM N/A FsE N/A @ 1/1 1/1
Non-executive FHTES

Director
Mr. Wei Shaojun MOELE 2/8 N/A TR N/ATER  NA TER 11 11
Independent BAEHTES

Non-executive

Directors
Dr. Han Qinchun BREEHL 8/8 3/3 11 N/ATEA 1/1 1/1
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, & 2 & % 4

John 8/8 3/3 11 11 1/1 11

Mr. Han Xiaoping BEYEAE 7/8 2/3 N/A i A

11

11

11
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Upon their appointments, Directors are advised on the legal and other duties
and obligations they have as directors of a listed company. Each newly
appointed Director receives a comprehensive induction package designed to
enhance his/her knowledge and understanding of the Group’s culture and
operations. Discussion sessions with key management personnel are also

held.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, we have arranged trainings which
were presented by professional firms to the Directors. Through the course of
their directorship, the company secretary of the Company also from time to
time updated and provided written training material relating to the roles,
functions and duties of a director and all the aforesaid Directors studied such
materials. All Directors are also encouraged to attend relevant training courses

at the Company’s expense.

We have maintained record of the continuous professional development
participated by the Directors. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
current Directors received the following training with an emphasis on the role,
functions and responsibilities of directors of listed companies through

attending training sessions and reading materials:

ABREEEXERE

EEGEREZOERBESAER LT ARNESMN
EENLERBEEIREMBERER BB
ZEEEHESFE - ZE2EABER - LR
HEAKE R EEOMBRT B - 1IN
ARRAESLHNEZEEFHIETRAR

25 3%
0 °©

REBE-Z—NWF+_A=+T—HLFE"
BMEXBEEXERRRESRHEEIN RE
ERECEFHHE ARFANQFAMETS D
REHMTREEREFTAL BERBED
EEBJEN MLA2RBEEHEEEZ
ZBER - ARANBEREE2MEME
FIERIE - B A B AR A ESE -

BMRETEF2EFBEXERRNLE
REBEE-_F-AF+t-_A=1t—-RHLEFE"
REESFERLFEIEREEMF  BX
NTEHERLTAREENAE Bk
BAEMEI

Reading

materials/
regulatory Attending
updates/ training
Name of Director monthly reports sessions

REAM R

EEEHEN
EEpng BERSE HEZIE
Mr. Wei Qiang Boak A& v 4
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping EEFRE v v
Dr. Liu Zhengang 21 Al 13 + v v
Mr. Wei Shaojun MOESLE v v
Dr. Han Qinchun BREE LT v v
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John HEBLAE v v
Mr. Han Xiaoping RIEFSRA 7 4
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s financial
statements for each financial period, which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules, the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and applicable
accounting standard. The Company deploys appropriate and sufficient
resources to prepare audited accounts. In preparing the financial statements
for the Reporting Period, the Board has selected suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates that are
prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis. The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and
necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities. In addition, the Company provides all
members of the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s performance,
position and prospects.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Risk Management Structure

The Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control system, and regularly
assessing and continuously supervising its effectiveness to safeguard the
overall interests of the Group and its Shareholders, and to foster the
sustainable development of the Group. However, the risk management and
internal control system formulated by the Group aims to manage, instead of
eliminate, all risks exposed to the Group. Such system cannot completely
eliminate inherent limitations such as unpredictable risks and events beyond
control (e.g. natural disasters, fraud and judgment errors), and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Group established an Enterprise Risk Management (the “ERM?”)
framework to implement effective risk management. Our risk management
structure is simple and clear, with a defined scope of duties.
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Board of Directors

As a body in charge of the Group’s risk management and internal control
system, the Board is responsible for the setting up of clear ERM framework
and risk management policies, aiming to assess and evaluate the business
strategies of the Group and its degree of risk tolerance. With the support of
the Audit Committee, whose authority has been delegated by the Board, the
Board constantly monitors the risk management and internal control system
of the Group, as well as conducts review as to its effectiveness at least once
year.

Audit Committee

As the highest body, second only to the Board, being responsible for the risk
management and internal control system, the Audit Committee provides
advice and support in respect of all risk matters, including on-going
monitoring of the implementation of risk management procedures, reviewing
the Group’s list of major risk exposures, reviewing and approving the internal
control review plans and results.

Management

The management of the Group is responsible for identifying and continuously
monitoring strategic, operational, financial, reporting and compliance risks
associated with the daily operations of the Group. The management reports
to the Board and the Audit Committee on relevant risks and their changes.
The management also designs, formulates and implements various internal
control measures to mitigate the risks, and rectify internal control deficiencies
they identified in a timely manner.

External Teams

The Company has also outsourced the internal audit function to an external
team, who carried out the analysis and independent appraisal of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems and directly reported the review results to the Audit
Committee. The auditor of the Company is also able to communicate to the
Audit Committee directly any internal control issues they noticed during their
audit process.
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Risk Management Procedures

The Group has established the ERM framework so as to effectively manage
all kinds of risks exposed to the Group. The ERM framework defined the
procedures for identifying, assessing, responding to and monitoring risks and
their changes. Through regular discussions with each operating function, the
Group strengthened the understanding of risk management so that all
employees will understand and report the risks timely which enhanced the
Group’s ability to identify and manage risks.

SRR EEREE
Assess the level of
importance of risks

RN A EE

Rl BT R

Define risk scope Identify potential risks,

EERMESHRERERAT  Fi% 2019

o
[

BEEEERRF

AEERY TOERAREEERNBREE
BEEBEMEENSERR ZEERREE
ERERTAEEBR - FFE - &5 ER &
Rk EECHNER - K EERE M NS
FRENPAENAREENRE  KMmEM
BEETERI & EERRR 058 EERR
EEMEEN -

il 7 FE T R R 4 it 2 M EREE
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In the course of risk identification, the management liaises with each operating
function, collects significant risk factors that affect the Group from the bottom
to the top, in various aspects including strategies, operational and financial
matters, reporting and compliances. After establishing risk assessment
scope, the management will assess the potential impact and possibilities of
the risks and prioritise the risks, and make appropriate internal control
measures are then developed to mitigate the risks identified and monitor the
changes of risks in an on-going manner.

Risk Management System

The Group’s risk management system is guided by the three lines of defence:

The first line of defence — Maintain an effective internal
control system (operational level)

The Group has set up a Risk Management Executive Team, comprising
functional centres, various business departments and all staff. In the course
of their daily operations, the functional centres, business segments and
individuals execute the risk management strategies of the Group, gather risks
in a timely manner based on the changes in the business and give the Risk
Management Leading Team feedback on the risks. The Risk Management
Leading Team revises and optimizes the risk management system to confine
risk management of the Group to the first line of defence.
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The major strategies of risk management of the Group include: establish clear
internal control policies and procedures, clearly define the responsibilities,
authorities and accountabilities of each key position; establish code of
conduct, convey to all employee the Group’s requirements on integrity and
ethic; establish whistle blowing mechanism, encourage employees to report
incidents of misconduct or fraud; establish appropriate level of information
technology assess rights, avoid leakage of price sensitive information; and
establish inside information disclosure policy, including reporting channels
and responsible person of disclosure, unified response to external enquiries
and obtain advice from professional financial advisors or the Stock Exchange,
if necessary.

In 2019, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of internal control policies
and procedures, including those related to financial reporting and Listing
Rules compliance and the management also conveyed confirmation of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems to the
Board and the Audit Committee. The Board has considered the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions when
reviewing risk management and internal control procedures.

The second line of defence — On-going risk monitoring
(risk management level)

The Group has set up a Risk Management Leading Team, comprising the
president, the vice-president and the directors of different centres. The Risk
Management Leading Team based on risk management framework and risk
management policies established by the Board designs, implements and
supervises the risk management system to identify, communicate and assess
the significant risks for the Group, and liaise with each operating function and
collect significant risk information that affects the Group from the bottom to
the top and continually monitors changes in risks.

The Group has established a risk register to record the risks identified, the
management will regularly assess the potential impact and possibilities of
each major risk and formulate relevant internal control measures.
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The third line of defence — Annual review (Board level)

The Board and the Audit Committee under the Board, which make up the
third line of defence, are responsible for assessing and determining the nature
and level of risks the Group is wiling to take in achieving its strategic
objectives, ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems, and supervising
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems on an
ongoing basis.

For 2019, the Company outsourced the internal audit function to an external
team, who has completed the analysis and independent appraisal of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems for the Reporting Period and has reported the review results
to the Audit Committee.

The management has established remediation and improvement plan for
internal control weaknesses identified. Nothing has come to the Audit
Committee’s or Board’s attention to believe that risk management and
internal control systems of the Group are inadequate or ineffective.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Risks and uncertainties involved in the business operations of the Group may
affect the Group’s financial conditions or growth prospects. In dealing with
these risk factors and uncertainties, the Group focuses on the control of risks
and uncertainties with the aim of understanding and addressing the concerns
of stakeholders. Such factors are by no means exhaustive or comprehensive,
and there may be other risks in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but could turn out to
be material in the future.

The key risks and uncertainties affecting the Group for 2019 are summarized
below.

Industry and Policy Risk

The Group’s smart energy, particularly the home photovoltaic systems
business, and public infrastructure construction business are all located in the
PRC. Performance of the Company’s principal businesses will also be
significantly affected by the government’s policy in respect of clean energy,
the extent of subsidy and adjustments, as well as the planning and storage
progress of local land by the Baoding Government. If the Group fails to grasp
and judge macroeconomic and national policy changes, and adjust its
operational strategies in time, the business development of the Group and
realisation of its operation targets may be affected.
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Countermeasures: FE ¥T 56 e

e the management continued to focus on the overall economic and o EEEREBIAEKERE¥XKEE
industrial policy changes and conducted analysis, research and > HREBRKERLY  BRIFRERRESE
prediction of macro-economic conditions, government policies and HEETHN  HREMER - WRET
industrial policies and timely adjust business development strategies ENBERELREARERERE SRR
according to the industry and policy changes; and 54

o fully considered potential policy risks before undertaking new . HETHEREBEBEAN D ZEETHIK
investment projects, and avoid investing in projects with uncertain KERE BEEENBRERERTBBEERZ
policy risks. BH -

Capital Risk TSR B

Smart energy and public infrastructure construction businesses require large EH ZRBRLR A EZRXEKZTEREELEL K

capital investment. Financing ability and financing cost of the Group depend A -+ 7 & [& &b & 88 /7 % &b & B 78 BUR 7 18 Bk
on global economic condition, interest rates and banks’ credit policy as well &M~ AR BT EERELRAEBR B &
as its own financial performance. The Group cannot guarantee that creditline, BB RILFAEF L - AEF TR BREH
cost and terms can be obtained according to the Group’s preference or B [E -~ Ak 7N 2 {6 TR B8 %9 3% AR 7K £2 B HY = A 3¢
project needs, which may affect the expected returns of business and EEEZEMER WX eEHEMEZ L EE R
projects. In addition, the Group cannot guarantee that it can recover its JEH ZFEztEHK - BN ANEE INE LR FAE
receivables and the external investment of the Group in time and in full. The REF R ER W AEE > EWEZ L AL E
Group’s profit and cash flow may therefore be significantly and adversely ¥ MR & 2 K IE - A& E 7 FHE & IR € 7 =X
affected. SERZINERTIHZE -

Countermeasures: FEH R B ¢

. strengthened cooperation with banks and external financing institutions, °

adopted diversified financing methods to minimise the Group’s financial
costs;

strengthened the overall management of funds, specified the standards
for each cost and expense item and strengthened budget management
during the daily operational management process; and

established the collection mechanism of receivables to follow up the
recovery progress of external investment funds in a timely manner, and
took measures such as litigation and preservation to recover the funds
and tried to ensure the recovery of investment funds if necessary.
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Investment, Merger and Acquisition Risk

The Group is currently in a stage of development which needs to support
business development through different investment, merger and acquisition
projects. If the Group fails to fully grasp real and comprehensive conditions
including operational, financial and legal conditions of the targets of the
transactions, and accurately evaluate actual value of the targets of
transactions, it may have to pay an exceedingly high transaction
consideration, or may have to bear liabilities for merger and acquisition
targets, or unable to recover investment funds in a timely manner, or bear the
risk of failure in investment, merger and acquisition.

Countermeasures:

° formed a professional team for investment, merger and acquisition,
established a sound investment, merger and acquisition system and
work flow, and implemented strict investment decision-making
procedures through comprehensive review of internal and external
experts to lower the Group’s risk of decision errors;

o conducted full financial, legal, technical and market due diligence
investigation for potential merger and acquisition projects to control
project risks and avoid merger and acquisition traps;

° in addition to stringent internal review, the Group appointed professional
evaluation institutions to conduct value assessment on merger and
acquisition projects, so as to verify whether the transaction
consideration is reasonable or not; and

° after completing projects for merger and acquisition, the Group
strengthened its capabilities on project integration as well as regularly
supervised and inspected its operation, financial and other
comprehensive performance in order to assess whether it reaches the
Group’s investment targets, and adopted corresponding measures in
time depending on actual conditions, so as to minimise the Group’s
investments risk.
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Integrated Management and Control Risks GEEER R

The support of well-developed organisational and governance structure is @ AEBEHK LR BETZTETENHBELE
necessary for the Group’s business development. In addition, the JEZEFE L #H LKA MHBEM XS LA ZERE
management needs to review and improve the organisational and governance &) & (b - & 12 B = E i 2 i 57 [ 5 = 48 4 AN
structure at all times to adapt to the changes as a result of changes in the & A28 - LA fE S (L o 40 B 7K &£ B 1) 48 4% 28
organisational structure brought about by new merger and acquisiton # -« Bt T RGBS BRI EEAST BEARE
business. If the organisational structure, functions orientation and capacity of B ZERFTE B EAEEHERHEEE R
integrated management and control could not support the development need ;i E& B fZ ) 88 /7 ©

of the Group, its capacity of realising the operational and strategic targets

would be affected.

iEARED

Countermeasures:

the management regularly reviewed development of business,
optimised legal person governance structure and regularly assessed
and reviewed the Group’s organisational structure and each function’s
orientation;

reviewed new investment, mergers and acquisitions business in time,
and formulated appropriate monitoring and internal control procedures
for new business, so that they are connected with current business
appropriately; and

set up appropriate monitoring structures and regularly reviewed
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
through external internal control advisor.

INSIDE INFORMATION MANAGEMENT

The Group’s procedure and internal control measures regarding the handling
and dissemination of inside information are listed below:

The Group is aware of its obligations under the disclosure requirements
under the Listing Rules and the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information issued by the Securities and Futures Commission in June
2012. The overriding principle is for the Group to make an
announcement as soon as any inside information comes to the
attention of the Group or the Group makes any decision based on such
information.
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° The Company has formulated its own Guidelines on Management and
Disclosure of Inside Information in accordance with the Listing Rules
and the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information, clarifying the
organization for managing inside information within the Company and
the processes for reporting and disclosing inside information, and
ensuring that Board members, the senior management personnel and
specific executive personnel with access to price-sensitive and/or
inside information by reason of their position or employment at the
Company or its subsidiaries are in strict compliance with the relevant
regulations and guidelines.

° By way of financial reports, announcements and its website, the Group
discloses information to the public in an extensive and non-exclusive
manner to implement and disclose its fair disclosure policy.

° In the course of communicating with any organization or individual
regarding the Company’s operating condition, financial condition and
other operating developments in a variety of formats, including
presentations on results, analyst presentations, roadshows and the
reception of investors for their research purposes, the Company
designates a specific executing entity for information disclosure.

o The Company has formulated its Confidentiality Protocol, expressly
prohibiting any unauthorized use of confidential information or inside
information. At the same time, staff members are required to sign a
confidentiality agreement during induction, which means they are
expected to take upon themselves the duty of confidentiality when they
start their job.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Zou Yanhong (“Ms. Zou”) and Ms. Ng Ka Man (“Ms. Ng”) were the joint
company secretaries of the Company. As Ms. Zou has acquired the relevant
experiences to act as the company secretary of the Company as required by
Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Zou officially serves as the sole company
secretary of the Company with effect from 1 October 2019. Simultaneously,
Ms. Ng resigned as the joint company secretary on the same date. For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 24
September 2019.
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Ms. Zou is the director of securities affairs department of the Company and is
also responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance matters and
ensuring that the Board policy and procedures, and the applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, Ms. Zou has undertaken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training respectively in compliance with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS
RELATIONS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear, timely and
effective communication with the Shareholders and the investors. The Board
also recognises that effective communication with the investors is the key to
establish investor confidence and to attract new investors. Therefore, the
Group is committed to maintaining a high degree of transparency to ensure
that the investors and the Shareholders receive accurate, clear,
comprehensive and timely information of the Group by the publication of
financial reports, announcements, circulars and other corporate
communications on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The Company’s website (www.longitech.hk) has been set up as a channel to
provide information of the Company to the Shareholders and potential
investors and to communicate with them directly and effectively. Shareholders
are welcomed to make enquiry to the Board or make request for the
Company’s information to the extent such information is publicly available.

The Board shall maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and the
investment community. Shareholders are also encouraged to attend the
annual general meeting and other general meetings that may be convened by
the Company, for which notices will be served for an adequate period in
accordance with the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association of the
Company. The Directors will be available to answer Shareholders’ questions
at the general meetings.

BLIARRABEEGBRE AERD
SEAEENEECRHER HRES
EHRERRE EAER BEREREGE
B -

BHE-_Z-AFE+-_A=+—"HB1LtFE &
ZTERE EMRAFEI2ME2 M D15
N FE R R L -

REERBRRBERE

EFeRAERRRIREERFEEH - KK
MEMBRNEZE -BFEEMARERE
EERTANEBREIERESRE L RRSIH#
HEENBRAT Al AEBBAORES
FHE BREEERBRERBE M KIAE
RAMUFTHENMERE A5 BERE
HihhEBANESERAASEER  BM -
SEEM KA ER o AR A B %48 (www.
longitech.hk) + 1 7% [[] iR 3R &8 £ 1% & & 12 fit
RAAREM UREEZSEEERERNE
BoARABAORERNESTSIEHERNRE
KIBEARRAIRAARRHANER -

EXERERRRREARRBEFEBR
BHOMR2ERRABHNRRBFAS R
HMBERAE  REBERRELTRAR
ARAREHBERAUNRE S HE AL -
EERRBERAREARRMELRM -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EERERRE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each issue at Shareholder meetings, including the election of
individual directors.

At any general meetings, a resolution put to vote of the meeting shall be
decided by way of a poll except where a show of hands is allowed under the
Listing Rules and the results of voting by poll will be declared at the meeting
and published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
respectively pursuant to the Listing Rules. At the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 30 May 2019, all resolutions, including the approval of
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2018, were passed by poll by the
Shareholders.

Convening of extraordinary general meeting and
putting forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting according to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of
Hong Kong) and the Articles of Association of the Company. According to
Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company, extraordinary general
meetings shall also be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the company secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
2 months after the deposit of such requisition.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director, Article 113 of the
Articles of Association of the Company stipulates that no person, other than a
retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be
eligible for election to the office of Director at any general meeting, unless
notice in writing of the intention to propose that person for election as a
Director and notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected
shall have been lodged at the Head Office or at the Registration Office. The
period for lodgment of the notices required under the Article will commence
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than seven days prior to the date
of such general meeting and the minimum length of the period during which
such notices to the Company may be given will be at least seven days. The
procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a director
are available on the website of the Company.
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Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the Company to
the Board could email their enquiries to investor@longitech.hk.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Reporting Period, there is no significant change in constitutional
documents of the Company.
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To the Shareholders of LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of LongiTech Smart Energy Holding
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
103 to 215, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2019;

° the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Recoverability of trade receivables

° Recoverability of financial assets at amortised cost

Key Audit Matter
BREASE

@

/\);&4 j(“

W

BMESRFTHBENOBRBFZTEMRRLT

o EURFEY AU E1E
o REHKAFENDREEMN WO

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BENEFNNEEBRETSE

Recoverability of trade receivables
FE W BR Sk A9 BT 2 B 1

Refer to note 26 Trade and other receivables to the consolidated
financial statements.
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As at 31 December 2019, the gross carrying amount of trade
receivables amounted to RMB339,124,000, with loss allowance
amounting to RMB187,467,000.
RZE-—NEF+T_A=+—RHB EREFNEELE
AR #339,124000T ' EFRNEEBRERARE
187,467,000 7T °

The Group assesses expected credit loss allowances of trade
receivables using credit risk exposure and expected credit loss
rates. The Group assesses the expected credit losses on a
forward looking basis. When measuring expected credit losses,
the Group considers historical loss rates, current market
conditions and available reasonable and supportive forwarding-
looking information, including economic policies,
macroeconomic indicators, industry risks and changes in
debtors’ conditions.
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We performed the following procedures in respect of
management’s assessment on recoverability of trade
receivables:
BMHEEEEHEKES
2
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° We understood and evaluated relevant controls in place
on granting credit to third parties and on management’s
assessment on the recoverability of trade receivables.

e HMBEMIAGRTE=ZZERREREEEKE
TR AJ Y (B 1 G A AR R By FE o)

o For trade receivables assessed individually, we evaluated
the basis of management’s assessment on expected
credit losses and corroborated management’s
assessment against evidence gathered from procedures
including reviewing debtors’ historical payment records,
searching for debtors’ background and creditworthiness
information, and reviewing debtor’s available financial
information and forecasted future cash flow conditions.
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Key Audit Matter
BEETEE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWETNAEEEEENSE

We focus on this area due to the significant balances of trade

receivables as at 31 December 2019 and the uncertainty of

estimation involved in management’s assessment on the
recoverability of trade receivables. Any changes in the

circumstances of the debtors may affect the recoverability of

relevant balances.
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° For trade receivables assessed collectively by reference to
the credit risk characteristics, we assessed the
reasonableness of the grouping and the respective
expected credit loss, by testing the accuracy of grouping
and aging of trade receivables on a sample basis,
recalculation of migration rate, assessing the
reasonableness of expected credit loss rate by reference
to historical audit experience and forward-looking
information, and testing the mathematical accuracy of
calculations of expected credit loss allowance.
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o We tested subsequent collections of trade receivables
after the end of the reporting period on a sample basis.
J BP9 B A B 3 S AR 18 PR AR SR B ;B R ©

Based on the procedures described above, we consider
management’s assessment on the recoverability of trade
receivables is supportable by the evidence we gathered.
BIEEMERF BMRE ARENIBREHNIHEREE
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Key Audit Matter
BEETEE

8
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWETNAEEBEEENSE

Recoverability of financial assets measured at amortised cost

RBHEHRATENSREEN T RE M

Refer to note 23 Financial assets at amortised cost to the
consolidated financial statements.

FL2RGAVBBRRMIBRBHERATENSREE -

As at 31 December 2019, the gross carrying amount of financial
assets at amortised cost amounted to RMB232,811,000, with
loss allowance amounting to RMB95,789,000.
RZZE-—NAF+ZA=1T—H KEHEKIAENE/E
EREAEAARK232,811,0007T * BN EERE R
A K # 95,789,000 7T °

The Group took into account reasonable and substantiated
historical data such as principal and interest payment schedule,
ageing, repayment history, subsequent repayment, financial
information of the counterparties, and available forward-looking
information to determine whether the credit risk has significantly
increased since initial recognition and to calculate expected
credit losses.
EEBERABALTENRLER A MF SR
REE Rk BEXRH PREXBERL XH5FHNIK
BERARFTARRIEMEEN  UREEARR B 75 %R
AR REEL I Wit EEBERAER -

We performed the following procedures in respect of
management’s assessment on recoverability of financial assets
at amortised cost:
BMSTHEREHREHFEKNAGT 2N R EE A Y et
R EIT T ATERF

° We understood and evaluated relevant controls in place
on granting loans to third parties and on management’s
assessment on the recoverability of financial assets at
amortised cost.

. BMBEBITEARTE=Z2F7ERREIEE EIRZEH
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o We interviewed with the management to get knowledge of
each counterparty and the status of project cooperated
with or developed by the counterparties.
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Key Audit Matter
BEETEE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWETNAEEEEENSE

We focus on this area due to the significant balances of financial
assets at amortised cost as at 31 December 2019 and the
assessment of the recoverability involves significant
management judgements and estimates as it involves the
consideration of a number of factors including historical data,
especially the historical payment and default records, and
forward-looking information, mainly the forecasted future cash
flow conditions.
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o We examined the historical data used by the Group to
determine whether the credit risk has significantly
increased since its initial recognition, especially historical
payment and default records.
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° We interviewed with the management for the consideration
of forward-looking information and corroborated
management’s assessment against evidence gathered
from procedures including searching for debtors’
background and creditworthiness information, status of
legal proceedings (where applicable), reviewing debtor’s
available financial information and reviewing the
reasonableness and computation of management’s
forecasted future cash flow conditions.
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Based on the procedures described above, we consider
management’s assessment on the recoverability of financial
assets at amortised cost is supportable by the evidence we
gathered.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,

the directors are

responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but

to do so.

Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial

reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable

assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement

when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB E

o
[

_a

pwec B A A

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional EREBEEFEALENETEAHBRES K
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 1388 7 FX 4 - RIF T BEIEREE - &
75 :

i

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB E

_a

pwec

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Ng Ping Fai.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ—ZT—NFT+-A=1+—HLFE

o
o

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1T—-BLEE

2019 2018
—®-nE —B-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

it AR® T ARBTT

Revenue U 25 5(a) 147,460 708,493
Cost of sales $HE AR 6 (68,786) (464,662)
Gross profit EF 78,674 243,831
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAS 6 (1,740) (22,146)
Administrative expenses TR 6 (72,212) (89,234)
Impairment losses on financial and contract assets & &t & & 414 2 #) 5 (8 &5 18 8 (316,169) (15,761)
Other income H g A 9 585 2,107
Other gains — net H i 5 % 58 10 2,100 1,211
Operating (loss)/profit re(BR), EF (308,762) 120,008
Finance income & WA 11 13,461 7,330
Finance expenses BMERXZ 11 (35,989) (16,638)
Finance expenses — net BERTFE (22,528) (9,308)
Share of net profit of associates accounted for HKAEZEAARNE 2 QA

using the equity method ") 4 A1 15 58 20 5,422 8,187
(Loss)/profit before income tax BT B AT (BE), wR (325,868) 118,887
Income tax credit/(expense) Frismizs,/ (B ) 12 64,454 (10,386)

(Loss)/profit for the year FER(EER)ER (261,414) 108,501
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BEZ—ZT—NFT+-_A=1+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E—)N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
b AR®ET T AREF T
(Loss)/profit is attributable to: LT L (EE) 55

Owners of the Company ViN/NETE7 ¥ =N (264,522) 107,720
Non-controlling interests FEVE A% HE == 3,108 781
(261,414) 108,501

(Loss)/earnings per share for (loss)/profit AATES AFELL (B5B)

attributable to owners of the Company (RMB): 3 %I #5 I& (E518) /& F

(AR :

Basic (loss)/earnings per share REAR (E18) BT 13 (0.1782) 0.0821
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share GRS (BR) & 13 (0.1782) 0.0820

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

PA b #r & 1R ot % 8 BRBE B MO B i — GFBOAE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SEZHEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ—ZT—NFT+-A=1+—HLFE

o
o

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1T—-BLEE

2019 2018
—2-7FE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBTT

(Loss)/profit for the year FER(EE) ZFA (261,414) 108,501
Other comprehensive income Htt 2 @K A
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to BE1MBEEF D B E BV IAH

profit or loss

Exchange differences on translation of financial BE B INETS SRR FTE AR

statements of overseas operations PE o, =58 3,450 14,638

Other comprehensive income for the year, FRHEMEEKA  LHEKRHE

net of tax 3,450 14,638
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year HFRA2HE (E8) W AHB%E (257,964) 123,139

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the yearis U T EEFER2EH (BE),

attributable to: N
Owners of the Company PINNCIEZ SN (261,072) 122,358
Non-controlling interests JEFE AR R3S 3,108 781

(257,964) 123,139

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read A F 4R & & T Ut 25 X FE B2 B B &9 BT 5= — 6F B

in conjunction with the accompanying notes. i o



106 LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited  Annual Report 2019

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
mEEERER

At 31 December 2019 R—ZE—HE+-A=+—H

As at 31 December

Rt=A=+-8
2019 2018

—2-n%E  —FN\F

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

it AR T AREET T

Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Leasehold land and land use rights T E 1t J 4 i {F R A - 4,254
Property, plant and equipment ME - HE MK 14 477,990 498,459
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15 19,861 —
Intangible assets mIEE 16 9,551 19,698
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 17 70,007 3,021
Contract assets BHNEE 18 43,738 155,440
Investments accounted for using the equity method £ B #2555 A BRI 1% & 20 280,645 101,587
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ~ #Z A FEE B HEZ 8 A

BanemEE 22 - 8,762
Financial assets at amortised cost BEEEKATENSREE 23 13,750 —
Other non-current assets HMIEme & E 24 10,969 7,781
Total non-current assets IRBEEHAE 926,511 799,002
Current assets RENEE
Inventories P 25 8,755 24,480
Contract assets BHEE 18 361,728 304,350
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b e I8 26 175,969 543,486
Financial assets at amortised cost BREBHEKN AT ENSREE 23 123,272 178,513
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ~ ZAF(EE & B H& & A

BaerEE 22 157,003 155,681
Restricted cash PR HIER & 27 66,388 1,219
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEEEY 28 32,228 162,917
Total current assets RBEEAR 925,343 1,370,646

Total assets BEEMAE 1,851,854 2,169,648




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

EERMESHRERERAT  Fi% 2019

mEEEEER
At 31 December 2019 R —ZE—H&E+-A=+—H
o] o
As at 31 December
Rt+=-—A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-AF —E—N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 3E AR®T AREFIT
Equity and liabilities EakEE
Share capital N 29(a) 12,255 12,255
Reserves = 29(b) 1,162,613 1,154,287
Retained earnings IREE &R 40,918 307,248
Equity attributable to owners of the Company  Z&A R# A A E/GRE 1,215,786 1,473,790
Non-controlling interests FERER 9,307 6,159
Total equity EREEE 1,225,093 1,479,949
Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings EBE 30 235,400 534,400
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 12,016 =
Deferred government grants iR AT IR AT 4 B 2,279 2,386
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEE 17 11,891 12,291
Total non-current liabilities FrBaERRE 261,586 549,077
Current liabilities FEBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 N E b e 218 31 50,184 95,041
Contract liabilities SHEE 1,009 2,184
Current tax liabilities BNERF T & (& 11,854 10,197
Borrowings =8y 30 299,000 33,200
Lease liabilities HEARE 15 3,128 —
Total current liabilities RBEERE 365,175 140,622
Total liabilities EERE 626,761 689,699
Total equity and liabilities ERLEBERE 1,851,854 2,169,648

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 103 to 215 were approved by the Board
of Directors on 30 March 2020 and were signed on its behalf

Wei Qiang

B

DAk A T B R BB 0 B R —

B

F1BBEEF2I58EFEVERERR T
FZA=t+HKESFeHE THTINES

KREE

Liu Zhengang

2| ik B
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GEREZBER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BEZ—ZT—NFT+-_A=1+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG 2N
Share-based Non-

Share Share  Statutory compensation  Exchange Other  Retained controlling

capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve eamings Total interests  Total equity
AR AR

BA - Rl OiEREE ORMEE EXRE A0EE RIERK Bt EEREE RS
RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMBOOO  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMB'0OD  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTL ARBTL ARETL ARBTL ARETT ARETI ARETR ARETL ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2018 R=Z—\ £
—-A-B&& 7629 527,543 24,773 1,332 2,177) 4187 210300 773,587 1214 774,801

Comprehensive income 2 WA

Profit for the year FRET - — — - - - 107,720 107,720 781 108,501
Other comprehensive Hit2EKA
income - - - - 14,638 - - 14,638 - 14,638

Total comprehensive 2ERAEE
income - - - - 14,638 - 107,720 122,358 781 123,139

Transactions with owners S A ANEER A
in their capacity as HERETHRS

owners
Rights issue ik 3,699 438,699 - - - - - 442,398 - 442,398
Placing of new shares REmRR 27 124,113 - - - - — 125040 — 125,040
Non-controlling interests on 4 & i B 22 71 &

acquisition of FERER

subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 4,700 4,700
Contributions of equity BEEdE - - - - - - - - 500 500
Dividends provided foror ~ RERR B {E I B S

paid ERRE - - = = -~ = = = (1,036) (1,036)
Appropriation to statutory A AE

reserve - — 10,772 - - - (10,772) - - -
Equity-settled share-based 1218 25 & B LA IR {p

transactions ST - - - 10,407 - - - 10,407 - 10,407

4,626 562,812 10,772 10,407 — — (10,772) 577,845 4,164 582,009

Balance at 31 December R=Z—/\f
2018 +=-A=+-H
33 12,255 1,090,355 35,545 11,739 12,461 4,187 307,248 1,473,790 6,159 1,479,949
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ—ZT—NFT+-A=1+—HLFE

O ®
Attributable to owners of the Company
ENCE 2PN 1
Share-based Non-
Share Share  Statutory compensation Exchange Other  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  eamnings Total interests Total equity
URG XM

BA RfEE AERE ORHERE EXRE 24EE RERK A FEREE  ARs
Notes RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
M ARBTR ARMTR ARMTRT ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARRTR AR%TR

Balance at 1 January 2019 R=F—- N5
-B—-R&& 12,255 1,090,355 35,545 11,739 12,461 4187 307,248 1,473,790 6,159 1,479,949

Comprehensive income 2 WA

Loss for the year FNEE - - - - - - (264,522)  (264,522) 3,108  (261,414)
Other comprehensive Hi2EHBA
income - - - - 3,450 - - 3,450 - 3,450

Total comprehensive loss 2 i B4 % - - - - 3,450 - (64522)  (261,072) 3108 (257,964)
Transactions with owners E#HANEHEF A
in their capacity as MERETHR S
owners
Contributions of equity ERHE - - - - - - - - 40 40
Appropriation to statutory % % 5 £ {8
reserve 29(0) - - 1,808 - - - (1,808) - - -
Equity-settled share-based 1% 1 25 & & AR 17
transactions YRORS ) - - - 3,068 - - - 3,068 - 3,068
- - 1,808 3,068 - - (1,808) 3,068 40 3,108
Balance at 31 December R=Z—- N %
2019 +=A=1-8
o373 12,255 1,090,355 37,353 14,807 15,911 4187 40,918 1,215,786 9,307 1,225,093

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in A _E 47 A # 25 & B) & & 2268 Y 00 MY 52 — 0F 5
conjunction with the accompanying notes. & o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FMERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Zx= —

—hETZA=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hE T —\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB 000
B 5 ARET T ARBFIT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHMBEERE
Cash generated from operations KBTS E & 88 188,506 482,784
Interest received W ERF B 284 467
Income tax paid TSR (1,274) (28,589)
Net cash generated from operating activities K& SEEMEBEHR S TEE 187,516 454,666
Cash flows from investing activities RETHFMBEESHRE
Payments for acquisition of subsidiaries, net of U RE BB R B X N R
cash acquired HRmERe - 1
Payments for leasehold land and land use rights gt & £ i [ + #b {55 FH
X I8 - (3,077)
Payments for property, plant and equipment P E - f B &R 1% SENE/SE (17,031) (67,169)
Payments for intangible assets MEFEEZNHRIE (121) (7,820)
Payments for investments in associates R EH S AR X KT (245,000) (93,400)
Payments for financial assets at fair value through  Btiz A F(EEH £ B H & EJr
profit or loss A= m%ﬂﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁ - (182,289
Loans to related parties BERTEE A 35(a) (98,045) (111,650)
Loans to third parties BRFE=H (127,568) (66,400)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEKN B AR FrSIE 2,000 31,702
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEYE BMELEKES
equipment IE 4,311 6,039
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at HEZATEF=ZAEEY
fair value through profit or loss AABEMEREEMS
28 4,072 16,148
Repayment of loans by related parties Rl S EEER 165,946 =
Repayment of loans by third parties BFEZHEEER 102,850 =
Interest received on financial assets at WHIRBE KA EN SR
amortised cost BERNS 12,487 3,907
Distributions received from associate Ui B B N B 9 R AR B 8,597 —
Cash received on exercise of put option W E R H BRRE IR & 7,403 =
Government grants received LT HR AT #6 Bh - 2,000
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash SR HIE S (g M), 5 (65,169) 460
Net cash used in investing activities REZHFABESFE (245,268) (471,548
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ—ZT—NFT+-A=1+—HLFE

o
[

Year ended 31 December

BE+-RA=1+—-BHLFE

2019 2018
—2-7FE —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

it AR® T ARBTT

Cash flows from financing activities RMEIBHMEEERE
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares BT RIS R - 567,438
Proceeds from equity contribution of FE AR AR PR A 1 & P 1S

non-controlling shareholders B 40 500
Repayment of borrowings BEEEE (33,200) (365,945)
Interest paid S FE (35,879) (40,281)
Principal elements of lease payments HENRAE IS (2,855) =
Funds received from related parties BB KRENES 35(a) 74 8,060
Repayment of funds to related parties BEABINES 35(a) (752) (97,387)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests EEA NGB g

in subsidiaries TRRE - (1,036)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMEES(FTA) RS

financing activities R (72,572) 71,349
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERBELEEYWORD)

cash equivalents Vb b-2 (130,324) 54,467
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of RETNR SRR EEY

the year 162,917 107,022
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and HehBeEEYER

cash equivalents (B8), M= (365) 1,428
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of RERNBEERESEEY

the year 28 32,228 162,917

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in >

conjunction with the accompanying notes. a

ALBFABRSRERE LN M — 516

o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Zx= —

—hETZA=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 January 2011 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O.
Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, the Cayman Islands. The
Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 12 January 2012.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in smart energy business and public infrastructure
construction business. The two major shareholders of the Company
are Longevity Investment Holding Limited and Lightway Power Holdings
Limited. The ultimate beneficial owner of the Company is Mr. Wei
Shaojun (the “controlling shareholder”).

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted
in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), which include all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards
(“IASs”) and Interpretations issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain
financial assets measured at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ—ZT—NFT+-A=1+—HLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

2.1.1New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for

the first time for their annual reporting period commencing on 1 January

2019:

° IFRS 16 Leases

o Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation —
Amendments to IFRS 9

° Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures —
Amendments to IAS 28

° Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015 — 2017 Cycle

° Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement — Amendments to
IAS 19
o Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The Group had to change its accounting policies as a result of adopting
IFRS 16. The Group elected to adopt the new rules by recognising the
cumulative effect of initially applying the new standard on 1 January
2019, which is disclosed in Note 2.2. The other amendments listed
above did not have any material impact on the amounts recognised in
prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or
future periods.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.2New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

The following published new accounting standards and interpretations

are not mandatory for 31 December 2019 reporting periods and have

not been early adopted by the Group:
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Effective for annual period
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IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
BB B 75 3R 5 E R A7 5% REBEH

Definition of Material

BEUMTES

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8
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R FE8HMEET

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

HEIR IS R E IR AERT EBHER

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
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These standards are not expected to have a material impact on the
Group in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions.

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases on the
Group’s financial statements.

As indicated in Note 2.1.1 above, the Group has adopted IFRS 16
Leases from 1 January 2019, but has not restated comparatives for the
2018 reporting period, as permitted under the specific transition
provisions in the standard. The reclassifications and the adjustments
arising from the new leasing rules are therefore recognised in the
opening balance sheet on 1 January 2019. The new accounting
policies are disclosed in Note 2.24.

1 January 2021

—E-_-%—H—H
1 January 2020
—E-T5—-HF—H
1 January 2020
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1 January 2020
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

On adoption of IFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities in relation
to leases which had previously been classified as 'operating leases’
under the principles of IAS 17 Leases. These liabilities were measured
at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019. The
weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to the
lease liabilities on 1 January 2019 was 5.39% per annum.

2.2.1Practical expedients applied
In applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has used the following
practical expedients permitted by the standard:

° applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics

° relying on previous assessments on whether leases are onerous
as an alternative to performing an impairment review — there
were no onerous contracts as at 1 January 2019

o accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of
less than 12 months as at 1 January 2019 as short-term leases

° excluding initial direct costs for the measurement of the right-of-
use asset at the date of initial application, and

° using hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract
contains options to extend or terminate the lease

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether a contract is, or
contains a lease at the date of initial application. Instead, for contracts
entered into before the transition date the Group relied on its
assessment made applying IAS 17 and Interpretation 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTI NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
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2.2.2 Measurement of lease liabilities 222 EREMNTE
RMB’000
ARET T
Operating lease commitments as at REZBE-—NFE+A=T—HANKEHERE
31 December 2018 26,139
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental BOREEF B A AT AL S ERA R ETHR
borrowing rate at the date of initial application 14,541
Less: short-term leases not recognised as W ARERBBENEHEE
a liability (2,936)
Less: low-value leases not recognised as a liability & : KR ABEHEREEHEE (28)
Lease liability recognised as at 1 January 2019 RZ-ZE—NF— A —HERANHEEE 11,577
Of which are: Hoh o
Current lease liabilities REBHEEAE 578
Non-current lease liabilities FRBEERE 10,999
11,577
2.2.3Measurement of right-of-use assets 223FEFAEENTE

The right-of use assets were measured at the amount equal to the
lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to that lease recognised in the balance sheet as at
31 December 2018.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

2.2.4 Adjustments recognised in the balance sheet
on 1 January 2019

The change in accounting policy affected the following items in the

balance sheet on 1 January 2019:

° Leasehold land and land use rights — decreased by
RMB4,254,000

° right-of-use assets — increased by RMB15,831,000

o lease liabilities — increased by RMB11,577,000

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

2.3.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity where the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to
direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business
combinations by the Group (Note 2.4).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are
shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and balance sheet, respectively.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

2.3.2 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence
but not control or joint control. This is generally the case where the
Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments
in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting
(Note 2.3.3), after initially being recognised at cost.

2.3.3 Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit or
loss, and the Group’s share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates are recognised as a reduction in
the carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment
equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf
of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested for
impairment in accordance with the policy described in Note 2.10.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.4 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all
business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments or
other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

o fair values of the assets transferred

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business

° equity interests issued by the Group

° fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary

|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity and acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity over the fair value
of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.4 Business combinations (Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the
amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present value as
at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing
could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified as either
equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date
carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains
or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

2.5 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend
is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.6 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The Board of Directors of the Company has identified the senior
executive management as the chief operating decision-maker, who
assesses the financial performance and position of the Group, makes
strategic decisions and allocates resources.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation

2.7.1 Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Chinese
renminbi (‘RMB”), which is the Group’s presentation currency.

2.7.2Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year-end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they
relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges or are attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign
operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are
presented in the statement of profit or loss, within finance costs. All
other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement
of profit or loss on a net basis within other gains/(losses).

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. For example, translation differences on non-monetary assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equities
classified as fair value through other comprehensive income are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (continued)

2.7.3Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet,

° income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss and
statement of comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions), and

o all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they
are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.8 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or revalued amounts, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives or, in the case of leasehold improvements and
certain leased plant and equipment, the shorter lease term, as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 5-25 years
Motor vehicles 5-10 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount and included in profit or loss.

2.9 Intangible assets
2.9.1 Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.4. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is
not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying
amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (“CGUs”) for impairment
testing. The allocation is made to those CGUs or groups of CGUs that
are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose. The CGUs or groups of CGUs are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes, being the operating segments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (continued)
2.9.2Patent

Patent acquired in a business combination is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. It has a finite useful life and is subsequently carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any.

2.9.3Software

Acquired computer software is stated at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. Costs associated with maintaining software programmes are
recognised as an expense as incurred.

2.9.4 Amortisation methods and periods

The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited useful life using
the straight-line method over the following periods:

Software 5 years
Patent 10 years

2.10lmpairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or CGUs. Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 A% —

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets

211.1Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through
profit or loss or through other comprehensive income (“OCI”)),
and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will be recorded in
either profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity instruments that
are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

211.2Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

211.3Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVPL”) are expensed in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTI NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

211.3Measurement (Continued)

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment
of principal and interest.

(a) Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange
gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate
line item in the statement of profit or loss.

. FVOCI

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and
for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through
OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in other gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
other gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

REFTHEBRE @

2B ERHEMEHMEE @

211351 & (#|)
RETHESRERTARAYNEAS
REMERKE2EEBHMSHRARITE
TEMESHMEE -

@ BEXIA
BEBELEMNHAAEIARAEEER
BEMNEBEAREENR @ RER
B-A5EBEBEBEIAD A==
5

e AR
HMANBREWESTREMTADN
EENREREARE/BINEE
RHB  AZEBEERBHEKAA
Re-ZEeMEENNEBAER
BEBRMIEFARE WA - R ILHE
REENEFMREABEEEER
BaPER WHEN RS RER
— iR EMmk s (BR) RE5 -
BMEBERERSRTIESEBRE
BE7-

o BAFEFTEEEZHT AEAM
2mEKA
MABKBEHNEERELHES
MEEMBENEENRESARE
HEAEINAERFE  BAIZEE
ERATHEFSEEFHF AR
HEEWRAGTE - REEDZ T
AEMEEUYA - MHERIBR R ER
E’J/JEUEHSZ sk 1A - BB A R IE
B REENERRIN - 2@E
ERIFERE SRR EM2mEK
AFERH RS K BB R ED
EFoEEEE TREMUKES
(BE)TER - ZEZeREENF
BERAFERERMEELFARE
WA o BE 5 M as K g5 18 T i H A Uk
#=/BB)FEY MREBER
BanRxPIEREBELEZY -

5



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 A% —

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

211.3Measurement (Continued)

(@) Debt instruments (Continued)

° FVPL
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI
are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that
is subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss
and presented net within other gains/(losses) in the period in
which it arises.

(b) Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value.
Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in
other gains/(losses) in the statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

211.4lmpairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost
and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

The Group has three types of financial assets that are subject to the
expected credit loss model:

o trade and other receivables
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

2114Impairment (Continued)
° contract assets relating to public infrastructure construction
business, and

o debt investments carried at amortised cost

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment
requirements of IFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was immaterial.

Impairment losses on financial assets are presented as net impairment
losses within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the same line item. Financial
assets are written off where there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery
include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group.

() Trade and other receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for trade receivables and contract assets. The contract assets relate to
unbilled work in progress. To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables and contract assets have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and ageing, assessed collectively or
individually for likelihood of recovery.

Impairment on other receivables is measured as either 12 months’
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit loss, depending on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk of a receivable has
occurred since initial recognition, then impairment is measured as
lifetime expected credit losses.

Quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s loss allowance for
contract assets and trade and other receivables as at 31 December
2019 are disclosed in Note 18 and 26.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ—ZT—NFT+-A=1+—HLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

2114Impairment (Continued)

(ii) Debt investments carried at amortised cost
Impairment on the Group’s debt investments carried at amortised cost
is measured as either 12 months’ expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses, depending on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Debt
instruments are considered to be low credit risk where they have a low
risk of default and the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term. If a significant
increase in credit risk of a debt investment has occurred since initial
recognition, then impairment is measured as lifetime expected credit
losses. Quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s loss
allowance for debt investments carried at amortised cost as at 31
December 2019 are disclosed in Note 23.

2.12Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates
and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

2.13Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration
that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

The Group’s impairment policies of trade receivables are disclosed in
Note 3.1.2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BEZ—ZT—NFT+-_A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.14Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and deposits held at call
with banks.

2.15Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.16 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to
the Group prior to the end of the financial year which are unpaid. Trade
and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment
is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the
establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of
the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has
been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 A% —

—hETZA=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.17 Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

2.18 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

2.19Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on
the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

2191 Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.19Current and deferred income tax (continued)

2192Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that future
taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and where
the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current
tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.20Employee benefits

220.1Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and
accumulating sick leave that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’
services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the
balance sheet.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (continued)

2202Post-employment obligations
The Group’s post-employment scheme are defined contribution
pension plan.

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entiting them to the
contributions. The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid.

2.21 Share-based payments

The fair value of options granted is recognised as an employee benefit
expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted:

° including any market performance conditions (for example, the
Company’s share price),

° excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time
period), and

° including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example,
the requirement for employees to save or hold shares for a
specific period of time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of
each period, the Group revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates,
if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the asset is transferred
to the customer. Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the asset may be transferred over
time or at a point in time. Control of the asset is transferred over time if
the Group’s performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer,

o creates and enhances an asset (for example, work in progress)
that the customer controls as the Group performs, or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to the payments for the
performance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is recognised over
the period of the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the asset. The progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation is measured based on one of the following
methods that best depict the Group’s performance in satisfying the
performance obligation:

° direct measurements of the value to the customer of the goods
or services transferred to date relative to the remaining goods or
services promised under the contract, or

o the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the
satisfaction of that performance obligation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.23Earnings per share

223.1Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable
to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year.

2232Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination
of basic earnings per share to take into account:

o the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

° the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that
would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.24Leases

As explained in Note 2.2 above, the Group has changed its accounting
policy for leases where the Group is the lessee. The new policy is
described below and the impact of the change is disclosed in Note 2.2.

Until 31 December 2018, leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership were not transferred to the Group as
lessee were classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) were
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-
lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.24 | eases (Continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivable,

° variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date,

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees,

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise that option, and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the
case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party financing was received,

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate
adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which does
not have recent third party financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, for example, term,
country, currency and security.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.24 | eases (Continued)

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease
payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in the
lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments
based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed
and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received,

o any initial direct costs, and
U restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-
use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or
loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less.

2.25Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being
appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the Group,
on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the
end of the reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.26 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred government
grants and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

2.27 Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
is included in the net fair value gains/(losses) on these assets (Note 10).

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned from
debt investments carried at amortised cost (Note 11).

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets
that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

This note explains the Group’s exposure to financial risks and how
these risks could affect the Group’s future financial performance.

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk), credit risk, concentration risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

3.1.1 Market risk

(@) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s foreign exchange risk is primarily with respect to the US
dollar (“US$”). Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a
currency that is not the functional currency of the relevant entity. The
risk is measured through a forecast of highly probable US$
transactions.

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk as at 31 December 2019
and 2018, expressed in RMB, is as follows:
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

(@) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The following foreign-exchange related amounts were recognised in
profit or loss for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018:

B 7% [ B B B ()

3.1 B EREZE @

3.1.1 7 5 & B (@)

(@) HMEERBR (&)
REBEZ2_ZT—NFER_FT—N\F+=-A
=t HIEFEERERNINERB S
RN

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hF AN
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR®TT

Net foreign exchange gains included in BN B F R
other gains — net PE 5 U 2 5 58

(325) 1,005

As most of the Group’s US$ denominated financial instruments are
held by the Group’s entity whose functional currency is Hong Kong
dollar (‘HK$"), the Group is primarily exposed to changes in US$/HK$
exchange rates. The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the
exchange rates arising mainly from US$ denominated financial
instruments is as follows:

HRAEBALOAEXETIHENEHET
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Year ended 31 December

BE+t=-A=+t—-BLEE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AREET T

US$/HKS exchange rate — increase 5% ETLHBTHIER — % IN15% 7,605 7,694
US$/HKS exchange rate — decrease 5% LR B THIER — 5% (7,605) (7,694)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

(o) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings.
Borrowings with variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk which is offset by cash held at variable rates. Borrowings with
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. During the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group’s borrowings
were all denominated in RMB. The interest rates and the terms of
repayments of the Group’s borrowings are disclosed in Note 30.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s borrowings amounting to
RMB259,400,000 (2018: RMB282,600,000) were at variable interest
rates. As at 31 December 2019, if the interest rates on the Group’s
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, loss before income tax would have been
RMB2,594,000 higher/lower (2018: profit before income tax would
have been RMB2,826,000 lower/higher), as a result of higher/lower
interest expense.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s borrowing amounting to
RMB275,000,000 (2018: RMB285,000,000) was at fixed interest rates.
The fair value of this fixed interest rate borrowing estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate for similar financial instruments available to the Group is
RMB276,884,000 (2018: RMB289,463,000).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, contractual cash
flows of debt instruments carried at amortised cost and at fair value
through profit or loss, as well as credit exposures to customers,
including outstanding receivables.

In respect of deposit with banks, the Group mitigates its exposure to
credit risk by placing deposits with banks with established credit rating.
Given the high credit ratings of the banks, management does not
expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

In respect of trade receivables, credit evaluations are performed on all
customers. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to pay, taking into
account the information specific to the customer as well as relating to
the economic environment in which the customer operates. Normally,
the Group does not obtain any security from its customers. Further
quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in Note 26.

The Group’s investment in debt instruments are regularly monitored for
credit deterioration by management. Quantitative disclosures in respect
of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from debt investments are
disclosed in Note 23.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December 2019
is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated balance sheet after deducting any impairment allowances.

The Group does not provide any financial guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 B ¥ & B & 1B ()
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B EREZE @
3.1.3Concentration risk 313K F A
For the year ended 31 December 2019, 59% (2018: 76%) of the HE—Z—hAhE+-_A=+—8BIt=E
Group’s revenue was derived from four customers (2018: two B AEBAWARNSIN(ZE—/\F:
customers) (Note 5(a)). %) RENBZEF(ZE—N\F WA
=) (M3E5@) °
3.1.4Liquidity risk 3.1.437% B 1% B B
Local managements in the operating entities of the Group are AEBLEEEENEMERBEREARE
responsible for their own cash management, including short-term AV EHEERERSEBaE A8 FHNIR
investments of cash surpluses and raising loans to cover expected £EE BREESESANEHIEENR
cash demands, in accordance with practice and limits set by the EEEFRUENTBEHBESESRK A&
Group. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity IREBETHERETHESERLER
requirements and compliance with the loan covenants, to ensure that it AHMBETER UEERERLRE
maintains sufficient cash and adequate committed credit facilities to MEAZXEERE BUTREAREREAN
meet obligations in the short and longer term. ey X
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant TRAXEBR-_ZE—NFRER_Z—N
maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities as at 31 F+-_A=1+—BERBAHIHBERD
December 2019 and 2018, disclosed in undiscounted cash flows MBS RABESOIT BEEABERE LRI
(including interest payments calculated using contractual rates or, if BRsRE(BEFERE LM RN
variable, based on current rates at the end of the respective reporting MEHRNIRITH X (ERRE L) st
period): RPN PSRNE OF 4=
Within
1 year oron Between Between 5 years Carrying
demand 1 and2years 2and 5 years above Total amount
—FRH
EERX -5ZmF WEZLE EFENE @st IREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETRT ARBTRT ARETRT AR®BTR
As at 31 December 2019 R=-ZT—h &
+=A=+-H
Borrowings BE 319,409 36,950 106,660 152,003 615,022 534,400
Trade and other payables 2 5 [ H 4 €
R 50,184 - - - 50,184 50,184
Lease liabilities HEBRE 3,225 2,857 3,186 17,737 27,005 15,144
372,818 39,807 109,846 169,740 692,211 599,728
As at 31 December 2018 R=—Z—\F
+=ZA=+—-H
Borrowings TE 68,342 319,409 108,377 187,236 683,364 567,600
Trade and other payables & 5 & H i & 1
;A 82,080 - - - 82,080 82,080
150,422 319,409 108,377 187,236 765,444 649,680
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 B/t 75 3 B & T8 (@)
3.2 Capital management 32 EXEE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its AEBEEEANE N ARERNE B
ability to continue as a going concern to provide returns for MBBBEAREREERTN  BRIRFREHRE
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and maintain an AR EBEMEREA AGRFZE - I
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. BURBREEAGEEARLESKA -
The Group monitors its capital on the basis of gearing ratio, calculated AREB BB RETEER LL R HIR
as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total BEHZHEGRNAERTE - G5 %58
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash. Total ERNBAEERBEESLRESEEBYRESRE
capital is calculated as total equity plus net debt. HIRG EARENERATEINEER
JHEE o
The Group’s strategy is to maintain its gearing ratio at a healthy level to AEENRBEEREABHRERZEDN
support its business activities. The main strategies adopted by the K UL HEKTE - AEE R
Group include but not limited to reviewing future cash flow requirements FEXMBPEETRABHRKES R
and monitoring the ability to meet debt repayment schedules, SEERREEST N EBAERKOE D #
maintaining an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and EEHNCHENAZEERERARKSE
adjusting investment and financing plans, if necessary, to ensure that ME & T8 (s E) AR AN & B %
the Group has a reasonable level of capital. The gearing ratios as at 31 EABKENER R-_ZT—HLF+=
December 2019 and 31 December 2018 are as follows: A=+—"HERZ-ZE— )\ FH+—-_/A=+—
ARBELRNT :
As at 31 December
Rt+t=—A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hE = — )\ &
RMB’000 RI\/IB 000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Total borrowings e E 4R 534,400 567,600
Lease liabilities HEBE 15,144 -
Less: cash and cash equivalents B RERBEEEEY (32,228) (162,917)
restricted cash PR R e (66,388) (1,219
Net debt (ET O E 450,928 403,464
Total equity T w fE R 1,225,093 1,479,949
Total capital BER 1,676,021 1,883,413
Gearing ratio BELE 26.9% 21.4%
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

3.3.1 Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in
determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are
recognised and measured at fair value in the financial statements. To
provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments
into the three levels prescribed in the accounting standards as follows:

o Level 1
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based
on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period.

° Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the
use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

° Level 3
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in Level 3.

3

B3 R B B )

3.3 AP EME

31D FEER
ATMRARETHBRENKRD FER
AR ENSET AN A FEEFEH
B R fEst e RIEUE T ATEMBH A
BT ERERE AEBRES
ZRHWBRERESRITESD A= :

e HE—#&
EERMBXINSRIANAFER
REWRNTIBREETE -

e HEIHR
WHREBRBMERXFINEHMTENRF
EXRBHERTEE ZEFHERME
ENAAEEMSEENEERD
REERBHNSEMT MAEITARQF
EMFEMEEZBARBIRTEBEHR
BRI ITAINAE K-

e B=&

fW—BRZEEEZH ARELIFRE
AEEMSBEEE  MZXTAINAS
=&
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3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

3.3.1 Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets measured at

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

fair value as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 on a recurring basis:

3 UEERERE@w

3.3 2 {EME @

331 AT EE R @
TH2HALEBMN -_T—NER-_T—

NE+—A=

T HAREEUEEENUR

FEFENEREE:

Financial assets at fair As at As at
value through profit or loss 31 December 31 December  Fair value
(Note 22) 2019 2018 hierarchy Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs
BRATEABARES
TABENERER R=B-n% RZE-N\%
(Mat22) t=A=t-H TZAZT-FH AVEER HEER EZREBRBAUE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT
Unlisted investment funds 152,090 148,278 Level 3 Use of quoted market prices and  Future cash flow estimated based on
discounted cash flow analysis ~ contracted interest rates
Discount rates that reflects the credit risk
of various counterparties
FETREES E=R RATSRERNERENE BEAONELHNARRERE
A
RESEHFHNEERRNTRE
Unlisted convertible bond 4913 8,762 Level3 Market valuation method by Enterprise value-to-sales multiple
reference to enterprise
value-to-sales multiple and
binomial model
The possibility of a successful initial
public offering of the issuer
LM AARRES E=R SECEABENHERUNT CE¥BELHERE
BihEER B ER
BIARYDETERDAEEN
et
Put option over shares in - 7,403 Level 3 Discounted cash flow analysis ~ Expected future cash flow
associate
Discount rate that reflects management’s
best estimate of the expected risk
level
BE DRI RE E=R NRRERENN BERRRGRE
R EREHE AR BT ORER
TR
157,003 164,443
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 B ¥ & B & 1B ()

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 2 {EME @

3.3.1 Fair value hierarchy (Continued) 331 AFEREH @

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair value AREEZEBRRARERRERAFE

hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period. There were no BHEmEBEALEBEY HE_FE—HLEFE+

transfers between levels for recurring fair value measurements during —“A=Zt+—HIEFE EERAFEE

the year end 31 December 2019. The Group did not measure any ENELAzETEERE R _T—ILF

financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value on a non-recurring + - A=+—HB AEBTRZIIEEE

basis as at 31 December 2019. MEEUAFEFEFNEREESS

REEE -

3.3.2Fair values of financial assets and liabilities B2F AT EHIENEAME
carried at other than fair value EREENATEE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried at BRI EESHME S EW TR E

cost or amortised cost are not materially different from their fair values HERWEMNZERAE WR_Z—h i

as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 since either the instruments are —E-NF+ZA=+—H Xx&KH

short-term in nature or the interest receivable/payable is close to the 2 B X yﬁﬁ ARV ENS R T AWM

current market rates. HEREAQNFEEETK -

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4 BARETHETTRAE

AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting
estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results.
Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Group’s
accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that may have a financial impact on the Group and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

UM BERRACR GG MEE
H FHESAARIGENBEERS
REAR - EEENEAANEE ST HE
B JT 78 1F ) B -

9% 1R O A 00 L 1 2 (095
ERRER TR FEH BT EAR
£ b0 A 500 5 4R RO 2 1
5 R H1H o
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(@

(b)

(c)

Recoverability of trade receivables and
debt investments at amortised cost

The loss allowances for trade receivables and debt investments
at amortised cost are based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
assessment, based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking information at the end of
each reporting period. In assessing forward-looking information,
the Group considers factors including macroeconomic factors,
industry risks and changes in debtors’ conditions. The changes
in the basis of estimation or economic conditions could lead to a
change in the level of credit loss allowance recorded and
consequently on the charge or credit to profit or loss.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined using valuation techniques. The
Group uses its judgment to select a variety of methods and make
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing
at each end of the reporting period. Details of the key
assumptions used are disclosed in Note 3.3.1.

Useful life of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets

Management determines the estimated useful life and related
depreciation and amortisation charges for property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets with reference to the estimated
periods during which future economic benefits are derived from
the use of these assets. Management revises the depreciation
and amortisation charges if the useful life is different from
previous estimates, or writes off or writes down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold.

—hETZA=+—HILFE

4

BHED

(b)

(c)

n_l,_lf
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et & ¥
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3| ' m
R
G P
Fo
ST i
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7K
g

BHREFRARREHEKAGTE
BERRENERBEBHIERSE
MEHRRREHEBEENRE -
AEERBEANEERBEESE - EA0
M5 MR A K & 3 & HI R 69 BT AE
HEERETHE  (FHZFER
BEREN GO ABUR - RFHE
m%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ'$§l%fF§W

=

BEERE - TERRREFARRDE
85 l? CRE-XTS IO

OB SNEESBREE
KFEHIBEES) - FAim< 5 Xkt A
BENeBIITE-

ERIENDAFE

WHRERMERINEBMITEA
HAFEFEBHERMEE A%
ERBEAEEESZERE W E
EENSRERRTHARRMED
BRL-EEFEANBERBERNTE
RHFFES.3 1 »

ME - BERREBUR
BREENTEMFHY

EEEETENE BMERRBUK
BREENMBFAIERFHLA
MiTEREES L N2EAEHE
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HIFBBIENEE -
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o
[

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4 BARSEEERAE®

(d) Income taxes

(d) FTB#H

There are certain transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will be reflected in the income tax expense in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences are recognised as management considers it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. In case where the
actual future taxable profit generated are less than expected, or
changes in facts and circumstances which result in revision of
future taxable profit estimation, a material reversal or further
recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which will be
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which such a reversal
or further recognition takes place.

BEXBBARTFES T THEE
ERERBNR 5 RTHE - WL F
FENREURBERBIRMNSG
ARMER MEBEEREBNE
HREWHEREREE RSN
F e

EEEERREREZRAABR
WARRERFEFNOBERT S
REETERZHEABNELR
REE -HWEENERRRERMK
BMOREH  HEERBERHR
5 B 1 G B {E 5T R 2K JE AR B A
HfbEr - MR REELARTEHBEE
MEBERBEE—FHER AR
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

5 WakosHEHR

(a) Revenue (@ W=
Year ended 31 December
BEt+t-A=+t—HILEE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT T ARET T
Sales of electricity HESE 64,814 63,788
Sales of home photovoltaic systems and HEPAXRERRREHEE
rendering smart energy services 82 R AR 7% 51,992 465,470
Public infrastructure construction NEBREZEL 30,654 179,235
147,460 708,493
Timing of revenue recognition e 2 1 R I BT
At a point in time RE 52, 80,899 438,804
Over time 15 4R A B T 66,561 269,689
147,460 708,493

For the year ended 31 December 2019, there were four (2018:
two) customers with which the Group’s transactions exceeded
10% of total revenue. One customer (2018: one customer) was
from public infrastructure construction business and three
customers (2018: one customer) were from smart energy
business. For the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue
derived from these customers amounted to RMB87,616,000 (2018:
RMB539,716,000).

HE-_Z—NLF+=-A=+—8H
LtFEE AEEEMA(ZZT—N
F MB)BFPETHNRS D AIME
AEE WS BEE10% A £ o Hp—
ERP(ZE—NF: —RBEF)XK
BEARERER —®EP(ZE
—NF:—ZRPF)AIKRAEZRE
REK -BE_ZT—AFE+-A=
+—BLEFE REZZEREFHK
=% A AR KS7,616,0007T (=
T — )\F : AR¥539,716,0007T) °
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

5 WHEKDIBER @

(b) 7 &R, &
AEBBS BERLY - 15 BN
EBEB(ERRRY)ES - A

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by business lines (products and services). In a manner

consistent with the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment,
the Group presents the following two reportable segments:

° Smart energy business, and

° Public infrastructure construction business.

No geographical information is presented as substantially all of
the Group’s business activities were in the PRC.

ARAEBRSRTREEREN
BE2HREH AR D I ER KT
RERANSA  AKECD 25T
SR E R 25 8

s EBERREBL R
s DRERREH-
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

5 WHEKDIBER @

(c) Reportable segment profit or loss, assets c) TEHoHER BE
and liabilities REafE
Public
Smart infrastructure
energy construction Intersegment
business business  Unallocated eliminations Total
HE®R DEER
ES) ] % AAE 7 5P 9K 8 @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2019 BZ-F-hE
TZA=t-HLEFE
Revenue from external customers R F 116,806 30,654 - - 147,460
Impairment losses on financial and SRRAENEENHEBERESR
contract assets (268,354) (47,815) - - (316,169)
Finance income E-LON 13,041 188 232 - 13,461
Finance expenses BEARE (16,019) (19,927) (43) - (35,989)
Share of net profit of associates FRAEREAENBE AT
accounted for using the equity oo RvES
method 5,422 - - - 5,422
Income tax credit FriS Bl = 59,667 4,787 - - 64,454
Loss for the year FRNEE (193,267) (48,915) (19,232) - (261,414)
Other information Hh Z#
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH (34,581) (80) (685) - (35,346)
Additions to non-current assets (Note) A& e &1 4 & (i 5%) 19,420 - 3,218 - 22,638
As at 31 December 2019 R-E-h#F
+=A=+-H
Reportable segment assets AERDBEE 1,390,258 481,723 505,708 (525,835) 1,851,854
Reportable segment liabilities AEFHHEE 721,015 427,373 4,208 (525,835) 626,761
Year ended 31 December 2018 BZ2-2-N\&F
TZA=t-HLEFE
Revenue from external customers R F 529,258 179,235 - - 708,493
Impairment losses on financial and SRRENEENRE
contract assets B8 (15,761) - - - (15,761)
Finance income BERA 3,722 1,855 1,753 - 7,330
Finance expenses BEARE (16,638) - - - (16,638)
Share of net profit of associates FREEARNBE QA
accounted for using the equity RAER D 88
method 8,187 - - - 8,187
Income tax expense ETRRAX (10,386) - - - (10,386)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRaEF/ (B8 130,063 15,107 (36,669) - 108,501
Other information A EH
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (34,894) (84) (845) - (35,823)
Additions to non-current assets RNEFRBEE 74,886 - 1,633 - 76,519
As at 31 December 2018 R-E-N\F
+ZA=+-—-H
Reportable segment assets ERAPEE 1,661,178 463,048 574,618 (429,196) 2,169,648
Reportable segment liabilities EEE G =R 758,314 360,393 188 (429,196) 689,699

Note: Additions to non-current assets exclude financial assets, investments

accounted for using the equity method and deferred tax assets.

MzZ: RERDEETEREREE
RAEREARNERE JEER A
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o
[

EXPENSES BY NATURE

6 EMESENMAX

Cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses and administrative IIAEEFRPIEEKRAN - BHERDHEE
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss are listed by Y RITHE S IREEE T

nature as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—-BLEE

2019 2018
—®-nE  —FN\%
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Changes in inventories of finished goods

Sk a7 5 &8 (i 5E25)

(Note 25) 16,196 366,675
Subcontract costs RN 10,261 76,595
Employee benefit expense (Note 7) B ERFIR=Z (M&E?) 37,445 58,675
Depreciation and amortisation Hr & N g 35,346 35,823
Consulting and legal fees B NEEER 8,759 7,954
Repair and maintenance expenses HEREERAX 3,516 1,674
Transportation and travelling expenses By M E IR 3,236 9,220
Promotion and advertising expenses HEMESRAX 2,976 4,642
Rental expense HeEMX 2,527 4,384
Impairment of goodwill (Note 16) 2R A (M5 16) 2,209 —
Impairment of other intangible assets (Note 16) b 4 72 & 2 R (& (K 51 16) 4,288 —
Impairment of inventories (Note 25) FERE(MF25) 1,899 255
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 25 Bl % B

— Audit services — R 2,200 2,500

— Non-audit services —EEZRH - -
Others H A 11,880 7,645
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution HERA - HERDHEMAY X

expenses and administrative expenses TR 2% 142,738 576,042




154

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited  Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BEZ—ZT—NFT+-_A=1+—HILFE

7 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

7 EESFABAX

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+t—HLEE

2019 2018

—E-hF —E—)\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARBT T

Wages, salaries and allowances TE e kER 31,321 41,575
Post-employment benefit and other welfare BRAZEANMEMEFAL@Q

expenses (a) 3,056 6,693

Equity-settled share-based payment expense (b) 1% # %5 45 & LA B 19 32 - 89 59 % (b) 3,068 10,407

37,445 58,675

(a) Post-employment benefit

Pursuant to the relevant labor rules and regulations in the PRC,
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC participate in the defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”)
organised by the PRC municipal government authorities whereby
the Group is required to make contributions to the Schemes at
certain proportions of eligible employees’ salaries, ranging from
16% to 20%. The local government authorities are responsible
for the entire pension obligations payable to the retired
employees. The Group has no other material obligations for the
payment of pension benefits in connection with the Schemes
beyond the annual contributions described above.

The Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong participate in the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) Scheme for its employees.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held in the funds controlled
by an independent trustee. The contributions arising from the
MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represent contributions payable to the funds at the rates
specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme.

(@) BEBERER

R 4% B AR BE &5 B0k R RROR AR
REBMFRHERNEBE R AAES
hneR AR B Hb 5 BT M A AR AR Y E
BEFRARBRE () - &
I AEEERAEREET & F
F H R (N F16% = 20%) A 5t 2l 15
3R o Hh 5 BURT RS B & A M
BEREEXN2HEERSHETR -
AN £ B N0 B E R S 5RO
5T 8148 B A9 IR IR 48 A S 3R H b
BREME

AEERBFENWBLAARSERE
E2mRtlt Ee((RES]F
g RS ENEERBUERE
ABHNESRHA EHEGBRHER
AP ey st & 5t &R iR
BEFERAARENLETRA
MEDEEHOMHZK -
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7 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued)

EERMESHRERERAT  Fi% 2019

o
[

(b) Equity settled share-based payment (b)

(c)

On 26 January, 11 May and 14 September 2018, the Company
announced to grant 36,441,291, 10,140,000 and 66,645,000
share options (the “Options”), respectively, under its share option
scheme adopted on 22 November 2011. The Options entitled
the eligible participants to subscribe for up to a total of
113,226,291 new shares with par value of HK$0.01 each in the
share capital of the Company. For the year ended 31 December
2019, the expense arising from share-based payment
transactions recognised as part of employee benefit expense
was RMB3,068,000 (2018: RMB10,407,000).

Five highest paid individuals (c)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 include three (2018:
three) Directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
in Note 37. The emoluments payable to the remaining two (2018:
two) individuals during the year are as follows:

7 BEERBABHEX@

BEDGEEUROGXHN
B9 B 32

RZF—NF—AFA=+~H A
A+—BEAA+HEHBE: ' A2F
TEHEAR_E——E+— A=
TZHEMNERESE DRI
it 36,441,291 1% ~ 10,140,000 13
1 66,645,00017 & AR #( B K’
B -BERERTAERSESE
BFNREBARABRAFHRZEHK
113,226,291 % & % M 1E0.01%8 7T
NHFRD - BE-_ZT—ALEFE+=
A=+—BLEFE UKRHZH
KR 5 E £ AR 3,068,000
T ERREERAAIMN —EH
EITHR(ZE—NEF: ARKE
10,407,0007T) °

hfuESHFAL
HE-_FT-—NF+=ZA=+—8H
HFEE AEENRANRSHFAL
REE=(ZE—N\F: =&
E HHEHERMETHo - &
ML (Z T —N\F: ML) ALF
WEIB R T

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-RA=1+—-BHLEFE

2019 2018
—E-hE T N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETTT

Wages, salaries and allowances TE& - e kEM
Post-employment benefit and other welfare BREEANREMENRX
expenses

Equity-settled share-based payment expense 14 5 45 & LA RR 5 X (N B9 B 2

862 1,213
251 250
800 851

1,913 2,314
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7 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued) 7

(c) Five highest paid individuals (continued)

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

& E &A%
(c) AfuESHF AT @

RERHFATHOHEMN R T A :

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=1+—-HLEE

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-NF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A" AE

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = % 1,000,000 7T 1 —
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7 7T £ 2,000,000 7T 1 2

8 IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL 8

AND CONTRACT ASSETS

B8

SHRANEENRE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-ZA=+—-BLEE

2019 2018

—E-hF —T-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARBFIT

Loss allowance for contract assets (Note 18) EHEEBEBERE KE18) 47,815 =
Loss allowance for financial assets at amortised  F# K RN EMN S R EEEE

cost (Note 23) Bt (P 5E23) 94,889 900

Loss allowance for trade and other receivables & 5 & E fib & U 2018 &5 18 B 5
(Note 26) (P 7% 26) 173,465 14,861
316,169 15,761
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE
o] @
9 OTHER INCOME 9 HlA
Year ended 31 December
BEt+t=-A=1t—HLEE
2019 2018
—E2-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Government grants TR 175 BA 585 2,107
10 OTHER GAINS — NET 10 Hfb W= % 5
Year ended 31 December
BEt+t-A=+t—HLEE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Net fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets at & A F{Est 2 B &85t A1z
fair value through profit or loss MemEERAFERS
(E18) 55 1,704 (8,751)
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains &5 (E518) W a5 (325) 1,005
Net gains on disposal of property, plant and HEME BMELEHEKZ TR
equipment 387 730
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries & T B A B Ay I Es 143 962
Fair value gain on put option over shares BN R RO BEHAEAFE
in associate & - 7,403
Others Hib 191 (138)

2,100

1,211
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11 BAERXFEE

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+t—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hE  —ENE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR®TT

Finance income

Interest income from loans to related parties and

BEKA

[ RS 75 I 5B =75 B REY A B

third parties A 13,177 6,863
Interest income from bank deposits |ITFE XA BB A 284 467
Total finance income BhE U A 5 13,461 7,330
Finance expenses /& FH
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEABMNERX (733) -
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITEENEFAX (35,146) (40,281)
Less: interest expense capitalised in the cost of & * R iEE T KA E KL HY

contract work PNz T - 23,645
Net interest expense FERZ F58 (35,879) (16,636)
Others HAth (110) @)
Total finance expenses AR A (35,989) (16,638)
Finance expenses — net BERYT FE (22,528) (9,308)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ—ZT—NFT+-A=1+—HLFE

EERMESERER

BRAR 3R 2019

O )
12 INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) 12 Fr88i W (B xX)
Year ended 31 December
BE+-BA=1+—HLEE
2019 2018
ZE-nF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
Current income tax BN HER T 1S A% (2,932) (13,101)
Deferred income tax REFTSH 67,386 2,715
64,454 (10,386)

(@  The reconciliation of income tax expense to the theoretical
amount that would arise using the statutory tax rates applicable
to the consolidated entities are as follows:

@ FEBRX R
CERS L
A SR T -

RERRZAEE
HEHEHRH

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2019 2018
—E2-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARET T
(Loss)/profit before income tax B AT (B 48), i 7 (325,868) 118,887
Tax calculated at applicable statutory tax rates 3% 7@ F )2 T X5t E R FH 18 77,955 (29,722)
Tax effect of: LATEENBBEE
Preferential tax rates BERE 1,970 16,708
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose ANa M A (7,687) -
Research and development tax credit HEBREER 425 762
Income not taxable BARBA 3,834 =
Tax losses for which no deferred tax assets has 7k i 52 4% 1E % 18 & £ B 1 18
been recognised &5 18 (5,512) (7,588)
Temporary differences for which no deferred 7k 7 52 Ik & Ft 18 & 75 ) B B
tax assets has been recognised =% (8,607) -
Previously unrecognised tax losses recouped to 58 #f LA & 7k FE 2 5 7%
reduce current tax expense E5 18 (LR D BN EARE T ) 2,076 5,007
Recoverable income tax of public infrastructure 72 2 322 5% 2£ 75 7 Ye [8] A7 15 57
construction business - 4,447
Income tax credit/(expense) Tzt (F %) 64,454 (10,386)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BEZ—ZT—NFT+-_A=1+—HILFE

12 INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) (continued) 12 FFEHi Uz (B %) @)

(o)  As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not recognise deferred b) RZE-—HhAhF+ZA=+—80"
tax assets amounting to RMB10,109,000 (2018: RMB9,543,000) REBWEGRAEFENPEFE
in respect of accumulated tax losses arising from the Group’s H 2 =518 B B A R 140,434,000
entities in the PRC amounting to RMB40,434,000 (2018: T (ZE—\F : AR#¥38,171,000
RMB38,171,000), as management believed it is more likely that T) AR BEEBRBEE AR K
such tax losses would not be utilised before their expiry. 10,109,000 (ZZE—NF : AR¥E

9,543,0007L) ' RARERER A
% i 18 5 1B R B 25 AT N K AT Bk A

B/ -
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the expiry dates of tax NR—ZE—NFR-E—N\F+=
losses arising from the Group’s entities in the PRC with no A=+—H AXEERHPEHER
deferred tax assets recognised are as follows: (AERELEFRBEEE) T IEEE
FEBWT
As at 31 December
R+=BR=+—8H

2019 2018
—E-hF AN S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE TR ARET T

Year of expiry B (7
2019 —Z-hEF - 2,138
2020 —E-THF 1,268 1,268
2021 —E - —4F 3,092 3,092
2022 —_F_— 10,979 19,140
2023 —E =4 12,520 22588
2024 —ET O 12,575 =
40,434 38,171
(c)  Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and ) BEFRSHEREABELHS (R
the British Virgin Islands (“the BVI”), the Group is not subject to BRZEE|) FERER  K&EH
any income taxes in these jurisdictions. DEABMZER EEENTMEAT

B/ e
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 A% —

12 INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) (continued)

(@

The Group did not make any provisions for Hong Kong profit tax
as there were no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: nil). As at 31
December 2019, the Group did not recognise deferred tax assets
amounting to RMB5,492,000 (2018: RMB3,123,000) in respect
of accumulated tax losses arising from the Group’s entities in
Hong Kong amounting to RMB33,285,000 (2018:
RMB18,930,000).

For the year end 31 December 2019, the statutory income tax
rate of entities within the Group registered in the PRC is 25% (2018:
25%), except for certain entities entitled to tax exemption or
preferential rates:

Since the respective first revenue-generating year, subsidiaries of
the Company operating solar power plants are exempted from
enterprise income tax for the first three years and are entitled to a
50% tax reduction for the subsequent three years.

Hebei LongiTech Cloud Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (“Hebei
Cloud Energy”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, was certified as High-Tech Enterprise of Hebei
Province, effective from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019,
during which Hebei Cloud Energy enjoys a preferential tax rate of
15%.

Tianjin Haitian Fangyuan Energy Saving Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Haitian Fangyuan”), an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, was certified as High-Tech Enterprise of Tianjin
City, effective from 23 November 2018 to 23 November 2021,
during which Haitian Fangyuan enjoys a preferential tax rate of
15%.

—hETZA=+—HILFE

EERMESHRERERAT  Fi% 2019

o
[

12 FiBHiWE (X)) @

(d@

HRAEERBE_T-AF T+
TAZTHLEEEXERER

EXRBRRABGEN YT ERFE
MEBHELENEBE(ZFT A
FEB) - R_T-AF+-_A=

+—B AEBITERAERR
BEEEEBNRFHEEBARE
33,285,000 (ZE—N\F : AR
18,930,000 7T ) 7 FR Ik IE i 1H & &=
AR¥5492000m(=F— /\F :
AR #3,123,0007T) °

HE-_ZT—NF+=-A=+—H
IEFE AEERFRHZMOES
BEEME B25%(—F— \F:
25%) MHEETEREEFM K ZE X
EERE

BHEEWNERERGSFEL AR
RARERNRNBUHNMBRAAE=
FERRCBMEEMEHR  HR=
F FE50% T TR % ©

AAaEEZENBRRILE
BERMEERBEAERAE (DL
TR ERM BAILE S
fitx ARBPE T —tF— A
—HE_FE—hF+=ZA=+-—
Hit-ZHEAA  HitEEEREZEER
15% BB X -

ARREEFZEMBRARRRE
BRITESHERMERAR(EX
R ERR RRZRD R RME

¥ ARHE_Z—N\Ft+—A=
+=Hz2-_FE-_—F+—A=+
ZHIt-ZBERN - BRAKHAEFEE

15% R B EHE o

161



162

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited  Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BEZ—ZT—NFT+-_A=1+—HILFE

12 INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) (continued)

(d) (Continued)

From 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2022, Hoboksar Mongol
Autonomous County Sifang Dianjin Energy Co., Ltd. (“Sifang
Dianjin”), an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, is exempted from enterprise income tax for the first
two years and are entitled to a 50% tax reduction for the

subsequent three years.

13 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing the (loss)/
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year:

12 FrBBiWE (B %) m
@ (&

BE-Z—N\NF—A—HBE=_Z=
—FEF+ZA=F+—HIE ARFME
B EWBRAAMATRERS
LEABIUAELEBEERAQ A
(TMAFEL] B MEERREN
RSN - K& =FE50% 1A
R

13 BR(BE) BF

(a BEREAXA(BA) BF

FREA (BHR),/ B RAL DA
B A (BHR), /5 FIB LA K 4
BT E BB MET OB H

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of NRREE AEWN (EE)
the Company (RMB’000) S ARET T (264,522) 107,720
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 2 %17 & 3% i% A0 #E T 5 &
in issue (thousands) (F ) 1,484,604 1,311,614

Basic (loss)/earnings per share (RMB)

BEREXR(BR) BT
(AR®TT) (0.1782)

0.0821
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ—ZT—NFT+-A=1+—HLFE

EERMESHRERERAT  Fi% 2019

o

13 (LOSSES)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continues) 13 &R (E5#8) 2 Fl @)
BR#E(ER) &R

GREE (BB BNRARRE
BB EEBEELARMAEE
BT LB I TG E o &
BT NhEFER_ETE—NEFE+=
A=+—BHLtFE ARFAHEER
TERERE AUt EEEITHRM
HFEFALTBRMNEFLHE  (EA
TESREE (BB BFEFTA

(b) Diluted (losses)/earnings per share (b)

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
assuming conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the
Company had outstanding share options. The resulting number
of shares issued for nil consideration is considered in the
weighted average number of ordinary shares as the denominator
for calculating diluted (loss)/earnings per share:

B

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—-BLEE

2019 2018
—E-nF —T-N\F
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of RARHEE AEIL (EB)
the Company (RMB’000) S M (AREF T (264,522) 107,720
Weighted average number of ordinary shares & 2% 77 3 3@ % hn 4 57 15 &1
in issue (thousands) (F5) 1,484,604 1,311,614
Effect of deemed issue of shares under RAEBIE A A 708 IR AT &
the Company’s share option scheme for nil EEBTROOZE(TR)
consideration (thousands) (Note) (Pt &) - 1,557
Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary & 38 % £ 58 2 N AE SF 19 8
shares (thousands) (F&) 1,484,604 1,313,171
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (RMB) A% %% (E518), & 7
(ANEEE) (0.1782) 0.0820

Note: For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group made a loss
therefore the effect of share options was anti-dilutive and is ignored
from the calculation of diluted loss per share.

i REE-F-ALT-A=+—A
EEE ARARMEBEE K
0 B R R U BB

HEER#EEERS

H AW -

Ea gy
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BEZ—ZT—NFT+-_A=1+—HILFE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14 Y¥ BERKRE

Furniture,
Plant and Motor fixtures and Construction
Buildings ~ machinery vehicles  equipment  in progress Total
BE %E
BT BEREH AE ES | EEIR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFRT ARETn ARBTT ARETR ARET:R
Cost BA&
At1 January 2018 RZE—-N\E—F—H 16,422 459,332 3,538 28,489 9,000 516,781
Acquisitions of subsidiaries W BB A A - 8,735 237 59 74 9,105
Additions nNE 564 32,538 620 5,375 13,016 52,113
Transfers i - 18,251 - 3,149 (21,400) -
Disposals of subsidiaries HEHBAR - (1,189) (1,120) (8,463) (103) (10,875)
Disposals of assets HEZE - (4,130) (224) 8,271) - (12,625)
At 31 December 2018 RZF-NE+=ZA=+—H 16,986 513,637 3,061 20,338 587 564,499
At 1 January 2019 RZE-—NE—F—H 16,986 513,537 3,051 20,338 587 554,499
Additions NE = 6,175 = 340 6,123 12,638
Transfers #Ei - 1,541 - 107 (1,648) -
Disposals of assets HEEE - (3,869) (252) (478) (334) (4,933)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NE+=-A=+—H 16,986 517,384 2,799 20,307 4728 562,204
Accumulated depreciation RitHE
At 1 January 2018 R-_ZE-N\F—F—H 292 25,440 1,140 9,560 = 36,432
Charge for the year FER% 794 22,152 594 6,230 - 29,770
Disposals of subsidiaries HEMB A A - (370) (380) (2,096) - (2,846)
Disposals of assets HEZE - (100) (60) (7,156) - (7,316)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F+-A=+—H 1,086 47,122 1,294 6,538 = 56,040
At1 January 2019 RZFE-h&E—A—H 1,086 47,122 1,294 6,538 = 56,040
Charge for the year ERY|Z 814 25,259 334 2,776 — 29,183
Disposals of assets HEBE - (818) (151) (40) = (1,009)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-AE+-A=+—H 1,900 71,563 1,477 9,274 — 84,214
Net book amount EEHFE
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+-A=1+—H 15,086 445,821 1,322 11,033 4728 477,990
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F+=-F=+—8H 15,900 466,415 1,757 13,800 587 498,459
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 A% —

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

(@)

For the year ended 31 December 2019, depreciation amounting
to RMB22,118,000 (2018: RMB22,877,000) was charged to cost
of sales and RMB7,065,000 (2018: RMB6,893,000) to
administrative expenses.

As at 31 December 2019, certain machineries of solar power
plants of the Group with carrying amount of RMB302,146,000
(2018: RMB303,731,000) were pledged as security for the
Group’s borrowings (Note 30).

Based on an outlook of the development progress of Hoboksar
Mongol Autonomous County Hefeng Industrial Park (“Hefeng
Industrial Park”), management carried out an impairment test on
the Group’s property, plant and equipment in the transformer
station at Hefeng Industrial Park as at 31 December 2019, with
carrying amount of RMB79,542,000. Xinjiang Saier Power
Distribution Co., Ltd. (“Xinjiang Saier”), an indirect non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, is under the process of
entering into a franchise operation agreement with the local
government of Hoboksar Mongol Autonomous County to invest
and operate the incremental electricity distribution network at
Hefeng Industrial Park for a period of 30 years.

The recoverable amount of the assets has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. The calculation uses cash
flow projection based on the approved business plan of Xinjiang
Saier, which reflects cash flow from rendering electricity
distribution service less estimated costs, discounted at a pre-tax
discount rate of 14%. One of the key assumptions of the cash
flow projection is the annual growth rate in revenue which is
based on the annual electricity consumption volume of the users
at Hefeng Industrial Park specified in the business plan and a nil
growth rate for the extrapolation period. The discount rate used
reflects specific risks relating to the electricity distribution
business.

As a result of the above assessment, no impairment loss was
recognised for the Group’s property, plant and equipment
located in Hefeng Industrial Park for the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: nil).

—hETZA=+—HILFE

EERMESHRERERAT  Fi% 2019

o
[

14 V¥ BERZREHE@®

(@)

BE-_ZT—NLEF+=ZA=+—8
IEFE AR K22,118,0007t (=
T — N\F: ARM#22877,0007T )
m% ATABEERA MARE
7,065,000 (= —N\F: AR
6,893,0007T) st ATTERF X ©

T hAE+-_A=+—8B F
H{E A A R #302,146,0007t (= =
— \F : A R#303,731,0007T) /9
REBXAREWETEREER
EAAREBEERER(HEES0) °

REHEMARERR G BEHKM
CTXER(METXRRE])FH#

EENEE EEER-_ZT—NF
+-_A=+—HHENELIXER

FEUREE A AR 79,542,000
TR BB R & EETREA
Ao ANAREEIIEZTENB LA
EERREEEARAAI(HEE
@DE@ﬂﬁﬁgﬁxﬁaﬁ%*
BT SR P BT S A AR S W e
WEREEAME I%lﬁm#
EREH - BHS0F -

BEMAWEEREEREE
FHEAEE - it EEBENTE
ERKIAENERAINEASR
EFR - ZIER AR ERB IR
HHR S REREGTRA - WA
BATHT R £14% R - RERER
WmeF“Z U as B g
X ZFREEXRIENBEE
TRENGETIXERAPMNF
REEREHMHNTERE - fiE
AMFRERREEEXT AR
B 5 TE LB

ER LM BE_FT—AF T+
“A=t+—HLEE AEERM
ETXERNYE BMELERE
WEEABREBER(ZFT—N\F:
&) -

W
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BEZ—ZT—NFT+-_A=1+—HILFE

15 LEASES 15 HE
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee: TR ERAERIEAREANTEE
ER
(@ Amounts recognised in the consolidated (@ REEEEEEBRER
balance sheet \
As at As at
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
R-ZE—h&F RZE—NIF
+=—B=+—H —H—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARET T
Right-of-use assets EHERE
Leasehold land and land use rights FHE £ b [ 1 b 55 PR 4 9,741 10,008
Properties LIS 10,058 5,741
Equipment B 62 82
19,861 15,831
Lease liabilities HEERE
Current S Eh 3,128 578
Non-current JEFE & 12,016 10,999
15,144 11,577
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ended 31 HE-_Z-NF+A=+—8H

December 2019 were RMB6,422,000.

LEE FREEEZBMNARS
6,422,0007C °
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EERMESHRERERAF

o

3k 2019

15 LEASES (Continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss

15 HE @)
b) REEEZTXRERN
o]

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—-BLEE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets EHEEENITEER
Leasehold land and land use rights FHE 1t & 1t (F A 267 =
Properties )% 2,105 -
Equipment B 20 -
2,392 =
Interest expense (included in finance expenses) #| B 5 5 (5F A Gt & 5 %) 733 =
Expense relating to short-term leases (included %% BA#8 & 8 @8 5 % (5t A
in administrative expenses) THEX) 2,477 =
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets 171 7= &% 10 & KK B E
that are not shown above as short-term EEHERBER < GFA
leases (included in administrative expenses) THHEX) 50 —

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the total cash outflow
for leases was RMB6,115,000.

BE_Z-hF+-_H=+—H
IR HERSRHEER/AR

#6,115,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BEZ—ZT—NFT+-_A=1+—HILFE

16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16 B EE

Goodwill Software Patent Total
R B4 =H BEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT AR®TT ARBTT
At 31 December 2018 R=-TB-—N\E
t=A=+-8
Cost 3,261 17,240 4,038 24,539
Accumulated amortisation and 2 5+ 85 & RE
impairment — (4,673) (168) (4,841)
Net book amount 3,261 12,567 3,870 19,698
Year ended 31 December 2019 BEZE - — h §F
TZA=1+—BLEE
Opening net book amount HA Y BR A 3,261 12,567 3,870 19,698
Additions ; — 121 — 121
Amortisation charge — (8,367) (404) (8,771)
Impairment (2,209) (4,288) — (6,497)
Closing net book amount R RE R E 1,052 5,033 3,466 9,551
At 31 December 2019 R=ZB—-—h%E
+t=R=+-—-8H
Cost 3,261 17,630 4,038 24,929
Accumulated amortisation and 2 5t # 55 &R E
impairment (2,209) (12,597) (572) (15,378)
Net book amount 1,052 5,033 3,466 9,551

(@  For the year ended 31 December 2019, amortisation amounting
to RMB3,384,000 (2018: RMB5,587,000) was charged to
administrative expenses and RMB387,000 (2018: RMB9,000) to

cost of sales.

@ #H=E=z—Z—-—ALEF+=-_A=+—8
IEFE AR #3384,0007m(=
T — NF: AR ¥5587,0007T )
MEHETATHRASY MARE
387,000 (=ZZFE —N\F: AR
9,0007T) s ASHE R A o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ—ZT—NFT+-A=1+—HLFE

O o
16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 16 B EE @)
(o)  The following table presents the changes in goodwill for the years by TRHINHE-_ZFT—ILER_-ZFT
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. —NF+_A=+—BLEFED
Sk
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 Additions 2019
R=ZZE—-N\F R=ZZ—NIF
+=—HA=+-—8H #m +=B=+—8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT

Gooawill =
Gao Bei Dian City Guangshuo = & 5 i1 ¢ 18 T 85 /R &= [

New Energy Group Co., BRAR([FE])

Ltd. (“Guangshuo”) 686 — 6386
Haitian Fangyuan BXA 366 — 366
Hebei Fakai Energy it E B EERFEZEAR

Development Co., Ltd. EEAR ()

(“Fakai”) 2,209 — 2,209

3,261 — 3,261

Impairment B 1E

Guangshuo e — — _
Haitian Fangyuan R _ _ _
Fakai (Note) 4L (K 3) - 2,209 (2,209)
— (2,209) (2,209)

3,261 (2,209) 1,052

Note: The recoverable amount has been determined based on a value in use Mick: AlliEl & REREERAEETEEE
calculation. The calculation uses cash flow projection based on the TE o szat B A E RN LB ER B
approved financial budget and a pre-tax discount rate of 14%. One of TEHEWOIE T E B KRB AR X

the key assumptions of the cash flow projection is a nil annual growth 14% - AR B2 ETEFT & oM &=

rate in revenue for the budget period and the extrapolation period, since REREFA LR WRESREEA
management anticipated that there will be no growth in revenue of MEBRKZZ —STEE & HE

Fakai in the future. MR aEFREREHRT -
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16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

()

In 2017, the Group developed the Smart Energy Cloud Platform (the
“Cloud Platform”), an online cloud platform software collecting,
monitoring and analysing electricity consumption data,
supporting the Group’s home photovoltaic system business and
electricity sales business.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, based on an outlook
of decreasing subsidy and implementation of subsidy quota
controls in home photovoltaic system business and electricity
sales business, management carried out impairment tests on the
Cloud Platform as at 31 December 2019. The recoverable
amount of the asset has been determined based on value in use
calculations. The calculations use cash flow projections based on
the approved financial budgets and a pre-tax discount rate of
14%. One of the key assumptions of the cash flow projections is
a nil annual growth rate in revenue for the budget period and the
extrapolation period. The discount rate used reflects specific risks
relating to the home photovoltaic system business and electricity
sales business.

As a result of the above assessment, impairment of
RMB4,288,000 was recognised for the Cloud Platform during the
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: nil).

16 B EE @)

(©

RoF—t% ARERETE
BRRTTA(RTA))  —EK
% EERHIENERBBRE
5 8E R R IR
EARERBORLEBTE -

HE-_FT-—NEF+=-A=+—8H
IEFE BEFPAXREREL R
BENHEEFN MR RERE
AT NE R BEERZ
T-hE+_A=+—BHYHEF
BETREAR - EEMT KD
CHEBBEFEREBENEELETE - %
AEFERAERSHENTBEE
K IR & it = T8 ORI LA & B AT 4T 3R X
4% - BeRmERANEZRRK
— BB E HA I HE T HR A U & A g
REHYR/T - FAIERAITERE X R
BHERXAREREBRENEE
XBBEBENSEERRE -

AR EAFE  BHE_T—NAF+
A=+ HLEE ZEZFE5HR
JE A R 4,288,000 (ZFE— N\
F | o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ—ZT—NFT+-A=1+—HLFE

17 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

EERMESHRERERAF

o

3k 2019

17 EZEFMEH

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2019 2018
—E-hF —E—)\#F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB TR ARBFTT
Deferred tax assets RIETIE & = 70,007 3,021
Deferred tax liabilities REEFIEEE (11,891) (12,291)
Movements in deferred tax assets are as follows: BEFRIBEEENZHNOT :
Loss allowance Loss allowance Loss
for trade and for financial allowance for Impairment
other assets at contract Provisions for of intangible
receivables amortised cost assets inventories assets Total
ESRHME REBHKEG
WRENEE ENSREE BHEE BREE
BiE MEERE BERE FERE HAE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBTrT ARETE ARETT ARETR
Asat1January 2018 R=-ZT—-N\F
—A—H 569 - - — — 569
Credit to profit or loss nEZEAR 2,229 185 - 38 - 2,452
As at 31 December 2018 R =ZF— \F
+=A=+—H 2,798 185 - 38 — 3,021
Credit to profit or loss REZ AR 42,525 18,237 4,787 365 1,072 66,986
As at 31 December 2019 R=F— L&
+=ZB=+—8 45,323 18,422 4,787 403 1,072 70,007
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17 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 17 EEFTB B @)
Movements in deferred tax liabilities are as follows: EEBRBEEEOES N T
Fair value Fair value

adjustments in  adjustment on

business investment
combinations properties Total

EBEHH REWEN
AVPERE  AVEBER @i
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT ARBTTT ARETTT

As at 1 January 2018 R=—Z—NFE—HF—H 11,823 731 12,554
Charge/(credit) to profit or loss R (ABR) 468 (731) (263)
As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZ—-N\&F

+=A E+ 12,291 — 12,291
Credit to profit or loss k= E AN (400) = (400)
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZZE—h&E

+=—A=+—8 11,891 — 11,891
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o] @
18 CONTRACT ASSETS 18 EHNEE
As at 31 December
R+=—BA=+-—8
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREET T

Contract costs incurred plus recognised profit FTE &G KRA N EE R =

less recognised losses e R EE 1,384,546 1,325,073
Less: progress billings S R (979,080) (865,283)
Net balance sheet position for ongoing contracts 5 &E & LR FEE BB R IKR 405,466 459,790
Of which are: Hep:

Current contract assets REANEE 361,728 304,350

Non-current contract assets ERBENEE 43,738 155,440

405,466 459,790
According to the amendment to the original agreement of Baoding BERETARBKNEREBRR —ZT —
Donghu Cultural Center Project entered into between Baoding NETZARRERBAF LIEE F]
Municipal People’s Government and the Group in December 2019, YHWRBENEE]  EEEFELENF
contract assets in respect of income tax and certain expenses incurred S HBORIRBEBENNENEE
in previous years as well as related profits with total amount of ARMA47,815000 T2 E B FE -
RMB47,815,000 would not be compensated. Therefore a provision of o AN £ E AR BB A R 847,815,000
RMB47,815,000 was made by the Group accordingly. Movement in T BN EBEENBEEENT :

the loss allowance of contract assets is as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-ZA=+—-BLEE

2019 2018
—2-n%F T N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBETT

Opening balance HA 4 45 £ - -
Increase in loss allowance 7 18 B 1 45 0 47,815 =
Written off as uncollectible 4 57 UK 3] i A 85 (47,815) =

Closing balance HAR 45 82 — =
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19 SUBSIDIARIES 19 KB A3

TRITAEER-_ZB-—NFR_T—
NEFTZRB=+—BNETEMBARA -

The Group’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 and 2018
are set out below. The place of incorporation is also their principal place

of business. MM TR EEEEME -
Place of Ownership
incorporation and interest held Principal
Name of entity kind of legal entity Registered capital by the Group activities
= AR SZ 3t B &% rEEBREN
BEREE EEBRER =t & A FEEER TEXEK
Hebei Longitech Cloud Energy the PRC RMB300,000,000 100% Smart energy service
Technology Co., Ltd. limited liability
company
AALEERNERRRRERAR A R # 300,000,000 7T 100% & Z8LRRS
EREERATF
Gao Bei Dian City Guangshuo New  the PRC RMB125,708,800 100% Operation of solar
Energy Group Co., Ltd. limited liability power plant
company
SRETENRREEERAR P A R #125,708,8007C 100% &&E R RE U
BREMEAF
Zhongneng Hexin Longhua County  the PRC RMB10,000,000 100% Operation of solar
Solar Power Generation Co., Ltd.  limited liability power plant
company
HEEMER(CEARGREEEER G2 A R #10,000,0007T 100% &3& KRB uh
BEAT BREMERF
Tianjin Haitian Fangyuan Energy the PRC RMB111,111,100 55% Smart energy service
Saving Technology Co., Ltd. limited liability
company
REGRTEERERMBERAR FH AR #111,111,1007T 55% & 2 BeIRRES
BREMEAF
Hebei Yuedu City Construction the PRC RMB120,000,000 100% Public infrastructure
Investment Co., Ltd. limited liability construction
company
AL R T R IR E B IR A 7] a3 A K # 120,000,000 100% AEER
EREFERAF
Baoding Qiantai Investment Co., Ltd. the PRC RMB120,000,000 100% Public Infrastructure
limited liability construction
company
REERFRERR AT a3 A R # 120,000,000 7T 100% NEEHR

EREMERA
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20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD

The table below provides the reconciliation of the Group’s aggregate
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[

20 RAEZEEARNRE

TREJNAEERBERARNKRELR

carrying amounts of investments in associates from opening to closing B4 B H R 45 64 HY 9 BR -
balances:
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=+—BLFE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Opening balance HR W) 45 o4 101,587 —
Additions 190 245,000 93,400
Share of net profit of associates accounted KA EARNEZ 2K
for using the equity method A D R 5,422 8,187
Dividends received L B AR B (8,597) -
Transfer to financial assets at amortised cost ERERBEKRAGENSREE (62,767) —
Closing balance R 45 4 280,645 101,587
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20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQU'TY METHOD (Continued)

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31 December
2019 and 2018. The entities listed below have share capital consisting
solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the Group. The
place of incorporation is also their principal place of business, and the
proportion of ownership interest is the same as the proportion of voting

20

FRAEZEARARE@

NTEHIAEER =T - NER_FT—
NF+_A=+—HHNHLE 7 7
EEMNKRAERLBRAEN BEAEE
HEHEE - ATEMA B AEE
TEEMI MAERNLOIEES

rights held. B ERELLBIARR -
% of ownership interest Carrying amount
As at 31 December As at 31 December
FEEERLLA IREE
Place of Rt=A=+—H Measurement Rt=A=+—H
Name of entity incorporation 2019 2018 method 2019 2018
BEREH MR —FB-hE —T-)\F HEFE “E-AFE ZZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTT
Longyao (Beijing) Clean Energy Technology the PRC 45% 45% Equity method 19,085 32,990
Co., Ltd. (“Longyao Beijing”) (a)
iR (b R) B ZERRRER A A H el &%
U3 52016
Gao Bei Dian City Longchuang Central the PRC 40% N/A  Equity method 261,560 —
Heating Co., Ltd. (“Longchuang
Heating”) (b)
SEETEAERHABRAA HE TER #EHE
(MeglzN1) (o)
Shandong Halilifeng Clean Energy Joint the PRC N/A 40% Equity method - 68,597
Stock Co., Ltd. (“Hailifeng”) (c)
WG R &2 RKRNDBRA A HE TEA R

(IEFE1) ()

280,645 101,587

(a) On 4 June 2018, Baoding Yize New Energy Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Baoding Yize”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Beijing Yaohui Hengchang Technology
Partnership Enterprise (Limited Partnership), an independent third
party, agreed to make capital contribution to Longyao Beijing,
which is principally engaged in heat supply business. As a result,
Baoding Yize obtained 45% equity interest of Longyao Beijing
and shall contribute RMB135,000,000 to Longyao Beijing before
31 December 2021. RMB33,400,000 has been paid by Baoding
Yize as of 31 December 2019.

(@ R=—z—NExAmA xAFM
BE2ENBRQRRE R EHER
MEARQR(RESE] 2B
VEZFIERBEBEEREEE
TrE(EREGE)RERMEREIER
(EERFHAEL) #ETHE -
H bt - R E =2 E BRI 45%
BERBER-_ZTE=-_—F+=-A=
+T—BRRERLEREEARE
135,000,0007T ° R=F—NF+=
A=+—H REREEIMAR
# 33,400,000 7T °
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20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQU'TY METHOD (Continued)

(b) On 21 May 2019, Beijing Longguang Energy Technology Co.,

(c)

Ltd. (“Beijing Longguang”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a capital increase agreement with
Hebei Julin Chuanghe Cultural Communication Co., Ltd. (“‘Hebei
Julin”),
pursuant to which Beijing Longquang agreed to make capital
contribution to Longchuang Heating, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Hebei Julin. As a result, Beijing Longguang obtained 40%
equity interest of Longchuang Heating by making capital
contribution of RMB245,000,000. According to the valuation
report issued by an independent third-party valuer, the Group’s
share of the fair value of Longchuang Heating’s identifiable assets
and liabilities on the acquisition date was RMB263,000,000. The
excess of the Group’s share of the fair value of Longchuang
Heating’s identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
investment amounting to RMB18,000,000 was included as share
of net profit of associates accounted for using the equity method
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

a company owned by the controlling shareholder,

On 26 July 2018, Beijing Longguang acquired 40% equity
interest of Hailifeng from Shengli Qilfield Lifeng Industrial Group
Co., Ltd. (“Shengli Qilfield Lifeng”), an independent third party, at
a consideration of RMB1 and by making capital contribution of
RMB60,000,000 to Hailifeng. In accordance with the terms of the
acquisition agreement, Shengli Oilfield Lifeng provided certain
performance undertakings to Beijing Longguang, under which
Beijing Longguang has the right to require Shengli Qilfield Lifeng
to repurchase the 40% equity interest of Hailifeng if Hailifeng fails
to meet the performance target for the year ended 31 December
2018 (the “Put Option”).

—hETZA=+—HILFE
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20 £ H

(b)

(c)

ERZARNKREm@

—WEREAZ+—H &2
AHEZEEZEMNB QA 7&K aE
BRI AR AR (L REX]) B H
W%%%%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%%ﬂﬂﬁ
bEEAR AR (DAL BAB]) &
%ﬁ%m'ﬁﬂ@%ﬂ%ﬁﬂﬁ%
#o2EM B R B EAIE S ET
BE-Ht EREXEREEA

R #245,000,0007T B 15 £ & 2 7
40% A% HE o IR R LB =5 [ ERD
HAMMBERSE  AEBEELEA
BORKEERNAENEERSE
& H A FE A AR 263,000,000
T o ANEE B FEAG R BB D ] s B &
ENBENRAFTEBLEERKAN
" 2B A R % 18,000,000 7T 5+ A &
EZFT-hNhF+ZA=+—HB1L
FERAEZZEARNEE QA
B 4B R D B8 o

—E—NFtA=-+8B txE
KEBLE=F BN EEMNEE
¥EEBFRAR(EHEFGHBEFLE]
AREARE1 T B REH L
i & A K ¥60,000,000 7T U 8 /& F
L40% B% HE o AR 1B UK RE 15 5 1K
%'%ﬂﬁﬁﬂ%mﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ

BTEEAZ B HEFEX
BEERBE-_Z—N\NE+=A=
+—BLEFEMNEEEZ  ERE
HERERBF AANLEDES
FI & 40% B B 4 ([ R4 BAdE D) o
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20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQU'TY METHOD (Continued)

(C) (Continued)

As Hailifeng failed to meet the performance target for the year
ended 31 December 2018, Beijing Longguang elected to
exercise the Put Option and entered into a repurchase agreement
with Shengli Oilfield Lifeng and Hailifeng in March 2019. Shengli
Qilfield Lifeng agreed to repurchase the 40% equity interest of
Hailifeng at a consideration of RMB60,000,000, which should be

paid before 30 June 2019.

As Shengli QOilfield Lifeng has not paid the consideration of
RMB60,000,000, Beijing Longguang initiated legal proceedings
against Shengli QOilfield Lifeng and Hailifeng in November 2019,
and ceased to maintain significant influence over Hailifeng.
Therefore this investment in associate had been reclassified at
the carrying value to financial assets at amortised cost (Note

23(0)).

(d) Commitments in respect of associates

(c) @

20 RAEZEARAIKRE @

HRBMNEREENBE_F —
NFET_A=+—HLEFENZE
BER LEREXERTEREH
B UR—E-NFE= A BB
BMEREGMEETIEE RS-
s M) e B ) 2[R = 2] B 8 N 2 40%

KX #E - R {E B A R 60,000,000
T BER=-_Z—NAFA=+H

BT ST o

HRBEAHAMNEH A HRE
A K #60,000,0007T * 3t = B X R
ZE-NF+—AEHBFAER
LRG| ARFR
HEFLAEEATE - Al Z
BHERARRECIREmMEEZH

YTE

DHRREBERAGFENERE

E (M 5£23(b)) °

(d) Bre&E R FAEBEAE

As at 31 December

BR+=—HA=+—H
2019 2018
ZE-NF —E—)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBF T
Investment in associate REEE QAR E 101,600 101,600
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20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQU'TY METHOD (Continued)

(e) Summarised financial information for

associates

EERMESHRERERAT  Fi% 2019

o
[

The table below provides summarised financial information for
the Group’s associates. The information disclosed reflects the
amounts presented in the financial statements of the relevant
associates, which have been amended to reflect adjustments
made by the Group when using the equity method, including fair
value adjustments and modifications for differences in accounting

policy.

20 RAEZEARAKRE @

() BMEQATA UK EEHL

AEEBERARPBKEESHLR
TERR - R85 8 R AR B
ENRUMBEHREPERNSE  Z
ESHEOETE URBAEE
FERAESARAERAE  BEAQ
FEHAERSTBRRE=ZEHEBEN
&K -

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+-—~H
2019 2018
—E-nF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFT
Longyao Beijing 2 R4t =
Summarised balance sheet EESERER
Current assets mMEE E 45,485 109,003
Non-current assets EMEEE 189 35,704
Current liabilities mEBE (3,262) (71,399)
Net Assets FEEE 42,412 73,312
Reconciliation to carrying amounts BHEREEY R
Opening net assets HYEEE 73,312 74,222
Loss for the year FRERE (30,900) 910)
Closing net assets HRFEE 42,412 73,312
Group’s shares in % 7N &= B R AR B 1 45% 45%
Group’s shares in RMB N2 B A% D LA A R B R 19,085 32,990
Carrying amounts of investment in associates A B & A &) #% & BRI B 19,085 32,990
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20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQU'TY METHOD (Continued)

(e) Summarised financial information for

associates (Continued)

20 RAEZEARAIKRE @

) BMERNTAMBREEHML

(#&)
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-)\#F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AR®TT

Longchuang Heating [ 8l & hH
Summarised balance sheet EEEERPM
Current assets mMEE E 1,091,910 -
Non-current assets FERBEE 434,639 =
Current liabilities mEAE (561,659) -
Non-current liabilities FEREEE (489,859)
Net Assets FEE 475,031 =
Reconciliation to carrying amounts BRREE R
Opening net assets M FEE 475,061 —
Loss for the year FRERE (30) -
Closing net assets HRFEE 475,031 —
Fair value adjustments AT EFE
Revaluation surplus on acquisition o i 12 (B 182,440 =
Amortisation of share of revaluation surplus (G E D B (3,571) -
Closing net assets adjusted using R AEREFAED

the equity method HRFEE 653,900 =
Group’s shares in % 7N £ [R5 R Lk A 40% -
Group’s shares in RMB REERDIAARESR 261,560 =
Carrying amounts of investment in associates 7 Bt & A 7R & R E 261,560 —
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o o
21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 21 €T EER
CATEGORY
The Group holds the following financial instruments: AREEEHEE Y& TA:
(@) Financial assets (@ sMEE
As at 31 December 2019
R=FB-NE+=A=1+—H
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
at amortised through
cost profit or loss Total
BAFREFE
BBEREST BHEZBEHIA
STEMN BEH
TREE SREE ot
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARSTR AR%Tx
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E b fE W KIA
(excluding non-financial assets) (TBEEEREE) 162,902 - 162,902
Financial assets at amortised cost 1R # 4 X N5 2 ) & &b
BE 137,022 - 137,022
Financial assets at fair value RATHEFEAHE
through profit or loss STAERHESRmEE - 157,003 157,003
Restricted cash SR IR 4 66,388 - 66,388
Cash and cash equivalents HeERBESZEY 32,228 - 32,228
398,540 157,003 555,543
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21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY (Continued)

(@) Financial assets (continued)

21 £@ T B @

(@) 2REE @

As at 31 December 2018

RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—H

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value
at amortised through
cost profit or loss Total
RATEFZ
LEEKA HEZFZHEA
FTEA B
SREE TREE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T ARBTIT AR%®TT
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b fE U kI8
(excluding non-financial assets) (TERFEIFEETHEE) 537,158 — 537,158
Financial assets at amortised cost 12 # S5 A5t E M © Rl
BE 178,513 — 178,513
Financial assets at fair value BATHEFEEEE
through profit or loss AABENEREE = 164,443 164,443
Restricted cash PR HI138 & 1,219 — 1,219
Cash and cash equivalents HeMBEEEEBY 162,917 — 162,917
879,807 164,443 1,044,250
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o
[

21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 21 €I BEEA @
CATEGORY (Continued)
(b) Financial liabilities b) TMEE

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

REERATFTENESHERE
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR¥TT

Trade and other payables B 5 K& H b &S 5RE
(excluding non-financial liabilities) (TEEFeREE) 50,184 82,080
Borrowings ERSY 534,400 567,600
Lease liabilities HEAE 15,144 _
599,728 649,680
22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 22 RAFEGFEBEHESH
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS AEBEHEHNERMEE
As at 31 December
R+=—BA=+—8H
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBF T
Non-current B
Unlisted convertible bond (a) JEEM A RAR E (@) - 8,762
Current LB
Unlisted convertible bond (a) JEEM AR E S () 4,913 =
Unlisted investment funds (b) FELETREES () 152,090 148,278
Put option over shares in associate B & N B AR 10 3R B AE - 7,403

157,003 155,681
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The following table presents the changes in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss for the years ended 31 December 2019 and

22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 22 AR EGFERBHESE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) AEFZHNEREE @

t-A=Zt+-ALFERATEHER

2ots: HEHHABENSBMAENED
Unlisted Unlisted Put option
investment convertible over shares
funds bond in associate Total
¥ ¥Lm BEARRG
REES ARRES AL #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AR®TT AR®TT
As at 1 January 2018 R=T-—-NE—HA—H = = - -
Additions NE 171,852 8,762 — 180,614
Disposals H & (16,810) = — (16,810)
(Losses)/gains recognised REM UK FRERER
in other gains — net B (E518), /I &5 (8,783) — 7,403 (1,380)
Exchange differences [ i, = %A 2,019 — — 2,019
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZEBE-—N\&FE
+=H=+—H 148,278 8,762 7,403 164,443
Disposals == - (4,072) = (4,072)
Exercise of put option TR L EARE — — (7,403) (7,403)
Gains recognised in REMW R FERER
other gains — net 7 Uk Z5 490 26 — 516
Exchange differences PE 7 =58 3,322 197 — 3,519
As at 31 December 2019 NR-E-—IE
+=—A=+—H 152,090 4,913 — 157,003
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22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROF'T OR LOSS (Continued)

(@)

On 11 September 2018, the Group subscribed for an unlisted
convertible corporate bond issued by Supreme Trillion
Development Limited (“Supreme Trillion”), an independent third
party. The principal amount was HK$10,000,000. The convertible
bond matures on 31 December 2020 and bears coupon of
13.5% annually. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group had applied for redemption of the convertible bond in
eleven equal installments and held the right to convert the
remaining amount of the bond into ordinary shares of Asia
Interactive Content Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of Supreme
Trillion, before its maturity.

As at 31 December 2019, the remaining principle amount was
HK$5,455,000 (equivalent to RMB4,887,000), while the fair value
of the convertible bond amounting to HK$5,485,000 (equivalent
to RMB4,913,000) (2018: HK$10,000,000, equivalent to
RMBS8,762,000). A fair value gain of HK$30,000 (equivalent to
RMB26,000) was recognised for the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: nil). Interest income amounting to HK$1,350,000
(equivalent to RMB1,188,000) was included in fair value gains as
other gains for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
HK$414,000, equivalent to RMB350,000).

—hETZA=+—HILFE
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R=ZFE—NFALA+—B &x&
EREREKBERBRAA(E
KND(—ZBILE=H)BTHIE
FWARBERRESF - AESEA
10,000,000 7T ° 7] 32 i% & % 1 5
HAAR-ZZTE-_ZTF+=-_A=+—
H ZEFHEAE135%  HEZ
E—NF+_A=+—HLFE"
AEBEERFS T —HEHEED
AR ES - RiE A R B B AT A
TEFERABEKERAERAD A
MEARGEMNEBEREERER
A A E AR AR D K REF o

RZT—-—NLF+ZA=+—8"
# T 7K & %8 45,455,000/ 7T (0 &
W AR #4,887,0007T) + i Al ¥ B%
&% A 1A 55,485,000 Tt (HHE
N AR #49130007T) (=8 — N
4 110,000,000 7' HE R AR
#8,762,0007) c HE-FT — NLF
TZAZT-HALEFERRBAF
B 4 30,0008 7t (HHE R AR
26,000T) (ZE—N\F : &) - HZE

—hEFE+—A=+—RH1HF
EEAEMKFFARFEKZ
79 % B UK A 1,350,000 JT (A&
BAR#1188,0007L)(=ZF — N\
F:41400%8 T HERARK
350,0007T) °
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22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROF'T OR LOSS (Continued)

()

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group held
shares in Giga Opportunities Fund Ltd. (“Giga”), an unlisted third-
party investment company incorporated in the BVI, with
investment cost of HK$90,000,000. As at 31 December 2019,
Giga invested in unlisted debt securities and various ordinary
shares traded on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. As
at 31 December 2019, the investment in Giga was stated at fair
value amounting to HK$80,333,000 (equivalent to
RMB71,960,000) (2018: HK$78,586,000, equivalent to
RMB68,858,000). A fair value gain of HK$1,747,000 (equivalent
to RMB1,537,000) was recognised for the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: a fair value loss of HK$11,414,000,
equivalent to RMB10,001,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group held
shares in Yue Xiu Stable Income Segregated Portfolio (“Yue Xiu”),
an unlisted third-party investment fund registered with Cayman
Islands Monetary Authority, with investment cost of
HK$88,800,000. As at 31 December 2019, Yue Xiu invested in
unlisted debt security. As at 31 December 2019, the investment
in Yue Xiu was stated at fair value amounting to HK$89,452,000
(equivalent to RMB80,130,000) (2018: HK$90,642,000,
equivalent to RMB79,420,000). A fair value loss of HK$1,190,000
(equivalent to RMB1,047,000) was recognised for the year ended
31 December 2019 (2018: a fair value gain of HK$1,842,000,
equivalent to RMB1,614,000).

—hETZA=+—HILFE

22

> 5
Sl B3>

FTEEHH®
HEHNEMEE @
BE-_2-A&E+-A=+

— B Ik F E KA [ #F BGiga
Opportunities Fund Ltd. ([Gigal) ( %
EEEZESFMKZMIELT
E=ZFRERARKKRG  KE
FX 7K /490,000,000 T B = &
—h&E+=-A=+—H" Giga’k
BTHELEMESFRETRESH
ERGMEBERAAIRSMEBR
BH - RZFTE—-—NF+ZA=+
— B RGiga ®E X R FEF
A& £80,333,000/8 T (& BN AR

#71,960,000L ) ( = & — N\ F ¢
78,586,000/ T M E N AR K
68,858,0007T) c HE=-Z—NLF+

AT HLEFERRAFE
I 251,747,00078 7T (HE & AE%
1,537,000T) (ZZE—N\F : 2 F¥E
B51811,414,0008 T HER AR
#10,001,0007%) °

BE-_ZT-—NAF+=ZRA=+—8H
1EF &+ AN 2 7] #F A Yue Xiu Stable
Income Segregated Portfolio ([ Yue
XuD(RFAESZHEcREERZE
MR ITHIFELELTE=ZFTHREES)
B & - & & K 488,800,000
BT - RZ_ZE—-—NLF+=A=
T+ —H - YueXuik & 73 EME
H RZTE—NF+_A=+—
B RYueXiu#) & & & 1 F B 7
iR /89,452,000 L (A E M AR

# 80,130,000 ) ( — T—Ai
90,642,000/ 7T & N AR ¥
79,420,0007T) ° B E =T — NF 1+

AT HALEFERRAFE
E5181,190,0007% 7t (A E R AR
1,047,0000) (ZZE—N\F : 2 F¥E
W 551,842,000 70 HHE R AR
1,614,0007T) °
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22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROF'T OR LOSS (Continued)

()

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

EERMESHRERERAT  Fi% 2019

22 AT EFTEBESFHF
i)

© AEEBRATENBEEABBH
=

were denominated in the following currencies: AEZENERBEEANTINEE
HHE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—8H
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB T ARBT T
Us$ e 152,090 148,278
HKS T 4,913 8,762
RMB AR - 7,403

157,003 164,443
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—hETZA=+—HILFE

23 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED

23 RBERATENS M

COST BE
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—8H
2019 2018
—E—-hE = — )\
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥T T ARET T
Non-current debt investments FERNEE 1 &
Loans to third parties RHERTE=H 13,750 =
Current debt investments J=ip=t: fff”zf)’zl =
Loans to related parties RIEERT @S 46,023 111,872
Loans to third parties ?E T,\ EXRTE=H 110,271 67,541
Receivable relating to investment in Hailifeng R g % TE A B ERGKIE
(Note 20(c)) (Mg 7E20(c)) 62,767 =
219,061 179,413
232,811 179,413
Less: loss allowance B E R E (95,789) (900)
123,272 178,513
Interests from loans to related parties and third parties charged at REERTHEB I RE=Z O EIZE

commercial rates are included in finance income. The non-current loans
to third parties are due within two years from 31 December 2019.

For debt investments at amortised cost considered to have low credit
risk, applying the expected credit risk model did not result in any loss
allowance recognised during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:

nil).

For debt investments at amortised cost showing a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, a total allowance of lifetime
expected credit losses amounting to RMB95,789,000 was recognised
as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: RMB900,000).

EMEWE - FFABRERA - WFE=T
RENFANBEFRE _FT-NEFE+=-A
=t+—BERFAEH-

STH AR ARG RIERE B R % H
RAGFENEBRE ERABHEER

SRAVEZURBE _—_T - F+
“A=t-BLEERATABEREG
(ZF—NF:E)-

B B YA TR R S B R b EE
MZBENAFENEEREE R
Z-hF+=A EJrfElﬁEwE’Jﬁi“
HEHCEEFENBRBELAEAARE
95,789,000t (= E—NF+=-A=+—
A : AR#900,0007T) °
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23 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED

EERMESHRERERAT  Fi% 2019

o
[

23 RBENATENERE

COST (continued) E (&)
Movement in the loss allowance of financial assets at amortised cost is REBHEK AT ENSREENEBEG
as follows: ZBEHMT :
Receivable
Loans relating to
to related Loans to investment in
parties (a) third parties (b) Hailifeng (c) Total
g F &
RHEER RHEER REBBEMN
T B 75 (a) FE=F(b) FE W Rk B (c) ot
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T ARET T ARBET T ARBT T
As at 1 January 2018 R=ZF—N\F—H—H = = = =
Increase in loss allowance EiE B N — 900 — 900
As at 31 December 2018 RZT—N\F
+=-—A=+—H — 900 — 900
Increase in loss allowance SR RIS N 2,156 77,571 15,162 94,889
As at 31 December 2019 R-TE—hE
+=-—A=+—H 2,156 78,471 15,162 95,789

(@@ On 6 December 2018 and 15 January 2019, Baoding Yize
provided a loan of RMB2,000,000 and RMB50,000 to Longyao
Beijing, an associate of the Group, with an interest rate of 9% per
annum, for the period from 6 December 2018 to 5 March 2019
and from 15 January 2019 to 14 April 2019, respectively. As
Longyao Beijing failed to repay the principal and interests in
2019, based on management’s impairment assessment, a total
loss allowance of RMB2,156,000 was provided for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

(@)

RZZE—NF+ZA~NBR=ZZE
—hE—A+EAB  REFBAKN
SEBE R RREY RS RS
B &% A R 20000007 & AR
50,0007C © & & F| E9% =t & - Hf
BAaslaRt=—F—N\F+=ZA~
BEE-_Z-AF=ZAREARK=
TE-NFE-—A+ERAE-_ZT—H
F00 [+ HE - B RERIL R K&
RZTE—NEFEHEASRFE
ERERBEMENRAETGE  ®
BE_Z—hLF+=A=+—H
LtEEARBEREABARE
2,156,0007T °
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23 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED

COST (Continued)

()

The Group’s loans to third parties mainly include various loans
provided to target companies in accordance with the payment
arrangement of potential acquisition transactions. Due to the
termination of these potential acquisitions and the deterioration of
the financial condition of target companies during the second half
of the year ended 31 December 2019, a total allowance for
expected credit losses amounting to RMB78,471,000 was
recognised as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018:
RMB900,000).

The security of loans to third parties is as follows:

Principal amount as at

23 RBENATENERE

=

b)) AEEREF=ZFTRHENEREZE
BEZERETRBER SN K
ﬁﬁﬁEFAT%TMTm =N

EBECERENRIEAREEAR
AN BRARBE - —-NF
+—_A=+—HLEFEETEEH
BBkt RZE-NAE+=ZA=
+—BEREHEEEEREREE
BB A N R 78,471,000 (= &
—NF+=ZA=+—H: AR
900,0007T) °

RAFE=DRENERERDOT :

31 December 2019 Pledged assets Guarantees
R=Z2—-—AF+=AH
=t+t—HNELLHE EEREE ERA
RMB’000
ARMT T
8,000 Borrower’s assets By the borrower’s controlling shareholder and
an independent third party
BERAEE EBRAERBRRER —ZBIE=F
8,000 Equity interest in the borrower By the borrower’s parent company, controlling
shareholder and his spouse
CEUNE BRAZERAE  ERRR R ERS
24,600 Borrower’s assets and equity interestina By one of the shareholders of the borrower

third-party company
BRABER -5 =7 R a8 RE

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group’s financial assets
at amortised cost were all denominated in RMB.

Since most of the financial assets at amortised cost were short-
term in nature and the interest rates were close to the market
rates, the carrying amounts of current and non-current financial
assets at amortised cost were not materially different from their
fair values as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

and independent third parties
EBERAN—EBRERBIE=F

R-F-NAFEFR_F-N\F+=
RA=1+—8 XAKBE R HXANG
ENSREEDHAARKESE-

HRAIEDIEBEHEKATENS
MEEBRHMEL RFA=EE R
MHBANERE BN —h&F
KZFE-—NF+ZA=+—Hi%
BHKAFENRBRIERD ©
MEENFAEEEATEMRE
K e
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O o
23 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED 23 RBEBATENERE

COST (continued) E (&)

(c) Based on management’s estimate of the future cash flows of ) EEEREHESMNEXRKREELR
Hailifeng discounted at a current lending rate, a loss allowance EREMERMETIB MG
amounting to RMB15,162,000 was recognised for the year REBEEZE_FT—NF+_A=+—
ended 31 December 2019. HEEFEBREEREARE

15,162,000 7T °

24 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 24 HERBEE
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E2-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AREET T

Recoverable value-added tax to be utilised after R —F & F B A FEINEER

one year IR & 10,969 7,781
25 INVENTORIES 25 78
As at 31 December
R+=—B=+—H
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARBTT

Finished goods 2K 10,658 24,735
Less: write-downs of inventories W IFEKRE (1,903) (255)

8,755 24,480
Cost of inventories amounting to RMB16,196,000 (2018: HE-_Z-NAE+-_A=+—HIHF
RMB366,675,000) were recognised as cost of sales during the year B HFEKAEAARY16,196,000T (= F
ended 31 December 2019. — )\ : A R #366,675,0007T) HER B

HERA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Zx= —

25 |NVENTOR|ES (Continued)

—hETZA=+—HILFE

Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value amounting to
RMB1,899,000 (2018: RMB255,000) were recognised in cost of sales

during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Group reversed RMB251,000 of previous write-downs of
inventories during the year ended 31 December 2019 since the Group
has sold the goods to independent customers. The amount reversed
was included in cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2019.

26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

25

26

FE@m

Eizi_; 7L¢+ B=+—HI#
B HFERZAERFENKEAR
%w%mwﬂ:?*AE AR ¥
255,0007T) FER R $H E B AR -

BE_FT - NAF+ZA=1t—HLF
B BAERAEEESERLETHEYE
FrARERDEABRRANTEKEA
R #251,0007T ° R M &EAFARE =
F-NAET A=+ HLEFENHE
PRAS R o

BEZRHEMEWRKE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Trade receivables (a) 2 5 FE W FRIE (a) 274,335 431,790
Tariff adjustment receivables (b) B B 1 A & U FRIE (b) 64,789 45,725
339,124 477,515
Less: loss allowance o BB R (187,467) (18,652)
Total trade receivables Z 5 e 0 5K IE 151,657 458,863
Notes receivables e E & 700 300
Prepayments TEAS KA 3,295 6,328
Other receivables HAth pE 145( 215 20,317 77,995
175,969 543,486

As at 31 December 2019, the collection rights of trade receivables
derived from certain solar power plants with carrying amount of
RMB81,979,000 (31 December 2018: RMB62,405,000) were pledged
as security for the Group’s borrowings (Note 30).

R_ZT—NAFE+_A=+—8 %kBEHE
F xR E uh BR A A K #81,979,000 7T
ZE-NF+ZA=F+—H8: ARK
62,405,0007T) B & 5 & W 5% 18 W 50 4
HRERRNEE B ERER(MHEES0) ©
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26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Ageing analysis of trade receivables in gross basis is as follows:

EERMESHRERERAT  Fi% 2019

o
[

26 E 5 Kk H it FE U FIE )

B2 RUFSIRAEBNRE SO

As at 31 December

Bn+=—A=+-—H
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR¥TT

Within 1 year R—FA 80,268 433,029
1 year to 2 years —FEMF 238,801 43,740
2 years to 3 years MEZRE=F 18,155 422
Over 3 years =FE 1,900 324

339,124 477,515
(@  Trade receivables from sales of home photovoltaic systems and @ REHEEFBAARKRRESG RIEHEHE

rendering electricity distribution service are due within 180 days
from the date of billing. Trade receivables from rendering smart
energy services are due within one year from the date of billing.
Trade receivables from sales of electricity are due within one
month from the date of biling. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and ageing. The allowance for trade
receivables as at 31 December 2019 was determined as follows:

EREHESRRREBEEHRER
HRE180 RN EIHR - R BRI E 2
EERENESEKRFEBHAE
HER—FANR - REHEEE N
MEZREWBFEERERHR—
BAREHE - BEt=2BHEES
B BHREKZREBREEREER
BEFERERE AP E R —
NFE+_A=+—H8 BHEKK

HOWREETNOT :
Current Past due
B &R B
Between Between

Sales of home HEFHA Within 6 months 1 year Over
photovoltaic systems YR &% 6 months to1year to2years 2 years Total

6BAR 6EAZEIFE 15ZE25 2FULE #at
Individually assessed: 18 51 7 4er -
Gross carrying amount  BR #4258

(RMB’000) (ANRETT) 14,634 3,624 180,625 11,676 210,559

Loss allowance B R

(RMB’000) (AR ¥ F 1) = -

(163,863) (11,676)  (175,539)
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26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(@)

26 E 5 Kk H it FE W FOIE )

(Continued) @ (&)
Due to deterioration in the operations of relevant distributors in REBEE-_Z—NhEFE+_A=+—
home photovoltaic system business, credit risk of trade BIEFE BRFPHAAXRRESES
receivables from home photovoltaic system business has MR HE R EER({ PEY
significantly increased during the year ended 31 December 2019. REGEBHNEZRUFEEE
A total allowance for expected credit losses in trade receivables BERAEEM R_E—NLF+=
amounting to RMB175,539,000 was recognised as at 31 A=+—H #E S EKZKREER
December 2019 (31 December 2018: RMB18,652,000). CFEEEBEEERARBREAARE
175,639,000 (ZE—N\NF+= A
=+—H: AR#18,652,0007T) °
Current Past due
B HA B
Between Between
Rendering electricity Within 6 months 1 year Over
distribution service 12 B E AR 7§ 6 months to1year to2years 2 years Total
6AR 6M@AE1IF 1EZ2F 2F 0L st
Individually assessed: 18 5l 5F 1
Gross carrying amount  BR [ 42 %8
(RMB’000) (AR¥TT) — — 4,045 — 4,045
Loss allowance (RMB’000) &5 18 %
(AR®EFT) — — (4,045) — (4,045)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ—ZT—NFT+-A=1+—HLFE

EERMESHRERERAT  Fi% 2019 195

o
[

26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continue) 26 = 5 & H b fE Uk 2% 18 ()

(@)

(Continued) @ (&)
Current Past due
B A B
Between Between Between
Rendering smart energy 2t E £ Within 1 year 2 years 3 years Over
services BE R IR %5 1year to2years to3years to 4 years 4 years Total
158 15ZE2F 26ZE3F 3FEF4F 4FNE Mt
Individually assessed: 18 5l EF 12 -
Gross carrying amount  BR TE 48 58
(RMB’000) (AREFT) — 15,530 — = = 15,530
Loss allowance (RMB’'000) 518 # &
(AREFT) — (9,000) - — = (9,000)
Collectively assessed: A
Expected loss rate TE Hi & 18 =& — 5% 10% 20% 50%
Gross carrying amount  BR[H 48 58
(RMB’000) (ANRETT) 27,046 3,690 320 — — 31,056
Loss allowance (RMB’'000) /518 # &
(AR¥F ) — (185) (32) - — 217)
Total loss allowance B 1R A %R
(RMB’000) (AREFT) (9,217)
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26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(@)

26 E 5 Kk H it FE W FOIE )

(Continued) @ (&)
Current Past due
B 58 pig:t
Between Between Between Between
Within 1 month 1 year 2 years 3 years Over
Sales of electricity HEE D 1month tolyear to2years to3years tod4years 4years Total
118 A
1A R B1E 15228 25BZF3F 3IFEF4FE 45 L wmt
Individually assessed: 1B 5 51 -
Gross carrying amount  BR [ 48 58
(RMB’000) (AR¥ETT) 21 590 527 671 248 393 2,450
Loss allowance (RMB'000) [&5 18 # &
(ANEETF 1) (21) (590) (527) 671) (248) (893) (2,450)
Collectively assessed: A
Expected loss rate 7B Hi g 18 =& — — 5% 10% 20% 50%
Gross carrying amount  BR [H] 4258
(RMB’000) (ANEBET 1) 2,223 9,612 1,577 1,128 104 96 14,740
Loss allowance (RMB'000) J& 18 # &
(ARETF L) = - (79) (113) (21) (48) (261)
Total loss allowance BIEBELER
(RMB’000) (ANR®FT) (2,711)
As at 31 December 2019, RMB42,270,000 (2018: b) R=ZZTE—hNEF+=ZA=+—H K

RMB23,795,000) of trade receivables aged over one year
represent tariff adjustment receivables, derived from the subsidies
in respect of sales of electricity. Applying the expected credit risk
model did not result in any loss allowance recognised for tariff
adjustment receivables for the year ended 31 December 2019

(2018: nil).

B—FU LB HRERREBAR
W42 270,000 (T — \FE: A
R #23,795,0007T ) & & & 1 B &
WRIB - BEERIBEREBHEE N
A - ERTBHEERERER I EE
B EEMAERNRIEREZE =
- hEF+_A=+—HLEE
EREMEBBEEB(ZZT—NF:
M)o

Fasey
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26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

()

BERNEZM

ERIZRBMRAR  F3R 2019

o

26 E 5 Kk H it FE U FIE )

Movement in the loss allowance of trade and other receivables is © EBZREMEWRREBEEBEED
as follows: FEmnT :
Year ended 31 December
BE+-—A=+—HLEE
2019 2018
—ZE-NF —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Opening balance B Y 4 18,652 3,791
Increase in loss allowance &5 18 B 5 12 N
— Trade receivables —B S EWFIE 172,860 14,861
— Other receivables —H fth pE W R IE 606 =
Written off as uncollectible 4 57 Ui [ 7 i 5H
— Trade receivables — 8 S EW A (4,045) =
— Other receivables —H f fE W SR IE (606) —
Closing balance B oK 45 54 187,467 18,652
The Group’s trade and other receivables were denominated in 0 AEBZFZREMEUWRBIUT

the following currencies:

S E¥EHE

As at 31 December

Rt=A=+-8
2019 2018
—B-nE —E2-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

HK$ BT 567 1,886
RMB AR 175,402 541,600
175,969 543,486
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the carrying amounts of R-_EFE—HLER_-_FT—N\F —1— -
trade and other receivables approximated their fair values. A=+—H B3 KEM r &
WEEEEEAFEES
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27 RESTRICTED CASH

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s restricted cash amounted to
RMB66,388,000 (2018: RMB1,219,000), mainly representing the
deposits made in accordance with the terms of loan agreements
between the Group and the lender, whereby the Group is required to
deposit the entire loan proceeds into restricted bank accounts. The
restricted cash can only be used to finance the development of
designated public infrastructure construction business.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

27

28

ZREEE

R-E-AFE+-_A=+—H0 x&£H
A XRGRE AR¥66,388,0007T (=
T—N\F: AR¥1,219,0007T) ° £ B45
BERNEBHEERAMTZLE R HZED
BHRFTERN TR AEEEL2HE R
FIBRIEFAZRBRGIRITRS - LR R
HIESENEARBNEREEAERE
BEBTEED -

REeERReEEY

As at 31 December

R+=BA=+-—8H
2019 2018
—E-NF —E—N\HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T
Cash at bank RITF K 32,185 162,916
Cash on hand BEFEREE 43 1
32,228 162,917

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the
following currencies:

AEEHE SRR S SENA TS
S1E

As at 31 December

Rt+t=—A=+—8°
2019 2018
—g-hE —F-NF
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR T T
us$ ey 5 5,611
i T 1,124 42,417
RMB AR 31,099 114,889

32,228

162,917
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O o
29 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 29 BAK fw#fE
(@) Share capital (@ BA&
Authorised and issued share capital: ETENERITERA:
As at 31 December
R+=HA=+-—H
2019 2018
—®-rE “E-NF
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
BRHER &8 f&1n &1 B k)
000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$'000
T’ Tl TR Tt
Authorised: VETE ¢
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 &A% E{E0.0175 JT HY
each R 2,000,000 20,000 2,000,000 20,000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: TR ERTHEHE
2019 2018
—E-hE ZT-N\F
No. of RMB No. of RMB
shares Amount equivalent shares Amount equivalent
igvig 4] B SEARYE R & B 8 FEAREK
000 HK$’000 RMB’000 ‘000 HK$'000 RMB’000
T’ TERT AR%®TR Tk TEL AR®TR
At 1 January n—HA—H 1,484,604 14,846 12,255 918,948 9,189 7,629
Rights issue MR - - - 459,474 4,595 3,699
Placing of new shares Bt & #7 A% - - - 106,182 1,062 927
At 31 December Rt+=-_A=+—8H 1,484,604 14,846 12,255 1,484,604 14,846 12,255
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29 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b) Reserves

(i

(ii)

Share premium

The excess of the issued price net of any issuance
expenses over the par value of the shares issued has been
credited to share premium of the Company.

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in share premium are distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Statutory reserve

The PRC statutory reserve were established in accordance
with the relevant rules and regulations of the PRC and the
articles of association of the companies within the Group.
The companies in the PRC are required to transfer certain
proportion of their net profit (after offsetting prior-year
losses) to general statutory reserve. For the year ended 31
December 2019, RMB1,808,000 was credited to statutory
reserve (2018: RMB10,772,000).

General statutory reserve can be used to reduce prior-year
losses, if any, and may be converted into paid-in/share
capital by issuing new shares to shareholders proportionate
to their existing percentage of equity interests provided
that the balance after such issue is not less than 25% of
the registered capital. General statutory reserve is non-
distributable other than in liquidation.

29 BRAK 7 @
(b) &

(i)

(ii)

B 4D m 8

MBREMETASL G BT
BBE BT RG EE N
HEFHARR ARG HE -

REFREHERRIAKE
) BROEETNESA S
T AR HEEBEK
SBEIKZERHAR  NAFH
BER—REHBRES I
B ERS o

EERE
ANEED R E - HEREE R
FEBARAKEEET A A
ROZB 45 EF2 A0 BI 3R S = B DA
ERE - PRERERNRFEAR
= o P v S R e
FEBRBE ) BZ—KEX
HE - RBE-_ZE—NLF+
A=+ BLEEE AR
#1,808,0007C & A T & E
EHE(ZE—NFE: ARE
10,772,0007T) °

— MROATE W R AT IR A B
EFEBR(WNA)  AAE
BIWIRRE PR AN
B 23 ke Bl 1) A 3R 3% 1T R A
BADRB/BA HZEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ—ZT—NFT+-A=1+—HLFE

o
o

30 BORROWINGS 30 BE
As at 31 December
R+=-—BA=+—H
2019 2018
ZE-NF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB T ARETTT
Secured bank borrowings EERIRTEER
Pledged and guaranteed borrowings (a) BERKEEREE@Q) 259,400 282,600
Guaranteed borrowings (b) BEREE©D 275,000 285,000
534,400 567,600
Current FIER
Pledged and guaranteed borrowings BEHREERES 24,000 23,200
Guaranteed borrowings BREREE 275,000 10,000
299,000 33,200
Non-current FERN A
Pledged and guaranteed borrowings BERKEEREE 235,400 259,400
Guaranteed borrowings EREREE - 275,000
235,400 534,400

RZB-NAFRZZE-NF+HA=+
—B - AEEEEEEEWT

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group’s borrowings were
repayable as follows:

As at 31 December

R+=B=+-—H
2019 2018
—E-AF —E—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AREEF T
Within 1 year R—FA 299,000 33,200
Between 1 and 2 years —FEMF 24,400 299,000
Between 2 and 5 years FEERF 77,400 74,900
over 5 years AEN E 133,600 160,500

534,400

567,600




202

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited

Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Zx= —

30 BORROW' NGS (Continued)

(@)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s borrowings amounting to
RMB259,400,000 (2018: RMB282,600,000), with interest rates
ranging from 5.39 to 5.64% per annum, were jointly guaranteed
by the controlling shareholder,
controlled by the controlling shareholder. Property, plant and
equipment of solar power plants of the Group with carrying
amount of RMB302,146,000 (2018: RMB303,731,000) and the
collection rights of trade receivables derived from the solar power
plants were pledged as security for these borrowings (Note 14(b)
and 26).

his spouse and a company

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s borrowings amounting to
RMB275,000,000 (2018: RMB285,000,000), with interest rate of
7.00% per annum, were guaranteed by a company controlled by
the controlling shareholder.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group’s borrowings
were all denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the carrying amounts of the
Group’s bank borrowings were not materially different from their
fair values as the interest rates were close to the market rates.

—hETZA=+—HILFE

30 BE @

(@)

R—_ZTE—AE+_A=+—8"
NEEEE AR 259,400,000 7T
(ZZ— N\ AR #282,600,000
TL) I N F-5.39% & 5.64% K 4F Fl| R
R -RSEERERKRRE  EE
BARZERBERIZESH—BEQ A
HEAREER - FAEAARE
302,146,000t (ZZE— N\F: AR
#303,731,00070) AR E E K E
SR HE - B R AR R IR E
W R IE R K E D E A%
ZLEERER (K sE14(0) &2 26) °

— AW EFE+-_A=+—HB &
£ B EE ARK275000,0007T (=
= — \F : AR #¥285,000,0007T)
B7T00%MFF X B - ZEEE
RIER B EEGM— M2 e M
R

NERZFE-NE+
B AREEEHUA

E'ﬁ—’-w

F N
ﬁ

T — ﬂi& T—\fE+=
T—B BRMEZLTESH
N fEfﬂﬁEE’JﬁEﬁ{EEﬁiﬁ
BEXEERNEER-
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31 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

32

EERMESHRERERAT  Fi% 2019

o
[

31 EZNRHMENSKE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2019 2018
—E2-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARET T
Trade payables B 5 P R 19,638 36,154
Accruals and other payables FEETE R K E b 5k I8 30,546 45,926
Tax payables FESFLIR - 12,961
50,184 95,041
Ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: ZSENFENRR>ITAT
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hE —E—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AREF T
Within 1 year —F R 6,021 35,073
Over 1 year =& |E 13,617 1,081
19,638 36,154

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group’s trade and other
payables were all denominated in RMB and the carrying amounts

approximated their fair values.

DIVIDENDS

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company did
not declare any dividends to the shareholders of the Company.

RZE—AEFER_ZE—NF+ A=

T—R - AEENE S REMEN KA
BUAARKESE BEREEEZERAYE
B e

32 K2

BE-_Z-NFEFR-E—-N\F+-A=
+—BIEFE  ARRLEMRARQRRK
HEIREMREE -
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33 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(@) Cash generated from operations

3B HEREEH
@) REMBRER

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1t—RHLEE
2019 2018
—®-hE —E)N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
e AR¥ T ARET T
(Loss)/profit before income tax % P15 55 Al (Eri8) /% 7 (325,868) 118,887
Adjustments for: KRFELTER :
Amortisation of leasehold land and THE 1t J 1t {5 F A
land use rights # - 457
Depreciation of property, plant and M BERREBITE
equipment 14 29,183 29,770
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 15 2,392 —
Amortisation of intangible assets mivEEEH 16 3,771 5,596
Impairment of intangible assets mEERE 16 6,497 —
Impairment of inventories FERE 25 1,899 255
Impairment of contract assets BHEERE 18 47,815 —
Impairment of trade and other B 5 & H b e YL F B R E
receivables 26 173,465 14,861
Impairment of financial assets at REHKATEN S/
amortised cost EERE 23 94,889 900
Net fair value (gains)/losses on financial 1% A F (Bt € B £ & &)=t
assets at fair value through profit or AEENEeMmEEATF
loss B () BB FE 10 (1,704) 8,751
Net gains on disposal of property, plant & %) 3 « & & & & & U
and equipment R R 10 (387) (730)
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries & B A A A Uk 25 10 (143) (962)
Fair value gain on put option over A RIRD RIGEAER
shares in associate TE W= 10 - (7,403)
Deferred income from government R B B Bh A IR IE A
grants (107) (107)
Equity settled share-based payment 3% #E 25 45 & LA R 1D X2 1Y
expense B 7(b) 3,068 10,407
Finance expenses &R X 22,702 12,774
Share of net profit of associates PR A AR S A
accounted for using the equity AR 4B 1 58
method (5,422) (8,187)
Foreign exchange losses/(gains) X EE (e 365 (1,428)
Changes in working capital: EEEREH
Decrease in inventories FER D 13,826 2,984
Decrease in contract assets BHBERD 6,509 40,526
Decrease in trade and other receivables & 5 % H ) f& U 2 18 i 2> 159,149 359,650
Decrease in trade and other payables 8 5 [ H fth F& {3 53X 38 5 2 (42,218) (106,401)
(Decrease)/increase in contract AHERECRD), 38N
liabilities (1,175) 2,184
Cash generated from operations KETEIE 188,506 482,784
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O o
33 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 33 REREER @
(b) Net debt reconciliation (b) EXFELHIER
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H

2019 2018

—E-AF —E—-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AREFIT

Cash and cash equivalents ReLBEEEY 32,228 162,917
Restricted cash PRI & 66,388 1,219
Borrowings — repayable within one year BE-R—FREE (299,000) (33,200)
Borrowings — repayable after one year BE-—R—FEREE (235,400) (534,400
Lease liabilities HEAE (15,144) -

Net debt B F & (450,928) (403,464)

Cash and cash equivalents HeLhBEEEY 32,228 162,917
Restricted cash SRR B3R & 66,388 1,219
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BB — E T = (290,144) (285,000)
Gross debt — variable interest rates BI54%E — 2B F X (259,400) (282,600)

Net debt B F R (450,928) (403,464)
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33 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Net debt reconciliation (continued)

33 R&E

REE® @

(b) EEFELHEKR@®

Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
HitEE REMEZHHNEE
Cash and Borrowings Borrowings
cash Restricted due within due after Lease
equivalents cash 1 year 1 year liabilities Total
BeER ZRE —FREH —FEIH
BEZEEY Be HEE MWiEE HEAE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTRT ARETT ARE®ETRT ARBTT
Net debt as at R-B-N\F
1 January 2018 —B—HHW
B FHE 107,022 1,679 (286,240) (647,305) — (824,844)
Cash flows Reme 54,467 (460) 286,240 79,705 - 419,952
Foreign exchange [E & =
adjustments 1,428 — — — — 1,428
Other non-cash movements £ fth JE3R 4 & — - (33,200) 33,200 = =
Net debt as at R-ZBE-N\F
31 December 2018 +=ZA=+-—H
WEXKFHE 162,917 1,219 (33,200) (534,400) — (403,464)
Recognised on adoption of 47 7 B 2 Bt 75 3R &5
IFRS 16 R E 165 R RER = - - - (11,577) (11,577)
Cash flows BehE (130,324) 65,169 33,200 — 2,855 (29,100)
Additions 140 = = = = (6,422) (6,422)
Foreign exchange [E i, A&
adjustments (365) — — — = (365)
Other non-cash HinFFBE & &
movements — — (299,000) 299,000 —
Net debt as at R=ZZB-NF
31 December 2019 +=-ZB=+—H
WEXFHE 32,228 66,388 (299,000) (235,400) (15,144) (450,928)
34 COMMITMENTS 34 AEIE

(@) Investment commitments

Commitments in respect of associates are disclosed in Note

20(d).

(@) REFIE

BB N B AR BE AY A B R MY AR
20(d) # 7& o
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O )
35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3B BEBRIRS
(@) Transactions with related parties () HEABMAENXS

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—-BLEE

2019 2018
—g-n%E —FN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT T ARET T

Funds received from parent company HEQAREEES 2 3
Funds received from companies controlled by % #5 A% % 5 122 41| 9 A 7] B3

the controlling shareholder = 22 3,807
Funds received from companies controlled by #f ZX A T — 42 #1717 2 = 42 I 19

an executive Director of the Company ~aRBE® 50 4,250
Funds repaid to parent company EEEELTHAR - (63)
Funds repaid to companies controlled by BiEEe PIEREREESH

the controlling shareholder NE! (709) (18,888)
Funds repaid to companies controlled by EBEESTARR—BWITE

an executive Director of the Company E1EHla A ] (43) (78,436)
Loans provided to parent companies REERTFHAR 3,646 —
Loans provided to a company controlled by 32 {Ht B 2k T 4750 3% A% B8 12 41 &9

the controlling shareholder — @ A 7] 30,000 109,650
Loans provided to a company controlled REEXRTFARR—BHITE

an executive Director of the Company EEHIH—F2A R 60,349 =
Loans provided to an associate REERT —BEHE QT 4,050 2,000
Interest from loans to parent companies M & QR ENERKE ST S 199 =
Interest from loans to a company controlled by A — & 122 B% B& J& 5 12 6l &9 A 7

the controlling shareholder B HRE FRET UCE A FIE 3,563 235
Interest from loans to a company controlled an A —RIE A AT — L #ITE S

executive Director of the Company L= O NGTE: 37 8= &0 e

RIS\ 823 -
Interest from loans to an associate m— B & R B B UE SRAT IR
15 8:0F N 383 12

Sales of goods or rendering services HE S MR R 25,810 29,086
Purchases of goods or receiving services BEEMIEZRE 40 93,083
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@

(b)

Transactions with related parties (continued)

Sales and purchases of goods and services were made on
normal commercial terms, conditions and market rates.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s borrowings amounting to
RMB259,400,000 (2018: RMB282,600,000) were jointly
guaranteed by the controlling shareholder, his spouse and a
company controlled by the controlling shareholder (Note 30(a)).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s borrowings amounting to
RMB275,000,000 (2018: RMB285,000,000) were guaranteed by
a company controlled by the controlling shareholder (Note 30(b)).

Key management personnel compensation

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to Directors, is as follows:

35 EHAERS m@m

(a

(b)

HEBLTHNRZ @

HEEmEREERBEXBES R
REXRBE —REFGET - GRIHF
K iGERETT

R-ZEBE-—AE+-_A=+—0H &
£ B EE AR 259,400,0007T (=
= — \F : AR #¥282,600,0007T)
FRIZEARARE HEBU R —fHhizE
% A% B 2 &l /9 A 7] £ B & R (B &F
30(@)) °

R-ZE-—AE+-_A=+—0H &
£ B EE ARK275,000,0007T (=
= — \F : AR ¥285,000,0007T)
P — A 2 A% AR BRI 4 A9 A A IR R
(MF3E30(b)) °

FTEEEEASHMN

AEETEEREARNFH (R
EENHTEEHNRB MT

Year ended 31 December

BE+t=-A=+—-BLEE

2019 2018

—F-NF —T-N\#F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARETT

Wages, salaries and allowances T4 - #a MoEBL 5,533 6,871
Post-employment benefit and other welfare iR Kk #g F1| & H b 18 I fI 2

expenses 476 553

Share-based payments VAR 17 X 1+ B9 5008 2,019 2,412

8,028 9,836
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o

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 35 BB F R 5 (&)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties

(c) HEBLTWRBESER

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—H
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT ARET T
Amounts due from: EBWRERE :
Companies controlled by the controlling 7 A% IR B A2 o B9 A A
shareholder 7,250 12,875
Companies controlled by an executive Director 78 A & — & #1717 E 1T 4179
of the Company NG| 10,232 4,452
An associate — & AR 16,029 =
Subsidiary of an associate — A& R R 2 M B A T - 2,000
33,511 19,327
Amounts due to: ENRERE :
Parent company A A] 71 70
Directors £ - 1
Companies controlled by the controlling 2 (% A% B 2 ) A9 A A
shareholder 489 1,182
Companies controlled by an executive Director 78 A & — & #1717 % E 12 4119
of the Company N 185 2,171
745 3,424
Loans to: RHEERT:
Parent companies (j) A () 2,295 —
A company controlled by the controlling o A% A B 42 B9 — RS | ()
shareholder (i) 29,696 109,872
A company controlled by an executive Director AN A & —Z #H1T%E FL & 8
of the Company (i) — @2 Al() 11,876 —
An associate — Mt E R A - 2,000
43,867 111,872
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties
(Continued)

M

(i)

The Company entered into a revolving loan agreement with
Longjitaihe Industry Co., Ltd. (“Longjitaihe Industry”), a
company controlled by the controlling shareholder, on 13
June 2018, pursuant to which the Company and its
subsidiary had provided revolving loans in a maximum
principal amount of up to RMB110,000,000 to Longjitaihe
Industry, the Company’s parent companies, and a
company controlled by an executive Director of the
Company for the period from 13 June 2018 to 12 June
2019, with an interest rate of 9% per annum.

On 13 June 2019, the Company and Longjitaihe Industry
renewed the revolving loan agreement for the period from
13 June 2019 to 12 June 2020, with the maximum
principal amount adjusted to RMB45,000,000.

Other amounts due from and due to related parties were
interest-free, unsecured and with no fixed terms of
repayments.

35 BEAERSZ @
) BEBMINABTELH

(&)
U

(i)

R=ZT—N\FRNA+=8"
ANARE—FESERRR
ZH R EERMNME X
ERARA(EERMEE])
AIVBIRER MBS Bt
ARARREMBARER =
Z-N\NFERAA+=Z=HE=-Z
—hERNA+-BHREARE
EZMNEE AQRZEA
Ak—MBZARE —F#H
TEEEHNARRERE
B AsBEERITEBA
R #110,000,000 7 @ £ F| =&
B9% °

RZZTE—NE~SA+=8"
AAREBEERNEESE
FREREERBZE BRA
—E-NAEFX~NAt+t=Z=HZE
—E-TEXRA+=ZAH-
ER Al ERAEBERARK
45,000,0007T °

& e K & 1<F R Bt T3 ) L At 5K
HeR EERMEREEE
HAMR -
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36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Balance sheet of the Company

EERMESHRERERAT  Fi% 2019

o

36 ARAFAEERBEREM
BEEH

@ FARrAZEERER

As at 31 December

R+=B=+-—H
2019 2018
L —E—)\&F
RMB’000 RMB’OOQ
ARE T ARET T
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L ERN S 576 1,329
Right-of-use assets EREEE 2,797 —
Intangible assets BEEE \ 5 10
Investments in subsidiaries REBARARINEE 342 342
Loans to subsidiaries REERTWE AR 990,167 =
993,887 1,681
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables 2 5 & H fth fE YW IR 968 944,555
Financial assets at fair value through BRATEEEEEHTAR
profit or loss mHEREE 152,090 148,278
Cash and cash equivalents HekHeERE 706 37,189
153,764 1,130,022
Total assets EEHEE 1,147,651 1,131,703
Equity and Liabilities EnRkBE
Equity attributable to owners of AAREERRELESR
the Company
Share capital A% A 12,255 12,255
Reserves (b) {3 1 (o) 1,177,593 1,149,044
Accumulated losses (b) ZEtE B (D) (46,550) (29,678)
Total equity R 1,143,208 1,131,621
Liabilities a8&
Non-current liabilities }'F)ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,308 =
Total non-current liabilities kARBEERERE 1,308 -
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B R HAMEMNFIE 1,548 82
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,497 -
Total current liabilities REBEEAE 3,045 82
Total liabilities EEHEE 4,353 82
Total equity and liabilities EaREEAR 1,147,651 1,131,703
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board KRR EEBERR =%
of Directors on 30 March 2020 and was signed on its behalf FZA=tH&=EESHE LA

Wei Qiang
B

TIESRERER

Liu Zhengang
21 4% )
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(b) Reserve movement of the Company
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36 ﬁéﬂiﬁ%ﬁﬁ%&ﬁ

B @)

(b) AT EERE

Retained
earnings/
(accumulated
Reserves losses)
RER&
& (R5tEE)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
At 1 January 2018 R=ZF—NFE—H—H 525,716 4,983
Loss for the year FRERE = (34,661)
Other comprehensive income E 2 mEBA 50,109 —
Share premium from rights issue HAZ AR 1 % B 438,699 -
Share premium from placing of new shares il & # AR (0 A% 1D % B 124,113 —
Equity-settled share-based transactions BEEEEURO IR S 10,407 =
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-—N\F+ZA=+—H 1,149,044 (29,678)
At 1 January 2019 R=ZZT—NAF—A—H 1,149,044 (29,678)
Loss for the year FREIE = (16,872)
Other comprehensive income Hib 2 mEA 25,481 —
Equity-settled share-based transactions BEREEUARO IR S 3,068 —
At 31 December 2019 R-ZB—nA&E+=-A=+—H 1,177,593 (46,550)
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O o
37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 37 EEZRAKRER
DIRECTORS
The remuneration of Directors of the Company for the years ended 31 BHE-_E—NEERZE—-NE+=-A=
December 2019 and 2018 is set out as follows: T—HILEFEARAEZTHNHFMHOT :
Year ended 31 December 2019
BE-ZE-NE+ZA=1+-HLEE
Other emoluments paid
or receivable in respect of
Director’s other services
Employer’s in connection with
contribution to the management of
a retirement the affairs of the Company
Name i Fees Salary benefit scheme  or its subsidiary undertaking (a) Total
RESRMUEBEEERAR
BAREAGE IEMBLATISHENHEGRS
e e ZEEMHERK i 2 {5 25 FE WL A E At B € (a) M@t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Tn AR%¥Txn AR TR ARETR AR%®TR
Chairman -
Mr. Wei Qiang BBLE - 1,547 15 - 1,562
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping =EFRE - 2,516 16 686 3,218
Mr. Liu Zhengang 2R M 5 & - 655 - 242 897
Non-executive Director *HITES
Mr. Wei Shaojun BOBERE - - - - -
Independent non-executive Directors B FHTES
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John BEALE 220 - - - 220
Dr. Han Qinchun BRERL 220 - - - 220
Mr. Han Xiaoping BETELE 220 - - - 220

660 4,718 31 928 6,337
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37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

37 EBZEAN R ER @

DIR ECTO RS (Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—\F+-_A=+—HLEE
Other emoluments paid
or receivable in respect of
Director’s other services
Employer’s in connection with
contribution to the management of
a retirement the affairs of the Company
Name e Fees Salary  benefit scheme or its subsidiary undertaking (a) Total
HEEREEBEELRAT
BREFFE SENBARSZBMEMRS
we £ ZEFHZ if B 15 35 I ) K £t B 2 () #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT AR ARBETT AREKTT
Chairman &
Mr. Wei Qiang BBTE - 2,368 15 = 2383
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping REFEE — 1,926 10 2,207 4,143
Mr. Liu Zhengang 2R & & - 1,168 - 161 1,329
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Wei Shaojun RLERAE = = = - -
Independent non-executive Directors B FHTES
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John ERBRAE 211 - - 167 378
Dr. Han Qinchun BREBL 211 - - 167 378
Mr. Han Xiaoping BETELE 211 - - 167 378
633 5,462 25 2,869 8,989

These represent the fair value of share options granted to the
directors under the Company’s share option scheme and
recognised as equity-settled share-based payment expense for
the respective years. The value of these share options was
measured according to the Group’s accounting policies for
share-based payment transactions as set out in Note 2.21,
including adjustments to reverse accrued in previous periods
where grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to the
vesting date. The principal terms and the number of options
granted are disclosed in Note 7(b).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

38 EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Since early 2020, the epidemic of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“the
COVID-19 outbreak”) has spread across China, and it has affected
business and economic activities to some extent. Up to the date on
which this set of financial statements were authorised for issue, the
impacts of the COVID-19 outbreak on the Group’s customers’ financial
positions and the macro-economic conditions as a whole are still
uncertain, the Group is unable to quantify the related financial effects.
The Group will pay close attention to the development of the COVID-19
outbreak, perform further assessment of its impact and take relevant
measures.

EERMESHRERERAT  Fi% 2019

o
[

38

BEHRRER

B _ZTEFYUR FHABRES

PR BB (AT ERIEFEmLREE]E
RRER BEBREETHEET —
EXB BEAYBHEMLERL A -

FEAEBEHASEREFETBKARLD
HENRERBKEBENEEYE W TH
o AEBEEEISCHBENBEEE - K
EEBFETYBEITEMARIBRE
RIBR BHEEETE S HEBNG
&1+ S FREX AR A FE ET 45 BE o



216 LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited  Annual Report 2019

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEHRE

A summary of consolidated results and assets, liabilities and equity of the AEEBF A AT BRFEFENGEESEEUALRE
Group for the last five financial years is set out below: E BEREREEHINWT :

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS mEeXE

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—HILEE
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—E—hF ZZE—RF ZT—tF ZE—-N\F Z—E—-hLE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT AREFTT AREFTRT ARBTT AR%®TR

(Restated)

(FgE5))
Revenue U %5 324,168 563,913 897,902 708,493 147,460
Income tax (expense)/credit BT 1SR (B 32 ) Wz (6,446) (12,321) (22,328) (10,386) 64,454
Profit/(loss) for the year FRmA(EE) 12,976 51,946 135,488 108,501 (261,414)
Attributable to: AT FEfl :
Owners of the Company KAREER A 12,976 51,456 135,197 107,720 (264,522)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR A 2 — 490 291 781 3,108

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND mEEE BERER

EQUITY
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—E—hF ZZE—RF ZT—tF ZE—-N\F Z—E—-hLE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT AREFTT AREFTT ARBTT AR%®TR
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IERBEE 24,386 317,375 547,537 799,002 926,511
Current assets mEEE 823,483 955,121 1,404,387 1,370,646 925,343
Total assets BEME 847,869 1,272,496 1,951,924 2,169,648 1,851,854
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities EREBEE 300,000 681,320 662,352 549,077 261,586
Current liabilities ik 2B=NE 477,305 284,294 514,771 140,622 365,175
Total liabilities BERE 777,305 965,614 1,177,123 689,699 626,761
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners 7K A B A A FE1S
of the Company W2 70,564 306,882 773,587 1,473,790 1,215,786
Non-controlling interests FEIZERR = — = 1,214 6,159 9,307

Total equity T 1B 78 70,564 306,882 774,801 1,479,949 1,225,093
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